MR

A10 089/12/2020 #362
COMPANIES HOUSE

“WEDNESDAY




" How we performed this year.
. Durbusiness
‘Chairman’s statement
tief Ex,ecu?ive’s stateéimen




1 JKX 0il & Gas plc Annual Report 2019 m

STrATEGI rBERGHT

How we performed this year

Update:

2019 was another year of achievement for JKX. Strong production
results allowed us to again report healthy profit and cash flow
generation despite the much weaker gas sales prices in Ukraine,
We continued cur field development in Ukraine and completed our
workover programime 1t Russia. The Group is now debt free

Profit from operations
Revenue before exceptional items* Profit for the year

2018 592 9m 2018 2407~ 2018 £153m

Cash generated from continuing Cashflowused in investing

operations activities Total year-end cash
noEeE W o s Z 6 B i 2 0 L :j--‘" i

2018 373w /018 $172.8m 2018 519.2m

Outlook:

= Assets continue to generate positive cash [low despite recent oil and
gas market turbulence.

= InUkraine we are continuing our field development activities while
alsc monitoring new opportunities.

= We expect final decisions on most of the cutstanding tax claims
in 2020 and 2021

*See page 23 for exceptional items.
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Our business

What we do

KX 1san ol and gas exploration and
production company focused on
eastern Furope,

Where we operate

JXX 01l & Gas pic Annual Report 2019

JKX

Black Sea
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Group statistics

Ukraine

Russia

Group*

Licences

1. Ignativske
2.Elyzavetivske

3. Rudenkivske

4. Novomykolaivske
5.Movchanivske

6. Zaplavska

1. Koshekhablskoye

13 licences

Total licence area, sg. km 405 33 638
Stage
Exploration Appraisal Exploration
Appraisal Development Appraisal
Development Preduction Development
Preduction Production
Production
2019 Gas production, Mcmd 769 8867 1,837
2019 0il production, bopd 1,058 59 1,118
2018 total preductien, boepd 5,584 5,158 10,748
Reserves
2P reserves, MMboe 234 610 84.4
3Preserves, MMboe 36.6 1037 140.3
2C resources, MMhboe 66.9 391 106
Staff 363 203 574

*Includes Hungary.
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Chairman's statement

foe)
Ay

lam pleased tc be writing to you fer the first
fime as Chairman of your Company, following
my appointment 1in Seplember 0149,

Before discussing the outcome of the 2019 financial year Iwould
like torecognise the challenges that we are currently facing as
aresult of the Covid-15 pandemic impacting the countriesin
which we operate. [ am pleased that we have beenable totake
proactive measures to protect our staff, contractaors, suppliers
and the communitiesinwhich we operate as wellas increasing
the resilience of our business, Further details of our response
are set putin the risk section of thisreport. My thoughtsare
with allthose impacted in this difficult time.

Turning thento the Group’s financial performance in 2019,
asour newly appointed Chief Executive Officer, Victor Gladun,
remarksinhisownreport the results for the full 2019 year
show it to have been another successful year. There has been
positive progress inmany key areas including operations
(production volumesincreased by 20% over 2018), finance
(profitability increased by over 10% compared to 2018} and
portfoliorationalisation. Asa consequence the Company's
financial position has been further strengthened and it isnow
debt free, having benefitted from both improved cost control
and increased production velurmesand isreporting its second
consecutive year of profit.

The Board continues te focus on the keyareasidentifiedin
2018 and 2013 that will be fundamental to the Company's
future succass:

= Restoringa constructive relationship with the
sharehelders of the Company:

* Ensuring full operationaland financial alignment
between all companies of the Group;

= Operationalrisk management developing existing fields
with proven, low risk technology:

* Ensuringfinancial stability by building liquidity
reserves and keeping tight cantrol over cost;and

= Resclving cutstanding tax issues.

JKX 0il &Gas plc Annual Report 2019 JKX

The new Board, appointed following the 2019 Annual General
Meeting, consists of a diverse selection of experienced cil and
gas industry professionals expert in the Group's key focus areas.
This new team has taken the months following its appointment
toreview the company’s business, to engage withitsstaff and
tovisit its operations in Russia and Ukraine. We have been
impressed by the quality and commitment exhibited, traits that
will be key to your company's future successes.

Outlook

The Board and managernent will continue to devste their
fullattention to cur core assets. Inaddition the Board will
actively review material opportunitiesinour key focus areas
where we canleverage our excellent financialand sperational
performancein order to obtain access to interesting prospects.

Aspart of this strategy we have already disposed of the Group's
Hungarian assets that were considered to be adistraction from
the company’s core areas of expertise.

Clearly recent developments in the commeodities' markets are a
significant and growing challenge, not just to those invelvedin
the upstream sector, but to allinvolved ininternational business.
Additionally. while our assets arerobust and strongly cash
generative, the situation regarding Covid-19 and its potential
impact onthe global economy and our operationsremains
uncertainandisrapidly changing We continue te menitor the
impact of these developments on our industry, our operations
and - most importantly - our staff and contractors.

During 2020 the Board will seek to foster an active and open
communication with all our shareholdersinorder toexplainits
strategy and to discuss any concerns that they may have inorder
toensure that all decisions are takenin the best interests of the
Company as awhole.

Pecple
lam happy to report that our HSE performance in 2019 has been
excellent, with no significant incidents recorded.

1also take this opportunity to welcome the appeintment of
Victor Gladun as CEQ and more recently Dmitriy Poddubnyy

as CFQ.With their experience of successfully managing our
major operating subsidiary and the Group more generally lam
sure that they willbring renewed focus te the senior executive
team, Iwould like to thank JKX's staff for ensuring continuity
and smooth operations and in particular ouroutgaing CFQ. Ben
Fraser, for his commitment and hard work over the last three
years.

Whilst significant challenges remair, such as the newreality
of lower gas prices, international disruption drivenby health

concerns, tachnical difficulties in the field and the historical

tax cases (where we have had anumber of successes this year)
[remain optimistic about the Company, whilst being realistic
about the challenges that it continues to face.

Chche Uademe loon

Charles Valceschini
Cheraan
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Chief Executive's statement

2019 was another year of achievement for
JKX. Despite the collapse in commodity
prices aur strong preduction results allowed
us to report healthy profit and cash flow for
the second year in a row. The Group i1s now
debt free.

Before discussing our performance in the 2019 financial year
I'would like torecognise the steps that are being taken by all
our staff to keep their colleagues safe and the businessrunning
despite the challenges presented by the current Covid-19
pandemic. We have implemented a range of pre-emptive
measures, further discussedin the risk section of thisreport, in
recognition of the fact that our peopleremain our greatest asset
and their continuing health our priority.

Qur performance

Strong production performance hasenahled usto deliver
positive financial performance despite the significantly lower
gas price that we have experienced in our Ukrainian market
where pricing is unregulated and follows international trends.
Our Group revenue has exceeded $100m for the first time since
2014 {2019 1071, 2018: £93m) and vul vperanonal profit betore
exceptional itemsis up by over 10% year onyear (2019:$23.1m,
2018: $20.7m).

Our operations

[nboth Ukraine and Russia we have kept our focuson
operational risk management developing existing fields step
by step with proven, lowrisk technology. Overall our fizlds
have delivered a 20% year onyear increase in Group annual
production (2019: 10,748 boepd, 2018: 8,937 boepd).

This increase was underpinned by a more than 50% increase
in annual production inUkraine (2019: 5,584 boepd, 2018:
3,677 boepd) where we continue to enjoy the results of the

field development plan we have been executing since late
2018.In 2019 our Ukrainian subsidiary drilled 4 new wells and
completed 19 waorkovers as well as completing a 3D seismic
survey in West Mashivska. The continuous use of the same low
costrigsourced from a lecal contractor for most of the drilling
has meant that we have enjoyed improvements in operational
performance, and the securing of a second rig with greater
caparity allowed us to beginmere technically challenging
drilling in Rudenkivske i the third quarter af 2019.

Meanwhile in Russia we have managed to maintain production
at previous levels (2019: 5,158 boepd, 2018: 5,168 boepd) while at
the same time completing the successful workover of two wells
using a contracted rig selected by tender in 2018, The addition of
these two wells to the producing well stock more than offset the
productionlost due to the continuing decline of Well 20.

[am pleased toreport that inearly March 2020 we have agreed
asale of our Hungarian business, which was non-producing, for
expected consideration of approximately £2.9m, and that we
expect this disposal tobe finalised shortly.
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Dur financial stability

The Group's financial strengthhasbeenimproved by both the
paying down of long term debt and by the reduction in the level
of provisions maintained for the outstanding legal cases.

Thankstothe cash generated by our operations we have in
February 2019 and February 2020 made the final payments to
our bondholders {capitalrepaid 2019: $5.4m, capital repaid 2020:
$5.4m). The Group is now debt free for the first time in ten years.

We have continued our efforts to resolve the long outstanding
tax issues that the company hasfaced and [am pleased toreport
that four of the eight casesrelating to claims for underpayment
of rental feesfor 2015 made against our Ukrainian subsidiary
PPChave now beenclosed in our favour. This has allowed us to
reverse the provisions in cur accounts for these four cases. We
are continuing to defend our positionin the courtsinrelation
totheremaining 2015 rental fee claims and are still awaiting
afinalruling from the Supreme Courtinrelationtoaclaim for
disputed rental fees for 2010.

During 2019 we successfully filed an application for
recognitioninthe Ukrainian courts of anaward made to JKX of
approximately $12.1m made by the Hague international tribunal
and in 2020 we continue to carry out the appropriate procedures
for the collection of thisaward.

Managing ourrisks

The maintenance of an adequate internal control framewaork
and appropriate risk management are essential to our success.
Policies and procedures that have beenimplemented across the
Groupare subject to annualreview to ensure that they remain
appropriate and fit for purpose.

Geological and operationalrisks are intrinsic to our business.
We seek tomaintain and improve our internal expertise

and supplement this with the use of appropriate contractors
and specialists to mitigate theserisks. In 2019 we enjoyed
predominantly positive results from our new wells and
workovers but we know that this cannct be taken for granted
and we continue to take a measured approach using proven,
low risk technelogy and diversifying cur geologicalrisk across
different targets.

During 2019 we have, of course, seen asignificant fallin the gas
priceinUkraine,inline withtherest of Eurcpe, and at the time
of writing there is considerable turbulence inthe financialand
commedities’ markets. We have toremain focussed on control
of operational and administrative costs and. as we continue
development of our fields in Ukraine, we performregular
economic analysis of our planned capital projects to ensure that
profitability is central to our decision making.

Inrecent weeks we have alsc seen the escalation of the Covid-18
pandemic globally. Whilst our operations have to date seenlittle
impact we are focused onimplementing measures to ensure the
safety of our people and contractors and prepare the businessto
face potentialchallenges that may emerge. Further detailsare
sat out in section 'Principle risksand how we manage them' on
pages 30-38.

Qutlook

The well workover programme in Russia hasbeen successfully
completed meaning that our operations there, withincreased
profitability and free from further workover capex
requirementsin the short term, can contribute more positive
cash flow to the Group. Inaddition to this, the agreement ef the
disposalof the Hungarian assetshasallowed management to
focusin 2020 on Ukraine where we are engaged in both further
development of cur existing assets and monitoring of new
opportunities.

While Irecognise the challenges we face, including the emerging
challenges that Covid-19 may present against abackdrop

of uncertaintyinthe oil and gas markets, [ take confidence

from the talents and continued dedication of our staff and

our improved financial strength.Tam eptimistic about the
ability of the Company to prosper and would like to assure

all shareholders that the Boardand management remain
committed to continuing to deliver production growth combined
with positive financial results.

Victor Gladun
Cirectar

ChiefExecnnve Off1oe -
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Market overview - Ukraine

Why are we here?

Ukraine is our most important market,
providing most of our cash flow.

Gas consumption still exceeds Ukrainian domestic production,
which leaves an incentive for us to increase our production
further. The gas market remains liberal.

Reserves

Ukraine holds 1.1 trillion cubic metres {37 trillion cubic feet)
of proven gasreserves - the second largest proven reservesin
Europe. JKX's expertise inthis market, gained through more
than 25 years of successful business in the Ukraine, leaves
us well placed to take advantage of the emerging investment
opportunities. The company is considering the acquisition of
new licences.

Total provengasreservesin Europe

Trillion cubic meters

2.0
1.5
1.0
0.5
0.0
Norway Ukrane  Netherlands United Poland Romania
Kingdom

Source BP Statistical Review of World Energy

Ukraine’s gas balanca 1991-2019 (bem)

Regulatory and investment climate
Applicable rental fees for new wells are 12% for those less than
5,000 metres and 6% for those deeper than 5,000 metres.

The investment climate in Ukraine’s gas production sector is
favourable. The government has announced an *Open Door
Policy for Investars”, The State Geolagic and Subseil Survey

of Ukraine is focussed on making processes more efficient,
treating all subsoilusers fairly and attracting new investment
into the sector.

Accesstogeologic data has beenimproved. Atransparent
process for electronic auctioning of cil and gas field licences
isin place and there is the opportunity toinvest in Production
Sharing Agreements {PSA). In 2019, 18 licences were sold

via electronic auction and 9 PSA tenders were concluded and
similar opportunities are available in 2020.

Ukraine has completed “unbundling” the national oil & gas
company Naftogaz. which is an important step towards further
transparency and liberalization of the gas market. Under the
new transit agreernent concluded between Ukraine and Russia,
gas transmission entry tariffs are not expected to increase for
domestic gas producers.

B lmportsfrom Russta

150 .
M Importsfrom Central Asia
120 B Domestic production
Imperts from Europe
30
Exports
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Source Company Reseacch,
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Netback
Netback analysis of gas sales {at $206.0/Mcm in 2013 JKX's assetsin Ukraine
and $307.8/Mcm in 2018}
- T m T s Novomykolaivske Complex
; DNIEPER-DONETS Our Novomykolaivske Complex
$30.4(19%) 453.2{18%) ! o reserves comprise five distinct fields
' ev » . producingin toone GPF. In addition
$54.6(27%} $81.4{26%) Ukraine Elyzavetivs we have a Liquefied Petroleum Gas
Novom ;:lainke {'LPG’) facility which converts some
$111.8 (54%) $173.2 (56%)} v C°LP101 of ourgasinto LPGforsale intothe
i expanding Ukrainianmarket.
2019 2018 ; Russia Elyzavetivske field
i Our Elyzavetivskelicense and
& Production costs . Black Sex - GPF, which are 45km fromour
. i . Novorykolaivske Complex, began
Prod . i
W Production taxes : ¢ commercial praductionin 2014.
W Net : — - — - -~ - Thefield currently produces from
tenwells.
Ukrainianreserves
Netback analysis of oil sales {at $61.0/bblin 2019 gﬁ:h? end of 20;9‘;;1"0?{ ;:;jwesfm
s Taine comprise A cma
and #74.0/bbl in 2018) gasand 2.1 MMbblof oil (total 23.4
MMboe including 3.2 MMboe of LPG).
$9.2({15%) v $9.0(12%)
515 3{25% $19.2 (26%) . .
(25%) 0 Project lifae cycle Reserves
$36.5 (60%) £45.7 {62%) Novomykolaivske Complex Reserves split

2019 2018 25 yedars 77.3% 2d5s

of commercial production to date
Production costs

W Net

13.7%

‘ = : 9.0%
— o~ o
Movwchanivske
B Gas
sk . LPG
Ignativske B cil

Novemykolaivske

Rudenkivske

Zaplavska

Elyzavetivske field

6 years

of commercial production to date

Principalrisksassociated with our business
in Ukraine (detail on pages 30-39)

2019 N
2028 Lo

1995

Liquidity, funding, and portfolic management

Commodity pricesand FX fluctuations

@ oe

Reservoir and operational performance
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Market overview - Russia
Why are we here?

We have access to high quality, long
hfereservesin Russia together with an
established processing facility.

Whilst gas prices areregulated, theyare stable and increase
year onyear. According to the latest forecast by the Russian
Ministry of Economic Develocpment, gas prices are expected

to continue rising steadily in the next 5 years. Weremain
committed to increasing production velumes closer to the plant
capacity, inorder to maximise return on the capital expenditure
invested.

Despite Russia’s overall gas surplus, Russia's southern regions
are short of gas with consumption exceeding production by more
thanthree times. Whilst Russia's average gas consumption has
stagrated in recent years, Russia's southernregions such as
Krasnodar have continued togrow.

Our Koshekhablskoye field is located in the Autonomous
Republic of Adygea in seuthern Russia. This region enjoys
some of the country’s highest gas prices. Thisis because the
gas industry's key reference price - the regulated price for
industrial consumers set for Gazprom -issetbased enthe
distance from Russia'’s key producing region - Nadym Pur Taz
(NPT)in Russia's far north. Adygeaislocated rnore than
4,000 km from NPT.

Adygeanregional authorities are proactively working on
investment projects aimed at boosting industrial potential,
and as the major local energy supplier we look ferward to their
development.

Due tothe depth of the main preduction horizonsin cur
Koshekhablskoye field, we enjoy a significant production tax
break as compared to other non-Gazprom producers.

Notwithstanding our access to some of the highestregional gas
pricesin Russia, we continue to seek opportunities to increase
gas salesmargins, particularly by direct gas sales to end users.
Inthe longer term we remain extremely well placed for any
liberalisation of the gas market in Russia.

Regulated gas pricing by region (RUB/Mcm)

Region Residential [ndustrial

price price
YaNAC 2608 2610
KhMAO 3049 3071
Chelyabinsk 3651 4059
Samara 3702 4272
Moscow 3807 4780
Adygeya 3858 4859
Netback

Netback analysis of gas sales {at $57.0/Mcm in 2019 and $58.3/Mcm in
2018}

$21.9{38%) 227.0 {46%)
#5.5(10%) 5.7 (10%)
28,5 (52%) £256 (44%)

2018

2019

# Production costs
B Productiontaxes

B e

Southern Russiagas supplyand demand (Bem)

800
70.0
0.0
500
400
30.0
200

&% Gasproduction
. Gasexport

10.0

i W Gas consmptien

Supply

040

Demand

Sgurce: Company Research,
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JKX's assetsin Russia

Ukraine
# Rostav-on-Don

Russia

Krasnodar

e Eoshekhablskoye
&, .

kop
REPUBLIC
OF ADYGEA

Koshekhablskoye
project life cycle

Black Saa%

Koshekhablskoye field
Koshekhablskoye gas field islocated
in the Republic of Adygea. southern
Russia where gas resource isscarce,
and there are high transportation
costs from Russia's main gas
productionareainthe far north,
some 4,000 km away.

Russianreserves

Atthe end of 2019, our ZPreservesin
Russia comprised of 10,246 MMcm
of gas and 0.7 MMbbl of oil (total 61.0
MMboe).

Reserves

Total project life cycle

7 years

of commercial production to date

2012
2019 ¥

2083 L

Reservessplit

99% gas

1%

#8 Cas
B °il

Principalrisks associated with our business

in Russia (detail on pages 30-39)

Geopolitical and fiscal risks

Reservoir and operational performance

L)
B
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Our business model

We strive ta create value for our stakeholders
Dy investing in exploration for appraisal and
development of o1l and gas asscts in eastern
Furope.

We generale revenue from proauction and
sales of ail, gas, condensate and [.PG. Cash
flow1s distributec to cur stakeholders and
reinvested 1n our business.

Exploration

Assetlife
eycle

Production

Government

Employees

Investors

Local community

Cashisinvested in existing and newassets

We manage a portfolio cf assets in Ukraine and Russia.
We aim to evaluate where we can add the most value and manage our portfolio accordingly.

Exploration

Weuse highly experienced in-house and contracted technical staff

to helpusidentify exploration targets both within our portfolio and
elsewhere However, exploration activity is currently not what we are
focused on.

Appraisal

Alarge number of legacy wells are located in and around the area of
themature assets operated by JKX. Dadicated efforts to gain access
and evaluate valuable data from these wells allow JKX togreatly
reducerisks and costs of its appraisal activities and optimize further
development planning.

Development
We strive to manage our field development based on ‘what's possible’
inpetroleumengineering, physics and execution.

Preduction

JKX has engaged experts in the latest drilling, completion, and
engineering technology from countries we operate in and abroad.
Although production decline is acharacteristic of 0il & gas assets, we
strive to minimize decline within our mature fields by identifying and
executing production enhancement and workover opportunities.

Suoaplisrs
Emplayeaes
Loua

fnvastars
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CTECIOREPOT

2020 StI:;tegic objectives

Cur ozjective is to be a leading independent.
emerging marke: upstream company and
enhance sharehc_der value by .ncreasing ail
and gas production and cash flew throegh
safe and responsizle operations.
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£ Loyt

PEGI

2020 St;ategic priorities

Strategic priority

Strategic priority

Financial and operational stability

Eey targets 2020

Profitable production growth

Keytargets 2020

= Growingour liquidity reserve through maximizingthe cash
flowandaccess to external funding

= Maintaining strong and stable governance

= Focus onlow-risk investments and use of proven
technoelogies

« Resolution of maost of the outstanding rental fee claim cases

Performance to date

= Continueimplementing five year development planin Ukraine
= Maintain production and positive cash flow generation

= Reviewother growthopportunitiesin Ukraine

Performance to date

Operating cash flow from
continuing operations,
smillion

Liquidity {cashand available
facilities), $million

Productionvolumes, boepd EBITDA sper boe

2017

2018

207

2018 2018 2018

12000 ¢

10,748

10000

8000

6000

4000

2000

2019

20m7 2018 2019 2017 2018

#% Cash

Facilities

Associated principalrisks

EBITDAis defined on page 21

Associated principalrisks

{detail on pages 30 to 38)

Liguidity, funding, and portfolio management

(detail on page 30 to 39)

Geopolitical and fiscal risks

Se

Financial discipline and governance

Reservoir and operational performance

Q60

Commodity prices and FX fluctuation
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Strategic priority

Eey targets 2020

= Zerofatalities
» Toexceedinternalandindustry targets for AIFR, LTI, and EIFR

Performance te date

Fatalities AllInjuryFrequency Rate Lost Time Injury {'LTI') cases Environmental Incident
{'AIFR’) Frequency Rate (EIFR’)
3 zr 3 080

0 4] 0 0

2018 2017 2018 2018 2017 2018 2018

2017 2018 2018 2017

Associated principalrisks

{detail on page 30 to 39)

Health, Safety, and Environment &

Major breach of busiress, ethical, or compliance standards ©
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Operations review

Group production

In 2019 group average production was 10,748 boepd {?018 8937 boepd) an overall increase
in production of Z0%. The increase in production year-an-vear was a result of the ongoing
drilling and workover programme in Ukraine.

Group production
boepd Woarkovers* Sidatracks New walls

Cash generating unit 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Novornykaolaivske complex 4,127 2414 17 18 0 2 2 0
Elyzavetivske licence 1,457 1.263 2 2 0 0 2 1
Total Ukraine 5,584 3,877 19 20 0 2 4 1
Russia 5158 5,169 2 4] 9 4] 0
Hungary 8 9l 0 0 0 0
Total Group 10,748 8,937 21 20 0 2z 4 1

*Includes abandonments,

Gasand oil productionincreased year-on-year inboth cash generating umits in Ukraine and stayed flat in Russia.

Gas, Mcmd 0Oil, bopd boepd
Cash generating unit 2018 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Novormnykolaivske complex 527 286 1,025 731 4,127 2,414
Elyzavetivske licence 242 211 33 20 1,457 1,263
TotalUkraine 7689 AQ7 1,058 751 5,584 3.6877
Russia 867 868 59 58 5,158 5.169
Hungary 1 14 1 7 6 9l
Total Group 1,837 1379 1118 816 10,748 8,937

Ukraine

Novomykolaivske complex production and operations

boepd Workovers Sidetracks New wells
Fieldname 2019 2018 2019 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
Ignativske 3,069 1,385 7 8 0 1 1 0
Molchanivske 3565 346 5 2 0 1 0 0
Novormykolaivske 398 286 1 2 0 Q 1 0
Rudenkivske 305 387 4 8 0 a 0 0
Novomykolaivske complex 4,127 2,414 17 18 0 2 2 0

The increase in Novomykolaivske complex production year-on-year was mostly attributed to production from the IG1G3 sidetrack

drilled at the end of 2018 and a new well, [G142, drilled in 2012 in the [gnativske field. The increase in oil preductionin the

Novmykolaivske complax was mostly attributed to 2 new well. NN81, drilled in the Novamykolaiske fiald.
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Outlook

Following the success ef 1G103 sidetrack and [G14Zin the Devonianreservoir of the Ignativske field there are follow-up wells planned
to thisreservoir in 2020. One of these isa newwell [G143, which is targeting a separate fault block to the west of IG103 5T.

Following the success of NN81 in 2019 finding a new oil reservoir in the V16 there are follow-up wells planned to target the V16 bothin
the Ignativske and Novomykolaivske licensas.

InRudenkivske, the completion of R101 sidetrack is on-going and is expected tobe completed in April 2020. Meanwhile a subsurface
studyis being carried cut by an external contractor in order torefine the field development plan for the Devonianin Rudenkivkse.
Once this study is complete in Q2 2020 the results will be used to plan a well to the Devonian in Rudenkivske.

Elyzavetivske licence production and operations

boepd Workovers New wells
Fieldname 2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
Elyzavetivske 996 1177 0 1 0 1
Waest Mashivska 462 86 2 1 2 0
Elyzavetivske Licence 1,458 1,263 2 2 2 1

Theincrease in productien from the Elyzavetivske license was mainly the result of the successful completion of the first new well
inthe West Mashivske field, WM3 which is producing from the A8reservoir. A second weilin the West Mashivske field wasalso
completed and is producing from the GBreservoir.,

Outlook
In 2020 metheds of increasing production from the G8in WM4 will be investigated. Compressionis alsobeing investigated for the
Elizavetivske plant which would benefit both the wellsin the Elizavetivske and West Mashivske fields.

Further subsurface work willbe carried outin order to determine whether there are any opportunities for further drilling in the West
Mashivske field.

Russia

EKoshekhablskoye licence productionand operations

boepd Workovers
Wellname 2018 2018 2019 2018
Well 5 263 0 1 0
Well 18 78 0 1 0
Well 20 1,353 1,733 0 0
Well 25 1.735 1.693 0 0
Well 27 1,672 1,665 0 0
Koshekhablskoye field* 5158 5.169 2 a

*Iacludes Well 15 productior.

In 2018 both Well 5 and Well 18 were successfully worked over and sidetracked. Well 5 preduction was significantly less than expected
whereas production from Well 18 met expectations after only one acid job. The rig has since been demobilised.
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Reserves update

KX was audited by RS Energy Consultants Ltd {{RPS)in accordance with the SPE Petroleum
Resources Management System ("PRMS" 2018 for the 2019 annual report, effective date 31st
December 2019,

The tables below give the 2P Reserves reported by RPS as aresult of the audit. The most significant change is in Russia and is due
tothe lower than expected production rate of Well 5. LPG has been incleded this year for the first time due to a change of reference
point.

The methodelogy followed for the audit was to estimate Hydrocarhons Initially in Place (HIIP) only for reservoirs with significant
future development plans. For the remainder of the fields where there was no significant future development planned, Reserves
were astimated using decline curve analysis.

The evaluation of Hungary was not included in the RPS audit. The year-end 2018 reserves were updated internally. JKX working
interest for all licenses in Ukraine and Russia is 100%.

Totalremaining 2Preservesat 31 December 2013

31-Dec-18 Revisions Preduction 3I-Dec-19
Total
Oil (MMbbl) 3.2 0.0 (0.4) 28
Gas (MMcm) 15,415 (1.510} (597)* 13,308
LPG {MMbbl) - 3.2 - 3.2
Qil + Gas + LPG (MMboe) 939 (5.7} (3.9) 84.4
Ukraine
Oil (MMbbl) 2.5 C.0 (0.4} 21
Gas MMcm 3,676 (334) (281) 3,061
LPG (MMbbl) - 3.2 - 3.2
0il + Gas + LPG {(MMboe) 24.2 1.2 {2.0) 234
Russia
Oil (MMbbl) 0.7 0.0 {0.0) 0.7
Gas {MMcm) 11,740 (1.177) {316) 10,247
(il + Gas (MMboe) €9.8 (6.9} (1.9} 61.0

*0.4 MMem produced in Hungary. Note there are minor difference in the tables due to rounding effects.

Field-by-Field 2Preserves at 31 December 2019

MMboe Dec-18 Revisions Production Dec-19
Ukraine

Ignativske 5.2 (0.5) (1.1} 3.6
Movchanivske 0.5 0.2 (0.1) 06
Novomykolaivske 08 03 (0.1) 0.9
Rudenkivske 152 {1.7) (0.1) 13.4
Zaplavska LPG Novomykolaivske complex - 32 - 3.2
Sub-total Novomykolaivske coraplex licences 217 15 (1.5) 217
Elyzavetivske 2.5 (0.3) (0.5} 1.7
Tetal Ukraine 24.2 1.2 (2.0) 234
Russia

Koshekhablskoye 69.8 (6.9) (1.9} 61.0
Total 93.9 (5.7) (3.9 844

Reservesreported gross of royaltiesand includesfue] gas (Novemykolaivske -1.8 MMbae (208 MMemy), Slyzavetivske - 0.1 MMboe {17 MMcm}and Koshekhabslskoye - 2.5
Mbbaoe (425 MMcml)
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JEX contingent resources

RPS estimated contingent resources for the reservoirs and fields listed helow.

MMboe
Field Reservolr 1€ (low) 2C {best) 5¢ (high)
Ignativske V16 0.0 0.3 1.3
Movchanivske Mol Main Devonian 0.0 0.0 0.6
Novormykolaivske V15 0.2 03 0.5
V18 0.0 0.1 0.6
Rudenkivske Visean sands 0.2 4.1 153
Teurnaisian Clastics 118 26.2 499
Devonian Clastics 17.1 326 60.5
West Mashivska Al+A2 0.1 03 0.5
A8 0.5 1.0 20
G8 0.9 20 37
Koshekhablskoye Oxferdian 6.3 4.5 0.0
Callovian I-TV 128 285 545

Callovian V-VI 28 6.2 11.8
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Performance in 2019

Total Second half First half Total

2018 2019 2019 2018
OPERATING RESULTS s $m 4m $m
Revenue
0il 25 152 9.8 200
Gasg €9 36.5 325 66.4
Liquefled petroleumgas 6.6 37 29 5.6
Other 11 1.0 01 0.8

101.7 564 453 929

Cost of sales
Excepticnalitem - production based taxes 8.4 16.7 {23) {(5.1)
Other production based taxes (23.5) {10.8) {12.7) (21.9)
Depreciation, depletionand armortisation- ciland gas assets {18.5) {9.6} {8.9) {148}
Other cost of sales {22.8} (13.9) (8.9 {207}
Total cost of sales {56.4) (23.6} {32.8) (62.5)
Gross profit 45.4 328 125 30.3
Administrative expenses {13.2) {7.5) (5.7} {13.9)
{Loss)/gain on foreign exchange {0.8) (0.3) {0.3) (0.7)
Profit from operations before exceptionalitems 23.1 14.2 89 207
Prafit from aperations after exceptional items 318 250 6.6 15.7

Mote: there are minor differencesin the tables above due tc rounding effects.
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Total Second half First half Total
EARNINGS 2018 2019 2019 2018
Profit before tax 30.4 24.4 6.0 14.0
Net Profit {sm) 222 20.0 2.2 153
Net profit before exceptional items ($m) 13.2 9.4 38 18.6
Basic weighted average number of sharesinissue (m) 168.1 169.5 166.7 166.7
Profit per share after exceptional item {basic, cents} 7.88 5.56 1.32 1113
Pre-egcepponal earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and 423 241 18.2 355
amertisation (Sm}t

Total Second half First half Total
COSTS OF PRODUCTION (5 /boe} 2018 2018 2019 2018
Operating costs (excluding exceptionalitem}) 5.8 6.7 59 6.4
Depreciation, depletion and amortisaticn 4.8 47 4.9 4.6
Productionbased taxes 6.0 52 6.9 6.8

Total Second half First half Total
CASHFLOW 2018 2019 2019 2018
Cash generated from continuing operations {$m} 414 28.2 122 373
Operating cash flow per share (cents) 248 17.3 7.3 224

At 31 December

At 30 June At 31 December

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 2018 2019 2018
Totalcash?{(Sm) 208 10.6 192
Borrewings {excluding derivatives) ($m) (5.7} (5.6} (11.0
Net cash/{debt)?* (Sm) 149 5 8.2
Net cash/(debt) to equity (%) 8.0 3.2 58
Returnon average capital employed {%)° 144 29 8.2
Increase in property, plant and equipment/

intangible assets ($m)

Ukraine 205 127 7.8 11.1
Russia 8.9 59 3 0.7
Total 29.4 186 108 118

* Earningsbefore interest, tax, profit and amortisation {EBITDA is 2 non-IFRS measure and calculated using prefit from operations adding back deplerion, depreciation,
amartisation, EBITDA :5 an indicator of the Group's ability to generate operating cash flow t=at can fund its working capital needs, service debt obligations and fund capital

expenditires.

* Tatal cashs cash 2nd cash equivalents from continuirg operations.

4 Net debt 1s taral cash less borrowings (excluding derivatives).

* Raturnan average capital employed is the annualised profit for the period divided by average capital emplayed.
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Financial review

B“naser o

Chief Financial Qfficer

2019's strong operating cash flows
have allowed us to pay off our
outstanding bonds in February
2020, thus making us debt {ree - a
very impertant milestone for us as
we continue to work tolmprove the
(Group's balance sheet,

Grouprevenues*

9.5% )/

2019 2018 Change %

{sm) (3m) {(#m)  Change

Ukraine 843 749 94 126%
Gas 523 497 31 83%
0il 243 193 5 259%
éﬁf&,ﬁf etroleum 66 56 10 179%
Other i1 08 0.3 37.5%
Russia 174 178 (0.4]  (2.2%)
Gas 18.7 17.2 {0.5) (2.9%)
Condensate 0.7 0.6 D1 B.7%
Other - 0.2 (0.2) N/A
Total 101.7 92.9 8.8 9.5%

“note this exciudes Hungary that is presented as a discontinued operation in the
financial statements.

Salesprices
%
2019 2018 Change Change
Ukraine
Gas($/Mcm) 206 308 {102) (33%)
01l {$/bbl) 61 74 (13) (18%)
LPG{s/tonne} 449 544 {95) {17%)
Russia
Gas ($/Mcm) 57 58 {1} {2%)
Average exchange rates
Y
2019 2018 Change Change
Russta [RUB/3) 64.6 62.9 {1.7) {2.7)
Ukraine {UAH/S) 258 27.2 1.4 5.1

Results for the year

2019 was another profitable year for the Group. We are pleased
toreport profit before tax of $30.4m which compares favourably
to the profit $14 Om reported for 2018. Results for bothyears
include net mevements inrespect of pravisions for disputed
rental fees for 2010 and 2015 in Ukraine (credit of 38.4min 2019
and charge of $5.1min 2018}.

Totalrevenue for 201815 $101.7m, 2.5% higher than the $92.8m
reportedin 2018 and abeve $100rn for the first time since 2014,
This was achieved despite the 33% lower gas sales pricesin
Ukraine thanks to theincrease in total average daily Group
productien from 8,937 boepd in 2018 ta 10,748 hoepd in 2019.
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We generated significant EBITDA at the same time as continuing
tomake substantial investment in the fieldsin Ukraine and
Russia.

2019 strong operating cash flows have allowed us to pay off

our outstanding bondsin February 2020, thus making us debt
free-averyimportant milestone for us as we continue to work to
improve the Group's balance sheet.

Ukraine revenues
The$9.4mincreasein total revenues was due to higher sales
volumes offset by lower sales prices, as shown in the table.

The average gas sales price in dollar terms was 33.1% lower

in 2019 thanin 2018. This is in line with international market
trends. Total gas sales velumes increased by 58% from 159,887
Mermin 2018 to 257,030 Mem in 2018, primarily due to the gas
production velume having increased 54.9% from 181,482 Mcm

in 2018to 280,673 Mcmin 2019. The increase in production was
aresult of the on-going drilling and workover activity started in
2018 and continued throughout 2019. For more detail please refer
tothe Regional cperations’ update.

The average oil sales price decreased from $74/bblin 2018 to
$61/bblin 2019 and total oii sales volumes for the year increased
46.2% from 261,420 barrelsin 2018 to 382,200 barrelsin 2019.0il
preduction volume increased 36.3% from 274,087 barrels in 2018
to 373,616 barrelsin 2019.

LPGsales velumes were 10,294 tonnesin 2018 compared to
13,636 tonnes in 2019, with sales prices being lower in 2019
(#449/tenne in 2019 compared to $544/tonne in 2018).

inventory held at 31 December 2019 (14 million cubic metres of
gasand 27 thousand barrels of ¢il) had an estimated sales vaiue
of $4.1lmusing average sales prices for December 2019.

Aportion of production comes from wells owned by third parties,
operated under service agreements with UkrGasVidebuvannya
and underrental agreements with NAK Nadra Ukrayini and
Ukrnafta. This productionis subject to sale inthe normal way.
with payments being made to the well owners inaccordance with
the service and rental agreements.

Russiarevenues

Totalrevenues in Russia were flat year-on-year as gas volumes
were maintained at similar levels (2019: 314,446 Mcm,
2018:316,996 Mcm) despite the intensive workover programine.
The benefit of the 1.4% increase in the average rouble gas sales
price on 1 July 2019 was offset by the slightly weaker Rouble

in 2019.

Costofsales

Exceptional items relate to previsions for disputed rental fees,
Arelease of £14.4m of provisions due to the closure of some of
the 2015 rental fee claims in favour of our subsidiary was offset
by an additional charge of $6.0mreflecting updated interest
calculations inrelation to the rental fee claims still provided for
as set out in Note 18.

Cost of sales before exceptionalitems for 2019 totalled $64.8m
(2018:557.5m), including;

» $23.5mof preductiontaxes, which were $1.7m higher thanin
2018 due ta the higher production taxesincurred in Ukraine
(2019:521.8m, 2018:520.1m) where we had higher volumes.
Only $1.8m of the total production taxesrelate to Russia
(2018: 51.8m) where the mineral extraction taxrate for wells
deeper than 5,.000m has remained at 340 Roubles/Mcm.

»  $22.9mof operating costs, of which $14.7mrelates to Ukraine

(2018:312.1m) and $7.0m relates to Russia (2018:38.6m) and
$0.6mrelates to centralcosts. The increase in cperating

costs in Ukraine is mainly due to the introduction of the gas
capacity fee {2019:$1.4m, 2018mil) and the overall increase in
field activity.

* $184mof depreciation, depletion and amortisationcharge
{2018:514.7m) whichis larger due to the higher production
volumes and the recent higher levels of capital expenditure.
Analysis showing production costs, production taxes and
netbacks for beth our Ukrainianand Russian operationsis
shownon pages 9andl10.

Administrative expenses

Administrative expenseswere $13.2min 2019, comparing
favourably to those of $13.9min 2018. The decrease is mainly due
testaff cost reductionsresulting fromaright-sizing exercise
carried out during 2018 and lower legal and professional fees. In
the Company's London office we exited the long-term lease of one
of the office floors in May 2019 and closed a data centre.

Finance income and costs

Finance costs decreased from $2.5min 2018to s2.1min 2018.
This mainly consists of the bond interest which reduced from
$2.1mto 51.4m due to the repayment of principal outstanding in
February 2012 Finance costsalso includes unwinding of discount
of provisions for site restoration of $0.6m (2018: $0.4m).

Finance income of $0.9m (2018: 20.9m} comprises income from
bank deposits.

Taxation

Thetotaltax charge for 201915 $10.2m (2018: $2.2m) comprising
acurrent tax charge of $6.6m (2018: 55.5m} whichrelates to
Ukraine and a deferred tax charge of $3.6m (2018: credit $3.2my).
The increase in current tax chargereflects a higher profitability
inUkraine. The deferred taxrelates to movementsinvarious
deferredtaxassets and liabilities in Ukraine and Russiaas set
cutin Note 25 to the financial statements.

Discontinued operation

The discontinued operation is the Hungarian business. The
related gainreported reflacts both the running costs incurred
during 2019 and the partreversal of a previous impairment
charge following the sale of the business currently expected tobe
valued at approximately $2.9m that was agreed in March 2020.

Capital Expenditure

We continue tobalance the need to improve liquidity while
alsorecognising the need for long-term investment. Of the
$28.8m oil and gas capital expenditure incurred during the
year {2018:511.3m), £19.9m relates to Ukraine where field
development continued as planned, $8.9m relates to Russia,
where the well workover programme was completed.

Cashflows

During the year the Group's availahble cashbalancesincontinuing
operations remained approximately at the same level ($20.6m

at 31 December 2012 compared tc $19.2m at 31 December 2018)
while at the same time decreasingits borrowings from $11.0m
tos57mandinvesting significant capital expenditureinour
operaticnsin 2018 This was achieved asaresult of strong
operating cash flow of $41.4m (2018:537.3m) from continuing
operations, almost all of it generated in Ukraine. Use of cash
during the yearis as shownin the cash bridge on the next page.
Net cashoutflow from financing activities inthe period mainly
relates to the 5.3t payment to the bondnolders in February
2019. No dividends were paid to shareholders in the period (2018:
nil).
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Financial review

Cash flows {5m)
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December generated patd Ppait expenditure repayment received and December
2018 from additions othercash 2019
cantinng movements
operations

Liquidity outlook

After afinal payment of $5.8m to bond holders in February

2020 the Group is now debt free. Our subsidiary in Ukraine still
hasa 24 monthUAH2B80m ($11.8m) revolving creditlineand a
UAHS0m ($2.1m) overdraft facility with Tascombank, neither

of whichare currently being used and can be drawn down
subject to credit approvals by the bank. Both facilities have been
renewed until December 2021 and can be drawn down subject

to credit approvals by the bank. In addition to our continued
focus on cost control, other options available to us to improve our
liquidity include the execution of forward salesinUkraineand
deferring capital expenditure if required. We are not burdened
by significant field development commitments in the short or
long term.

We continue to maintain provisionsinrespect of 2010 and 2015
rental fee claims ($15.9m and $25.4m respectively). While we still
wait for 2010 case resolution, there hasbeen progress with some
of the 2015 cases with four having been closed in our favour. The
provision has been adjusted accordingly with a $14.4m release
offsetting the increase in provision due to interest caleulation
(see Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements for detail).
The Group's expectationis that a finalhearing withrespectto
the 2010 rental fee claim will take place in 2020 and the full
provision for it has therefore been reported under current
liabilities. It is expected that the final hearingsinrespect of the
remaining 2015 rental fee claims will take place in 2021. The
$25.4m provision for the 2013 rental fee claims therefore has
beenreported under non-current liabilities.

The international arbitration award, directing the State of
Ukraine to pay $11.8m plusinterest and $0.3m costs te JKX as
described in the 2018 Annual Report, has now been successfully
legally recognised in Ukraine and JKX has filed for collection.

No passible future benefit that mayresult from this award will
bereflected inthe accounts until there is further clarity on the
process for, and likely success of, enforcing collectiomn.

Bothour Ukrainian and Russian operationsremain cash flow
positive, generating sufficient cash to cover the Group's costs
and investment programimes and, provided we dongt encounter
extended periods of severe operational disruption as a result of
Covid-19, the Group's cash flows are forecast to he sufficient to
meet potential rental fees shonld they arise without the need to
access the conditional Tascorn facilities or pursue other options
to maintain liquidity. Thanks to the successful completionof its
workover programine in 2019, our Russian subsidiary is now well
placed to contribute increased cash flows to Group.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on

a going concernbasis {see Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements) which highlights a material uncertainty over going
concernasaresult of Covid-19. However, whilst the impact of
the pandemic is uncertain, asit is for almost every business, for
the first time in several years the group has a suitably stabie
financial position from which tobetter manage challenges that
may arise and also thentake advantage of spportunities in our
key markets.

Ben Fraser
Chief Financial Officer
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Corporate social responsibility ((CSR') review

Health and safety performance

Beforereperting on our healthand safety performance in

2018 financial we take this opportunity to acknowledge the
challenge of the global Covid-19 pandemic. The Group has
already implemented a range of pre-emptive measures, further
discussed intherisk section of thisreport, inrecognition of

the fact that cur people remain our greatest asset and their
continuing health our priority. We recognise the steps that are
being taken by all our staff, contractors and suppliers to keep
their colleagues and communities safe and the business running
despite the challenges they are facing.

Our approach

Byintegrating health, safetyand environmental considerations
into all aspects of our business, we protect our employees, our
communities and the environment. We will never knowingly
compromise our health, safety, environmental or quality
standards to meet our operational objectives. Our priorityis to
ensure that all statf and contractors work in a safe environment,
where effective systems of work are maintained and appropriate
procedures and processes are followed. We set annual HSECQ
targets for all levels within the ocrganisation.

Our performance in 2019

We have a clear Safety Management System, which provides

a comprehensive and systematic vision of our objectives. In
occupational health, the drug and alcohol policy continues tobe
successful throughout the Group with ne instances of breaches
noted. The policy applies to all our staff and contracters

and forbids the possession and/or use of defined prohibited
substances whichincludes drugs and alcohol. Our policy also
clarifies our testing and inspection procedures.

During 2019 we achieved an AIFR Zero (0) per 200,600 hours
worked. In 2019 we reported 68 incidents, which demonstrates
further consolidation in our incident reporting precedures.

Drilling risks

We recognise that the safetyand efficiency of our drilling and
workover operations depends primarily on the performance of
our employees and contractors. We utilise a mix of primarily
localstaff with decades of local experience and expatriate
supervisors on our drillingrigs to provide additienal expertise
and oversight.

Qur drilling and workover employees and contractors have
the necessary training in well safety and well control, and all
personnel have the authority (and are expected) to stop any job
they deem unsafe.

We select supervisors for their expertise as well as for their
familiarity with the regions where we operate. They understand,
and are sensitive to local working practicesand culture, and
work to enhance the education and training of local staff and
contractorsalike.

We make the best use of our resources by sharing expertise
between our gperating companies, and we have a strong
collaborative environment where everybody contributes te
analyse therisks and develop mitigating strategies in order to
minimise it.

Before we evenbegin to drill or workover a well, we identify and
address the inherent risks in drilling and workover operations.

This industry best practice makes sure:

* health, safetyand environmentissues are clearly identified
and assessed;

= regulatoryand JKXrequirements are met;

= riskshavebeenremoved or mitigated accordingtoa
structured, systermatic process, with any remainingrisks
dernonstrated to be bothtolerable and as low asreasonably
practicable;

= critical safetyitems and procedures are identified to manage
remaining risks;

« acemprehensive envirgnmental management planhasbeen
developed;

= social health, and environmental benefits and opportunities
areidentified;

= personnelroles and responsibilities are indicated.

We have amanager based inour London office that is responsible
for the planning, reviewing and authorising of Group driiling
and workover operations which significantly strengthens our
capability to identify and manage drilling risk.

Health and safetyrisk management

We apply ISO 45001 (The Standard Replacing OHSAS 18001)
IS0 14001 Envirenmental and [SO 9001 Quality Management
standards.

Consistent hazard assessment processes

Inboth Russia and Ukraine, we continued to carry out risk
management studies using our proven Hazard and Operability
(HAZOP'), Hazard Identification (HAZID') and AsLowas
Reasonably Practical {ALARP') methodologies.

Health and safety training

Eachlocation has an H&S training budget which includes legally
required training from the host country H&5S regulations.
Additional training is provided according to operational
requirements.
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Corporate social responsibility (‘CSR’) review

Health and safety statistics

AllInjuryFrequency Rate 2019 (AIFR’)
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HSECQ Statistical Analysis for 2019
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2019 JKX and contractors

Days away from work 0 Safety exposure man-hours 2,734,193
Fatal accident cases 0 Fatal accident case frequency rate 0
Lost time injury cases 0 Lost time injuries frequencyrate 0
Medical treatment/restricted q Medical treatment/restricted work cases 0
work cases frequency rate

Near miss/loss/hazards/property 68 Near miss/loss/hazards/property damage/ 497
damage/unsafe act or conditions unsafe act or conditions frequency ’
Envirenmental incidents 1 Environmental incidents frequency rate 0.07
Man-ho i . .

urs since last lost 7.553,810 Man-hours since last fatal accident case 2,873,164

time injury
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Environmental management system

The JKX Environmental Management System is a comprehensive,
systematic, planned an documented management process.

Our impact

We comply with all relevant environmental requirements,
including environmental laws and regulations and industry
guidelines.

Environmental performance in 2019

In 2019, we again made good progress and we are committed
to providing information to investors about its environmental
performance.

Envirenmental incident frequency rate ('EIFR’}
Our EIFR Target for 2019 was not to exceed 0.6 Environmental
incidents per 200,000 hours worked; we achieved 0.07.

Greenhouse gas ('GHG') emissions reporting
All emissions sources owned, operated or controlled by the Group
are included in cur reporting,

Qur approach

Chr terminals are self-sufficient and can maintain cperations
without the need for grid electricity therefore improving

the security of supply. We used the Greenhouse Gas Protocol
methodology for compiling our GHG data.

Mandatory GHG reporting

JKX is required to comply with the UK government legislation on
mandatory GHG reporting. The legislation requires all companies
as a minimum, toreport Scope 1 and 2 GHG emissions and an
emission intensity ratic. Accerding to the GHG Protocol Scope 2
Guidance released in January 2015, corporates now are to report
two scope 2 emission totals - location-based and market-based.

Since market-based emission factors are not available to

any of JKX’'s Russia and Ukraine locaticns, residual emission
factors are only adopted for offices in the UK, and average grid
emission factors are adopted for locations in Russia and Ukraine.
Calculations shall be updated upon the Government release of
residual factors for public use. JKX's disclosure is in accordance
with this legislation and the latest GHG protocal requirements.

Supply chain managemant

At the heart of our sustainable supply chain is a pelicy of localising
supply by fabricating, manufacturing and sourcing as much as
possible as close ta the point of use by using indigenous companies.

Our achieverments

During 2019 some advances were made in our Supply Chain
Initiative, and this will continue in 2020 with a more focused
appreach to procurement and supply.

Outlook
Plans te improve these procedures during 2020 include enhancing
cur JXX Code cf Conduct.

Environmaental Incident Fraquency Rate {'EIFR’)

0.8

0.7

[

/A
S\ A
\ /A

0.3 \,f”’“ —J \

; \
\

[ i { T T T T T 1 T 37
2009 2010 2011 2012 2I13 2014 2015 206 2017 2018 2019

a1

Mandatory GHG reporting

Quantity
Data point Units 2019
Scope 1 tonnes CO,e 281,590
Scope 2
{Locationbased) tonnes C0e 960
Scope 2
(Markat based) tonnes CO,e 975
Scope 1& 2 Intensity tonnes CO,e /Mboe 124
{Location based ) of production
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Corporate social responsibility (‘CSR’) review

Community

Cur approach
We are committed to engaging with the community te share the
benefits of our success at our operating plants.

Our community engagement

We conduct variousactivities to forge good relations with local
communities through participation in forums established by
localauthorities and residents' associations.

Assistance inour local communities

In practical termus, cur community support frequently involves
using the Company'splant and machinery - as well as manpower
- to provide much-needed assistance.

Charitable donations and volunteering

Eachoperation hasalimited budget for good causes and we
handle charitable donations at a local level. Locally, donations
from the Group during 2019 amounted to 279,000 across the
group. Subject tomanagement approval, staff maybe given
additional time off in order to join in certain charity-retated
activities. A detailed list of donationsisavailable onrequest.

Quality

Applying IS0 9001 requiremernts ensures that the quality
management systems that JKX has adopted work to improve the
efficiency of the business. The new versions of ISO 2001 as well as
OHSAS 18001 & ISO 14001 hava been applied.

Diversity and equality

Accessto work opportunities is based on merit, equality, fairness
and need, and no one is treated less favourably onthe basis of
their sex, racial or ethnic origin, celour, religion, disability,
marital status, sexuality or age, We will not tolerate any form of
discrimination - either direct or indirect. Acts of discrimination,
prejudice, harassment and victimisation which occur within the
workplace or within the communities in which we work is not
tolerated.

Our stakeholder engagement

We work closely with outside interest groups and maintainan
open-door policy tobetter understand local issues and ensure
problems are avoided.

Ourinvestor engagement

We seek to enhance shareholder value throughresponsible and
effective communication with our sharehoelders.
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Principal risks and how we manage them

Our framework of internal contrals is
supported by a culture that promofes good risk
managernent processes led by the Board.

Respongibilities

The Board isresponsible for the Group's continuous system of
internal control and risk management systems and for reviewing
their effectiveness.

Risk management process

Therisk management processis designed tc manage, rather than
eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only pravide reasonable, not absalute, assurance against
material mis-statement or loss.

A risk management process invelves the Group Risk Committee
and subsidiary Risk Committeesin Ukraine and Russia. All the
Risk Committees were in place throughout 2019, with the last
Group Risk Committee being in December 2019.

Risk Committee

The purpose of the Group Risk Committee is to assist the Board
in the operation and implementation of the risk management
process, and to provide a source of assurance to the Audit
Committee that the processis operating effectively. This
approach aims to actively manage risk ina transparent and
accountable way.

The Risk Cotninittee reports to the Audit Committee.
Compesition of the Group Risk Committee includes
representatives fromour Ukrainian and Russian Risk
Comumittees to expand on therisks identified locally and their
related mitigation plans.

Risk management framework
The key elements of the risk management process are as follows:

Risk identification - risks faced by the Group are identified by
senior management and risk owners, who periodically review the
risks to ensure that the risk management processes and controls
intheir area are appropriate and effective, and that new risks are
identified.

Risk assessment - the consequence and likelihoed of eachrisk
materialising is assessed. Risk registers are used to document
the risks identified, the level of severity of its impact, and
probability of occurrence, ownership and mitigation measures
for eachrisk.

The Board has comgpleted a robust assessment of the most
significant risks and uncertainties which could impact the
business model, long-term performance, solvency or liquidity,
and the results are summarised below. Also presentedisan
assessment of the probability of each risk occurring, its patential
impact should it occur, the Key Performance Indicators (KPIg’)
and strategic priorities most affected as eachrisk increases, how
eachrisk is being managed or mitigated and whether the overall
business risk hasincreased or decreased since the last Annual
Report.

The principal risks set out (right} are not set out in any order of
priority, are likely to change and do not comprise all the risks and
uncertainties that the Group faces.

Risk profile

The chartbelow represents pur current assessment of the potential impact
and probability of occurrence of each of the principal risks noted below.
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Risksummary
Srrategle obrective
Risk profile What 1s the risk KPisaffected Change from 2018 wmpacted Respansibility Page
Liquidity, funding, - Operating cash flow 1.2 CFO 32
and portfolio - Liquidity \i:
management
Geopolitical and - Operating cash flow 12 The Board 32
@ fiscal - Production e
- Liquidity
Reservoir and - Production 1,2 Gerneral Directors 34
@ operational - Cash from operations e
performance ~EBITDA per boe
Financial discipline - Liquidity 1 CFO 34
m and governance - Cash from operations \é"’
Health, safety, - AIPR 3 The Board 34
@ and envirenment SLTI .
- EIFR
Asset integrity - Production 3 General Directors 34
@ - Liquidity o
Major breach of business, - Cash from operations 3 The Board 35
ethical, or compliance - Liquidity \L‘
standards
Commedity prices - Liquidity 1.2 CFO 36
and FX {luctuations - ERITDA per boe ’?‘
Global Covid-19 - Operating cash flow 1.2 The Board 36

pandemic

- Production
- Liguidity
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What is the risk Probability

Liquidity, funding, and portfolio management

Impact Change from
2019

production decline. Qur ability to ensure long-term sustainable production depends on having sufficient
funds to invest in our development and efficient allocation of capital on investment projects or
acquisitions.

T o0 As for any other exploration and production company, our fields are prone to natural E

{tisimpertant to maintain sufficient liquidity to allow for operational, techmeal, commercial, legal. and
other contingencies.

Having sufficient funds toinvest in developrnent projects or other grewth opportunities is subject to not
only cash flow generated by existing operations, but alsa access to external capital {such as equity or debt
financing) or ability to carry out corporate transactions (such as mergers, acquisitions, or divestitures),

{.. 22+ Inability to build or maintain sufficient liquidity may result in increased risk of having
insufficient funds on hand to address unanticipated cash outflows, need to suspend planned payments to
third parties, or other unplanned actions to urgently build sufficient hquidity.

Poor capital allocation decistons, inability to access external sources of capital or execute corporate
transactions may result in long-term decline in production and cash flow from existing operations and
further reduced ability to engage in new development projects.

Although the gloup has been debt free since February 2020 this risk remains.

Geopolitical and fiscal

m

. .+ . The Group's oil and gas operations are located in Ukraine and Russia and the oil, gas and
condensate that we produce is sold into their domestic markets.

There are geopolitical risks related to these countries and the relationship between them.

Some of such risks rnay be related to changes in taxes, capital controls, laws and regulations, political
situation, o investor sentiment.

Both countries have relatively weak judicial systems that are susceptible to outside influence, and it can
take an extended period for the courts to reach final judgment.

Both countries display emerging market characteristics where the right to production can be challenged
by State and non-State parties. The business environment is such that a challenge may arise at any time
in relation to the Group’s operations, licence history, compliance with licence cornmitments and/or local
regulations.

Local legislation constantly evolves as the governments attempt to manage the economies and business
practices regarding taxation, banking operations and foreign currency transactions. The constantly
evolving legislation can create uncertainty for local operations if guidance or interpretation is not clear.

Geuopolitical tensions between Ukraine and Russia, political instability and military action in parts

of Ukraine have negatively impacted its economy, financial markets and relations with the Russian
Federation. Any continuing or escalating military action in eastern Ukraine could have a further adverse
effect on the ecanomy.

{40 If Management's interpretation of tax legislation does not align with that of the tax authorities,
the tax authorities may challenge transactions which could result in addinional taxes. penalties and finas
which could have a material adverse effect on the Group's financial position and results of operations.

PPC has at times sought clarification of their status regarding a number of rental fees. PPC continues
to defenditself in court against action initiated by the tax authorities regarding rental fees for August
to December 2010 and for January to Decerber 2015, In addition, in February 2017, the Company

was awarded approximately $11 8min damages plus interest and costs of $0.3m by an internaticnal
arbitration tribunal pursuant to a claim made against Ukraine under the Energy Charter Treaty. This
award has been recognised in Ukraine and the Group is following procedures for its collection.

m o .
I
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Responsibility

How do we manage it”

Further information

CFO

Liquidity is accumulated by deferring high-risk investment projects and minimizing costs. Projects are
analysed and ranked across the Group and capital is allocated accordingly. All significant investment
decisions are subject to Board approval and taken with due consideration to funding availability. These
decisions are taken within the context of the longer term field development plans.

In addition in December 2019 PPC, cur subsidiary in Ukraine, has renewed a 24 month UAHZ80m
{511.8m}revelving credit line and a UAH50m ($2.1m) averdraft facility with Tascorbank, neither of
which are currently being used. We are confident that this facility can be renewed again for 2022 Cther
liquidity tools include the ability to make forward sales in Ukraine.

Four of the 2015 rental fee cases have been closed in PPC's favour, Furthermore we have improved our
understanding of the 2010 and the remaining 2015 rental fee claims and ensured that we have the
resources to meet these potential liabilities if necessary. In particular, careful consideration has been
given to the earliest dates that courts may conclude that PPC may be required te settle any or all of the
various claims in the event that court hearings proceed without undue delay. The Group's expectation
is that a final hearing with respect to the 2010 rental fee claim will take place in 2021 and that final
hearings in respect of the remaining active 2015 rental fee claims will take place in 2021.

Chairman's statement
page 4

Financial review

page 22

The Board

The Group's operations and financial position may be adversely affected by interruption, inspections and
challenges from local autharities, which could lead to remediation work, time-consuming negotiations
and suspension of production licences.

Inrespect of the 2010 rental fee claims and 2015 rental fee clairns, provisions of $15 9mand $25.4m
respectively. have been recognised in these financial statements to reflect the Company’s estirnate of the
potential liability. Except for this $41.3m provision, the Group's financial statements do not include any
other adjustments to reflect the possible future effects on the recoverability, and classification of assets
or the amounts or classifications of liabilities that may result from these tax uncertainties.

The Company continues to werk through the proper processes for enforcement of collection of the
international arbitration award. A key priority for the Group is to maintain transparent working
relationships with all key stakeholders in our significant assets in Ukraine and Russia and toimprove the
methods of regular dialogue and cn-going communications locally.

Qur strategy is to employ skilled lecal staff working in the countries of operation and to engage
established legal, tax and accounting advisers to assist in complisnce, when necessary. The Group
endeavours to comply with all regulations via Group procedures and cantrols or, where this is not
immediately feasible for practical or logistical constderations, seeks to enter into dialogue with the
relevant Government bodies.

Chairman's statement
page 4

Financial review
page 22
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Prin‘c:ipal risks and how we manage them

i

What is the risk Probability Impact Change from
2019

Reservoir and operational performance

frose - Subsurface and operational risks are inherent to our business. The reservoir performance
cannot be pred1Cted with certainty, and operations required for hydrocarbon production are subject to m m o]
risks of interruption or failure.

Production from our maturc fields at the Novomykolaivske Complex in Ukraine require a high level of

maintenance and intervention to minimize the production dechine. In Russia, acidization of deep, high

pressure and high temperature wells and other well maintenance procedures to stabilise production are
required, increasing risk of failure.

T o p= o Accurate reservoir performance forecasts frorm fields in Ukraine and Russia are critical in
achieving the desired economic returns and to determine the availability and allocation of funds for
future investment into the exploration for, or development of, other oil and gas reserves and resources.

If reservonr performance is lower than forecast, sufficient finance may not be available for planned
investment in other development projects which wall result in lower production, profits and cash flows.
Inability to ensure continuous operation of wells. flowlines, production facilities and successful execution
of drilling, werkover, repair, enhancement interventions may result in lower production, profits and cash
fiows.

Financial discipline and governance

ii, 2 riz v+ The Group has presence in four countries with major operations in Russia, Ukraine, and the ¥
United ngdom Such complex structure requires complex goveruance and control procedures to be in m %gﬁ
place to ensure appropriate level of financial discipline and controls. as well as delegation of authority

along the corporate and management structure.

From 2015 to 2019 the Group underwent several major Board and management changes, changes of

advisors and contracters, as well as significant reduction of staff across its operations. These changes

require additional efforts to ensure proper implerentation of governance, controls, and financial

discipline procedures.

Larpa o Failure to maintain an appropriate level of finaneial discipline, governance and controls may

lead to unnecessary or inappropriate spending, lack of control over procurement, contracting, investing

decisions, and expeosure to increased legal, regulatory, or financial risks.

Health, safety. and environmental risks

IO : We are exposed to a wide range of significant health, safety, security and environmental
rlsks 1nf1uenced by the geographic range, operational diversity and technical complexity of our oil and gas m m T
exploration and production activities.
The Group has not assessed Climate Change as being a significant risk to its business in the foreseeable
future. We monitor supply and dernand forecasts for our products from a variety of sources and Chimate
Change does not appear as a major cited factor. If political responses to Clirrate Change actually lead to
ruajor reduct1ons in coal - fired European electricity generation, the Group may benefit from substitution
by cleaner gas - fired plant.
:» Technical failure, non-compliance with existing standards and procedures, accidents, natural
disasters and other adverse conditions where we operate, could lead to injury, loss of life, damage to the
environment, loss of containment of hydrocarbons and other hazardous material, as well as the risk of
fires and expinsions. Failure to manage these risks effectively could result in loss of certain facilities,
with the associated loss of production, or costs associated with mitigation, recovery, compensation and
fines, Poor performance in mitigating these risks could also result in damaging publicity for the Group.

Asset integrity

ivs.eozts. Qur operations depend on maintaining and adhering to licence requirements and related

regulations set by government authorities in countries we operate in. m M SEWTE
Ioop ozt Failure to comply with licence obligations and other regulations er requirements may result in

our licences being suspended or revoked which will require us to suspend production and operations.
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Responsibility How do we manage it? Further information
General There is daily monitoring and reporting of the well and plant performance at all our fields. Preduction Operations review
Directors datais analysed by our in-house technical expertise. This supports well intervention planning and further page 16
field development.
Our subsurface and operations specialists and industry-recognised personnel are part of the daily
monitoring and reservoir management process of our field and assets,
Production forecasts generated for future development opportunities are risked to take account of
geological uncertainty. Operational risks are taken account of by adding a percentage of contingency to
the duration and cost of the planned development action. The percentage of contingency added is based
on both historical experience and perceived difficulty of the development action.
CFO During 2018 new financial controls were irnplemented and corporate governance was enhanced, Chairman's staternent
including through more frequent and detailed management reporting to the Board of Directors. page 4
A Group Policy Manual has been irmplemented across the group. [t is subject to annual review and revision
by the Board to ensure that governance and control procedures are sufficient to insure the appropriate Financial review
level of financial discipline and controls, as well as delegation of authority along the corporate and page 22
management structure.
General Health, safety and the environment is a priority of the Board who are involved in the planning and Corporate social
Directors implementation of continuous improvement initiatives. A London-based HSECQ Manager reports directly responsibility
to Board of Directors. page 25
The Group HSECQ Manager is respensible for maintaining a strong culture of health, safety and
envirenmental awareness in all our cperational and business activities. The HSECQ Manager raports to
the Board with details of Group performance.
Cperations in Ukraine, Russia and Hungary all have a dedicated HSECQ Team of local personnel led by an
HSEC{Q Manager who reports to the HSECQ Director for that particuiar region.
Alllocations have HSE Management Systems modelled on the ISO 9000 series, OHSAS 18001 and 150
14001.
Appropriate insurance policies, provided by reputable insurers, are maintained at Group level to mitigate
the Group's financial exposure to any unexpected adverse events arising out of the normal operations.
General Status of cur licences and relevant licence obligations are monitored on a country level. Corporate social
Directors In 2018 the deadline for the Callovian well drilling cormitment in Russia, whichis the Group's largest respo;lsmbihty
page

single commitment, was extended until 2025.

Corporate governance
page 40
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Principa al risks and how we manage them

What is the risk

Major breach of business, ethical, or compliance standards

Probability

Impact

Change from
2019

o :+ The Company is subject to nurnerous requirernents and standards including UK Bribery Act,
UK L\‘%\H\g R\.\les UK Corperate Gevernance Code, and the Disclosure and Transparency Rules, among
others. Additionally, sorme of our stakeholders, such as financial institutions, may require us to comply
with other requirernents or ask us to provide information on our business, operations, employees and
sharehelders as part of Know Your Client {*KYC") procedures.

T ne o7 Failling to comply with onerous regulations and regnirements, such as fallure toimplement
adequate systems to prevent bribery and corruption, could result in prosecution, fines or penalties
imposed on the Company er its officers, suspension of operations or listing.

Inability to clear KYC procedures to satisfaction of the third parties may result in refusal to engage in
business relationships with the Company.

Commoedity prices and FX fluctuations

R %

feseipor JKXis exposed tointernational oil and gas price movements, policy developments in Russia
which may affect the regulated gas price, and movements in exchange rates. Such changes will have a
direct effect on the Group’s trading results.

Gas prices in Ukraine are closely aligned with gas prices in Europe. Ukraine does not currently purchase
gas from Russia directly. Change in gas import flows may have irnpact on gas prices in Ukraine, and a
prolonged period of low gas prices would impact the Group's liquidity.

In Russia, from 1 July 2019 the regulated price to which our sales contract is tied has increased by 3.9%
however, prevailing prices remain significantly loawer than in Europe due to existing regulaticns.

In Ukraine PPC sells the oll it produces at prices determined by a combination of the global oil market and
local market factors.

During 2019, both the Hryvnia and the Rouble strengthened moderately.

iy Aperiod of low oil and/or gas prices could lead toimpairments of the Group’s oil and gas assets

and may impact the Group's ability to support its field development plans and reduce shareholder returns.

Global Covid-19 pandemic.

wgm

-..» The Group's 0il and gas operations are located m Ukraine and Russia with a head office
located in the United Kingdom. Alllocations are suffaering from increasing levels of Covid-19 infection
and in due course there may be increasing disruption of normal working patterns, The national and local
governments in all locations are recormmending or implementing increasingly severe restrictions in order
to manage the situation.

In view of the risk the Group’s primary objectives include:

i} Protecting the health of the Group's staff, contractors and suppliers and those in the
communities from which they are drawm:

if) Maintaining the Group’s operations and business more generally and ensure that high levels of
operational safety are maintained; and

i1} Maximising sales prices inan unpredictable market.

i ;a Increasing levels of infection and restrictions on moverment have the potenhal to negatively
impact the Group and specifically the operating companies. These impacts may include a reduction in the
number of staff fit to work, a reduced ability to conduct production operations, contractors and suppliers
being unable to provide the necessary support, a reduction in demand and lower sales prices. If these
risks crystallise there may be business constraint or intersuption, reduced production, 2 fall in demand
and reduced szles prices and a consequent reduction in the Group's ability to commit to new capital
expenditure,

T
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Responsibility

How do we manage it?

Further inforrmation

The Board

The CFOis responsible for cormpliance and, with the support of the Board, implements compliance-related
activitiss and procedures.

Such activities focus on training, monitoring, risk management, due diligence and regular review of
policies and procedures.

We prohibit bribery and corruptionin any form by all ernploye¢s and by those working for and/or
connected with the business. Employees are expected toreport actual, attempted or suspected bribery
or other issues related to compliance to their line managers or through our independently managed
confidential reporting process, which is available to all staff as well as third parties.

In 2017 we engaged an independent consultant to assess our anti-bribery and corruption (“ABC") policies,
procedures, and practices and in 2018 we engaged KPMG to conduct a forensic review of procurement

of legal services and subsequent payments made to legal advisors in Ukraine in 2017. Recommendations
arising from both have been implemented to further strengthen our ABC framework. This included
completion of a full Bribery Risk Assessment.

Indealing with the third parties, our policy is to maximize transparency and provide all information
available to address KYC-related procedures and requests.

Corporate social
responsibility
page 25

Corporate governance
page 40

CFO

JKX's policy is not te hedge commodity price exposure on oil, gas, LPG or condensate and not to hedge
foreign exchange risk.

JKX attempts to maximise its realisations versus relevant benchmarks while keeping credit risk tea
minimum by selling mostly on spot markets and onr a prepayment basis.

As commodity prices in Ukraine closely follow international benchmarks, significant changes in the
exchange rates are reflected in commeodity prices providing a natural hedge.

In Russia, the vast majority of gas produced is sold to a single local gas trading company through a long
term gas sales contract with prices set in Roubles. Sales price for gas is fixed and is subject to increase
according to changes in a tariff set by relevant regulatory bodies. The Company continues to seek other
sales oppartunities in Russia to improve realisations.

The Group attempts to match, as far as practicable. receipts and payments in the same currency and also
follow a range of commercial policies to minimise exposures to foreign exchange gains and losses.

Financial review
page 22

Strategic report
Page 13

The Board

[n crder to manage this risk the Group (and in particular the 2 operating units, PPC and YGE) have
undertaken a holistic review of the likely impact on their businesses and have implemented a range of
escalating and proportionate responses. These responses include,

a) Undertaking awareness-raising in all locations;

b} Introducing and enforcing social distancing and remote-werking, canceliation of business frips
and meetings and the use of remete working solutions,

c) Enhanced cleaning regimes for certain Group facihities;

d) Temperature screening of staff and contractors at entry points,

e} Active liaison with local regional and national government:

f) Securing normal business activities including oil and LPG loading, drilling and work aver
activity;

g} Taking steps to minimise exposure to further commodity price decrease; and

=

Reducing costs to maintain Group liquidity.

Chairman's statement
page 4

Chief Executive's
statement
page 6
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Long term viability statement

The Directors have assessed the viability of the Group overathree-
year period to 31 December 2022 taking account of the Group's
current pasitionand the potential impact of the principalrisks
documented above.

Summary of the strategicreviewby country

= Ukraine[n 2018 we developed a five year field development
plan (medium term), that we are now executing. In addition,
we systematicallyreview opportunities for acquisitionand
new licensing inUkraine.

*  RussiaOperations, production and cash flowarestablein
Russia, following completion of a workover programme
in2018.

*  HungaryWe areinthe process of disposing of our six mining
plotsin Hungary.

The Board believes that the Group's assetsand staff provide agood
platformto consolidate and improve onits existing oiland gas
opportunities.

The Group hasbeen operating in Ukraine for over 25 yearsand

in Russia for over 10 years. Most of the Group's profitsand cash
flows continue to be generated in Ukraine and, toalesser extent,

in Rugsia. However there remainsignificant risks associated with
operating inthe emerging marketsingeneral, and operating our
assets specifically, which could adverselyimpact cash flows, profits
and liquidity of the Group.

Assessment of viability

The Board closely monitorsand manages its liquidity risk using
cash flow forecasts whichareregularly produced and applies
sensitivities for different scenarios including, but not limited
to, changesin ciland gasprices, changesin Roubleand Hryvnia
exchange rates, various scenarios for reservoir performance,
and delays toaddirional future revenue. These sensitivities are
considered bothindividually and inunison.

The assessment incorporated the use of mitigatingactions
available to the business, suchas areduction in capital expenditure
and use of external facilities.

Capital and operating costs were based on approved budgets and
latest forecastsin the case of 2020 and current development plans
inthe case of 2021 through to Decernber 2022, Inaddition, the
Directors made enquiries into and considered the Ukrainianand
Russian business environments and future expectations regarding
country and currency risks that the Group may encounter. as
disclosed in therisks above. Inaddition, the Board has considered
potential reverse stress tests performed to assess the impact of
Covid-18 including production stoppages combined with sustained
lower comrmodity prices as detailed innote 2 to the financial
statements.

Principalrisksfacing the Group

For the purposes of assessing the Group's viability, the Directors
focused on the following principal risks which are critical to the
Group's success but which are outside the control of management
and could have a significant impact onthe business:

= Commodity pricesand FX fluctuations
The Groupisexposedtointernational oil and gas price
movements, policy developments in Russia which mayaffect
theregulated gas price, and movements in exchange rates. Such
changes willhave adirect effect on the Group's trading results,
* Potentialrental feeclaims
The Company has persistently defended its positionin the
Ukrainian courtsregarding the rentalfee claimsfor 2010
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ipal risks and how we manage them

and 2015 totalling approximately $41.3 million (including
interest and penaliies, see Note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements). The Company will continue to defend
its position inthe Ukrainian courts inatl outstanding cases.
the Directors have given careful consideration to the earliest
datesthat courts may conclude that any or all of the claims
may be required to be settled and ensured that the resources
are availahle to meet these liabilities if necessary, basedon the
expected timing of potential payments {see Financialreview
page 22).

* GlobalCovid-19 pandemic
Thisrisk arose in 2020 and the Board of Directors continue
tomenitor its potential impact. The potentialimpact of the
pandemic is currently unknowrn but may include production
disruptiondue to government restrictions, impact on our
workforce, supply chain disruption, customer sales and ability
toaccess funding facilities as detailed in note 2to the financial
statements.

Confirmation of longer-term viability

The Board has undertaken a robust assessment of these risks

and the other principalrisks faced by the business detailed on
pages 3010 39 of the Anneal Repert. Asnoted in the going concern
disclosures in note Zto the financial statements which highlight a
material uncertainty inrespect of going concern, should the 2010
and certain 2015 rental fee claims fall due inthenext 12 months
ordisruption to production occur in excess of one month due to the
Covid-19in conjunction with depressed prices, the Group would
likely need to utilise its Tascom facilities, make forward gassales,
agreea payment plan with the tax authorities or take such other
measures as necessary to safeguard its viability. Asset outinthe
going concerndisclosures the Board anticipates such stepstobe
achievable and therefore, combined with the debt-free status of the
Group, its cash resources and anticipated cash generation the Board
hasareasonable expectation that the Company will continue to be
viable and meetits liabilities over the assessment period.

Section 172 Statement

The Directors are mindful of their duty to promote the success of
the Company inaccordance with S 172 of the Comnpanies Act for
thebenefit of its members as a whole and in doing so to haveregard
for the matterssetoutinS 172{1) (a}-(f). Further details of howthe
Directors nave had regard to theissues, factors and stakeholders
considered relevant incomplying with S 172 {1} (a)-{f), the methods
usedtoengage with stakeholders and the effectonthe Group's
decision during the year can be found throughout this report
andinparticularatpage 12 (where mattersrelating ta the
Group's business model, stakeholder map and stakeholder relations
are addressed), page 13 {where strategic objectives are addressed).
pages 14and 15 and the CSRreport on page 25{inrelationte
decision-making).

The Directorshave applied a structured decision-making process
supported by detailed information relevant to any decision. In
addition the Board has received regular management information
and HSE updates from expertly qualifiedstaff. Thisinformation
has, when appropriate, expressly addressed the interests of
employees, the impact onbusiness relatianships with suppliers,
customers and others, the impact of the Company and Group's
operations onrelevarnt communities and the environment, the
potentialimpact on the Company's reputation for high standards,
with Board decisions being recorded in writing and maintained as
partof the Company's minutes. This process aims to ensure that all
relevant issues are identified and considered by the Board whilst
coming to adecisioncnany issue.
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Governance and

Financial statements

The Board has encouraged senior management in each location to
engage with staff, suppliers, customers and the communityinorder
toassist the Board indischarging its obligations. Board members
also carry out regular site visitsenabling staff toraise issues
directlywiththemandto enable themto meet key contractors
when necessary.

The Board has undertaken specific training with its private
practice corporate lawyers inarder to ensure thatitisaware of
itsresponsibilities under 5172 and in particular to ensure that
allmermbersare fully aware of the need to act fairly betweenits
members, especially given the presence of a nuinber of long term
significant shareholders and the existence of a nominee of the
largest sharehalder on its Board.
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Board composition
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Board composition

Charles Valceschini Chairman
Aogsintad - 16 September 2019

Tagoriroor - Mr Valceschini has worked in the oil and gas sector for nearly 40 years
and currently specialises in the provision of technical and commercial advice toa wide
range of upstream oil and gas companies. Mr Valceschini was previously engaged in
technical and leadership roles for arange of commpanies including BP, TNK-BP and other
intarnational upstream companies. During 2000 and 2001 he was CEQ and CFO of
American Energy Group Limited. Mr Valceschini has a degree in Petroleum Engineering
frem the University of Wyorning, an MSc in Engineering Management from Portland
State University and is an alumnus of the INSEAD Executive Management programme
and Moscow School of Management at Skolkovo Project Academy.

Victor Gladun Executive Director, Chief Executive Officer
Apsainted - 23 May 2019

Experienes - Victor Gladun studied engineering and finance. He gradnated from
Harvard Law School (International Taxation), participated in Harvard University's
project on macroeconomic transformations in Ukraine, and holds the US Brandeis
University's Master's Degree in Sustainable International Development. Victor held
executive positions in a number of leading international companies in the USA, Ukraine,
and Russia. He has worked for TNK-BP, Mitsubishi Motors/NIKO and DTEK. Victor has
experience in business development. promotion and crisis management.

Tony Alves Sernior Independent Director
i— 16 September 2013

Esperiev oz —Mr Alves has worked in the oil and gas sector for over 30 years. From
January 2008 until June 2016 he served as an Executive Director and Chief Financial
Officer for AIM Listed Volga Gas plc, with whom he remains as a consultant. Previously
he was one of the leading equity analysts covering the sector including periods as Head
of Oiland Gas research for Peel Hunt and with Investec, Bell Group International and
Schroders, Mr Alves read Mathematics at Cambridge University, bothas an
undergraduate and a post-graduate research student.

Dr.Rashid Javanshir Non Executive Director

Apziinted - 16 September 2019

Expariz .y - Dr. Rashid Javanshir worked at BP for over 20 years in senior
management roles including Senior Vice President for Strategy & Integration in Global
Upstream, London (2012 - 2015) and Regional President for Azerbaifan - Georgia -
Turkey (2009 -2012). He also led BP's Southern North Sea Gas Qperations in 2003-20086.
Dr. Javanshir is a distinguished scientist with more than 150 books and papers
published internationally. He holds a PhD in Geophysics from Moscow Gubkin
University and a Doctoral Degree in Geology and Mineralogy from the Institute of
Geology in Baku. He has completed management programmes in several US
Universities, and is an alumnus of Harvard Business School.
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Michael Bakunenko Non Executive Director
Appairted -8 December 2017

Fuperier o3 — an Executive Chairman of the Board at PISC Ukrnaftoburinnya, the third
largest private oil and gas E&P Company in Ukraine since September 2015. From 2011
to 2015 Mr. Bakunenko was Deputy Board Chairmar, Director of Corporate
Development and Strategy at PISC Ukrnafta, the largest oil company in Ukraine. Prior
to this Mr. Bakunenko worked for B years in the investment banking industry, notably
at Goldman Sachs in New York and Renaissance Capital in Moscow and Kiev. Mr.
Bakunenkoe holds a Bachelor's degree from Lehigh University and 2 Master’s degree
from Columbia University.

Anpointed Resigned/Stond Dowr
Hans Jochum Horn Chairman 24 October 2017 23 May 20189
Andrey Shtyrba Non Executive Director 24 Octeber 2017 22 August 2019

Adrian Coates Non Executive Director

8 December 2017 23 May 2019

Christian Bukovics Non Executive Director 9 February 2018 22 August 2019
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Corporate governance

Governance principles

The Company has a premium listing on the London Stock Exchange and is subject to the Listing Rules of the UK Listing Authority. The
Board is committed to applying the principles of the 2018 UK Corporate Governance Code {'the Code’) and relevant institutional
shareholder guidelines. This section explains in more detail how we have applied these provisions.

JKX’s Group-wide policies and procedures provide a framewark for governance and are underpinned by the Group's Cade of Conduct.
Good governance is taken seriously and the Board sets the tone and takes the lead to ensure that good practice flows throughout the
Group.

Governance framework

Chairman

BOARD
Non Executive Chairman,
3 Non Executive Directors {(including two independent
Non Executive Directors) .
Executive Director !
e e I PR el e
i [ [ [

Nomination : . Group Risk ‘ Audit ‘ : Remuneration
Committee : : Committee : Committee : ; Committee

| PPCRisk Committee  YGERisk Committee

JKX Board changes during 2019

On 23 May 2019 the 2019 AGM was held at which all directors. including the Chairman, stood down and presented themselves for
reappointment by the Shareholders.

Hans Jochum Horn and Adrian Coates were not reappointed and irnmediately ceased to be directors. Christian Bukovics and
Andrey Shtyrba were reappointed but resigned on the same day, their notice period expiring on the 22 August 2019. Mr Victor
Gladun was appointed as an Executive Director at the same AGM.

Following the 2019 AGM the Board consisted of 2 independent non-executive directors (Christian Bukovics and Andrey Shtyrba)
one non-executive director who was not independent (Michael Bakunenko) and an executive director { Victor Gladun!).

Following the expiry of the notice period of Christian Bukovics and Andrey Shtyrba on the 22 August 2019 the Board consisted of
one non-executive director who was not independent (Michael Bakunenko) and an executive director { Victor Gladun).

On 16 September 2019, following a search by independent executive search consultants (Ward Howell International). Mr Charles
Valceschini was appointed as an independent non-executive director and Chairman, Mr Tony Alves was appointed as an
independent non-executive director and Senior Independent Directer and Mr Rashid Javanshir was appeinted as an independent,
non-executive director. Ward Howell International has no other connection with the Cormpany or any director.

* Victor Gladun is a director appointed from the workforce in accordance with the recommendations of Chapter 1 Provision 5 of
the Cade. The Board believes he will bring a workforce view to the boardroom and as a financial professional and General Director
of PPC s in a position to contribute to discussions on wider issues.




43 JKX Oil & Gas plc Ann.al Repor: 2019

On 20September 2019 the following Board Committee appointments were made: Nomination Cemmittee: Charles Valceschini
(Committee Chairman), Tony Alves, Dr. Rashid Javanshir, Michael Bakunenke, Victor Gladun; Remuneration Committee: Dr.
Rashid Javanshir (Committee Chairman), Charles Valceschini, Tony Alves; and Audit Committee: Tony Alves, {Committee
Chairman}, Dr. Rashid JTavanshir, On the same date Victor Gladun was appointed as Chief Executive Officer of the Group.

The Greup is now led by a Board of Directors consisting of a Non Executive Chairman, twe independent Non Executive Directors,
one Non Executive Director wha represents the interests of Eclairs, JKX's largest shareholder with a helding of over 27% and an
Executive Chairman.

During the Peried from 23 May until 20 September the Board did not comply with the Cede in relation to the makeup of the Board
(where there were insufficient independent non-executive directors during certain periods}, the Chairman of the Beard (where
there was none appointed from 23 May until 16" September) and the Board Committees (where due to the makeup of the Board
they were not constituted in accordance with the requirements of the Code). In additien Dr Rashid Javanshir did not have at least
12 months experience on a Remuneration Committee before being appointed as Chairman of that Committee. The Board however
tock into account the size of the Group, the existing rernuneraticn structure and Dr Javanshir's general rmanagement experience
and considered him well suited to the role.

Board effectiveness

Boleof the Buard

The Board provides leadership to the Group. Key matters reserved for the consideration and the approval of the Board are:
= setting and monitoring Group strategy;

= review of Group business plans, trading performance and costs;
= review and approval of the annual sperating and capital expenditure budgets;

approval of capital investment projects across the Group;

= examination of acquisition opportunities, divestment possibilities and significant financial and operational issues;

= remuneration policy {through the Remuneration Committee);

= appointments tc the Board {through the Nominations Committee) and senior management, Committee membership and
remuneration for Directors and senier management;

» review and approval of the Company’s financial statements (through the Audit Committee);

v setting any interim dividend and recommendation of the final dividend; and

* ensuring that significant business risks are actively monitored and managed using robust centrol and risk management systems.

Inaddition, the Board considers strategy in depth as well as reviewing the strategic objectives of the Company at each of its Board
meetings.

All other authorities are delegated by the Board, supported by appropriate contraols, to the Chief Executive, Chief Financial Officer and
General Directors of PPC and YGE.

fowthe Board funations
The Board has historically held six scheduled meetings each year, and arranges additional meetings if the need arises. During 2019,
there were five unscheduled Board rueetings (2018: six}), including one meeting at which the Non Executive Directors met in private
session, with an open agenda to discuss the current issues affecting the Group (2018: once). The number of unscheduled Board meetings
in 2019 was needed for the Board members to build a strategic direction for the Company and to address ongoing developments.

The Chairman, in consultation with the Directors and senior executives, sets the agenda for Board meetings. All Directors receive
comprehensive docurnentation prior to each meeting on the ratters to be discussed.

Morehly Board reporting
The Group provides the Board with a monthly performance update each month after the month end. The monthly reports outline all
material operational, health & safety, financial, commercial and strategic developments.

The monthly reports consclidate all financial and operational information from all parts of the Group and include actual performance
against budget and forecast for oil and gas production, sales and costs.

These reports provide the Board with the latest information on cash. cash flow forecast, receivables and payables and the implications
of key sensitivities including changes in preduction, commodity prices, production taxes and exchange rates. These monthly reports
ensure that board members remain properly briefed on the performance and financial position of the Group.

Board meeting documeants
Prior to each set of meetings the Chairman ensures that all the relevant papers and other information is delivered, where possible, at
least five days in advance of the meeting date so that all Directors have the necessary time to review in detail the latest information.
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Suzportfor Dicecwors
The Board has adopted a policy whereby Directors may, in the furtherance of their duties, seek independent professional advice at the
Company's expense.

Each Director has the benefit of a deed of indemnity from the Company and its subsidiaries in respect cf claims made and liabilities
incurred, in either case arising out of the bona fide discharge by the Director of his or her duties. The Company has also arranged
appropriate directors’ and officers’ insurance cover in respect of legal action against Directors of the Company and its subsidiaries.

Committees of the Board in 2019

During 2019 the Board had three committees focusing on specialist areas, which were ultimately accountable to the Beard. These
comprised:

= the Audit Committee;
= the Nominations Cornmittee; and

= the Remuneration Committee.
The Beard committees met independently and provided feedback to the main Board through their chairmen.
There was also an executive Risk Committee chaired by the Chief Financial Cfficer and comprising group employees.

Committee memberships during 2019

Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee

Hans Jochum Horn! Member Member Chairman

Michael Bakunenko Member Member? Member®

Christian Bukovics? - Member Mermber

Adrian Coates? Chairrman - Mernber

Andrey Shtyrba® Member Chairman Member

Charles Valceschini® - Member Chairman

Tony Alves? Chairman Member Member

Victor Gladun* - - Mermber

Rashid javanshir? Member Chairman Member

Ceased tobe a director and to twld any comunittee appeintments from 23 May 2019,

Ceased tobe a member on 20September 2019

Ceased tobe adirector and to hold any committee appointments from 22 August 2019

Appointed as a member of the Board on 16 Septemmber 2019 and a member of the relevant board committees en 20 September 2019,
Appointed as a member an 20September 2019

PPV,

Theroles and activities of each of these comuittees during 2019 are noted on pages 45, 46, 51 and 58.

Jndepeadence and commitmant

Untll the 23 May 2019 the Board camprised 5 individuals:

= The Non Executive Chairman {Hans Jochum Horn),

= 1 Non Executive Director {(Michael Bakunenko) representing the interests of Eclairs, JKX's largest shareholder with a holding of over
27%, and

“ 3independent Non Executive Directors (Christian Bukovics, Adrian Coates, Andrey Shtyrba) whe were assessed as independent on
the basis, inter alia, that the matters set out in Provision 10 of the Code did not apply to them.

Following the decision of the AGM not to reappoint Hans Jochum Horn and Adrian Coates on 23 May 2019 the Board comprised 4
individuals:

= 1 Non Executive Director (Michael Bakunenko) representing the interests of Eclairs, JKX's largest sharehclder with a holding of over
27%, and

» Zindependent Non Executive Directors {Christian Bukovics and Andrey Shtyrba) who were assessed as independent on the basis,
inter alia, that the matters set out in Provision 10 of the Cede did not apply to them.

= ] Executive Director (Victor Gladun).
Following the expiry of Christian Bukovics and Andrey Shtyrba's notice period on 22 August 2019 the Board comprised 2 individuals:

= 1 Non Executive Director representing the interests of Eclairs, JKX's largest shareholder with a holding of aver 27%. and
= 1Executive Director {Victor Gladun).
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Following the appointment of Charles Valceschini, Tony Alves and Rashid Javanshir on 16 September 2013 the Board comprised 5

individuals:

s The Non Executive Chairman (Charles Valceschini),

* 1 Non Executive Director {Michael Bakunenko) representing the interests of Eclairs, JKX's largest shareholder with a holding of over
27%, and

= 2independent Non Executive Directors (Tony Alves, Rashid Javanshir) who were assessed as independent on the basis, inter alia, that
the matters set out in Provision 10 of the Code did not apply to them: and

= 1 Executive Director (Victer Gladun).

It is the Board's view that the current Non Executive Directors have sufficient time to fulfil their commitments to the Company. The
Board does however regularly consider the appropriateness of Board compaosition.

Beard skills sxperience and resporsibilities

The Board has significant knowledge and experience of the oil and gas industry, engineering and financial mattersin central and
eastern Europe, particularly Ukraine and Russia as well as Central Asia. The key biographical details, relevant experience and
responsibilities of each Director are provided cn pages 40 and 41.

The Non Executive Directors bring the skills and expertise necessary to challenge effectively, independently and constructively, the
performance of the Company and its strategy.

Board divarsity
During the period covered by this report the Board consisted entirely of men, The Board consisted of 4 different nationalities at
31 December 2019.

Gender is only one aspect of diversity, and there are many other attributes and experiences that can improve the Board's ability to act
effectively. Qur policy is to search for the highest quality people with the most appropriate experience for the requirements of the
business, be they men or womer.

The Board supports the longer term aspirations of Lard Davies' repert regarding gender diversity on appeintment of directors to boards
and will maintain its practice of embracing diversity in all its forms, but has chosen not to set any measurable objectives, Currently the
CEO and his immediate reports consist entirely of men.

Senior Indepondent Durester
Adrian Cecates was Senior Independent Director {'SID") until 23 May 2019. Following the decision of the AGM not to reappeint Adrian
Coates as a Director on 23 May 2019 there was no SID until Tony Alves was appointed as SID on 16 September 2018,

The SID is available for discussions with other Non Executive Directers who may have concerns which they believe have not been
properly considered by the Board as a whole.

R key responsibility of the SID is to ensure he is available to shareholders if they have concerns that have not been resolved by contact
through the normal channels of Chairman, Chief Executive and Chief Financial Officer or where such contact is inappropriate.

2015 Baoavd evaluation procass

During the first quarter of 2013 the Senior Independent Director reviewead the performance of the Chairman and the Nominaticn
Committee carried out an internal Board and Committee Evaluation. In both cases detailed feedback was provided and where relevant
acticn plans put in place to address any issues.

Externatevaluation
As the Company was outside of the FTSE 350 during 2019 there was no requirement for an externally-facilitated evaluation of the
Board at least every three years, although an internal Board and committee evaluation was conducted. The Chairman will consider the

relevance of an externally facilitated evaluation in due course.

I

Devalopr of the Board

All Directors are provided with opportunities for further development and training updates. In addition to the updates on governance,
legal and regulatory matters, the Board receives invitations to detailed briefings from advisers and at their serminars on a variety of
topics that are relevant to the Group and its strategy. The newly appointed Directors all received a full day’s induction training session,
including specific presentations on key topics and detailed briefings on legal, regulatory and compliance matters from the Company’s

externallegal, financial and communications advisers.
Board activities

Astandancsatmaztings

When a Director is unable to participate in a meeting either in person or remotely because of another engagement, they are provided
with the briefing materials and the Chairman will solicit their views on key items of business ahead of time, in order for the views to be
presented at the meeting and influence the debate.

The number of meetings of the Board and its committees during 2019 and individual attendarce by Director is shown below:




46 JKX Dv) & Gas ple Annual Report 2019 m

EIMATTL

Corporate governance

Suard and Committas raseting attendanne in 2018

Number of meetings

Board Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Nomination Committee
11 3 3 3
Attendance/Eligibility:
Board Audit Committee Remuneration Committee Normination Committee
Hans Jochum Horn 3/3 2/2 1/1 1/1
Michael Bakunenko 10/11 2{2 1/1 -
Christian Bukovics 717 _ 1/1 1/1
Adrian Coates 3/3 2/2 - 1/1
Andrey Shtyrba 6/7 2/2 A 1/1
Charles Valceshini 3/3 2/2 2/2 2/2
Tony Alves 3/3 1/1 2/2 2/2
Victor Gladun 8/8 R . - - - -
Rashid Javanshir 3/3 1/1 2/2 2/2

Senior management from across the Group, and advisers, attend some of the meetings for the discussion of specific items in greater

depth. This is important to the Board as it further enhances the Board's understanding of operations and the implementation of

strategy.

Borovd swaeriduning 2008

During the year the Board used a rolling agenda of strategy, finance, operatioens, commercial matters, corporate governance and

compliance including the matters set out below. All Directors have the autherity to add any item to the Board agenda.

= Reports from the General Directors of each of the two major operating units on strategic, and operational matters including political
and economic developments,

» The Chief Financial Officer's report, and following his appointment the Chief Executive Officer's report, which includes a report of
actual performance against budget, reforecasting, updates onoil, gas and condensate prices,

= HSECQ matters,

= Additional funding and growth epportunities.

» Compliance (including Anti Bribery and Corruption} issues,

= Where applicable, reports from the Nominations Comrnittee, Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee,

In addition te the standing agenda items and annual Board responsibilities in respect of the Group's reporting, other topics covered by
the Board during the year included:

* the implementation of the Board’s updated strategy for the Company reflecting matters such as the deployment of an improved
contractor base, a focus on cost control and the execution of low risk, high margin operations;

» managing the Group's liquidity including the payment of principal and interest on the existing Convertible Bond;

= review of crude oil and gas storage strategy;

* reduction in overhead costs and improved efficiency;

* increased transparency and engagement with shareholders regarding production and operations with a regular reporting schedule.

* identifying and addressing critical gapsin the Board and senior management team;

* monitoring enhanced management information updates focussing on key parameters including production, liquidity and future cash
flow;

= disposal of non-core assets and reviewing the group portfolio;

= review of organic and inerganic growth opportunities, particularly in Ukraine;

= simplification of Group structure;

» review and management of ongoing tax and other litigation;

= identifying sources of third party financing; and

» appointment of expert executive search agents and identification of appropriate replacement directors.
Faezlecting your Board

The Board contains a broad range of experience and skills from a variety of industries and advisory roles, which fully complement each other.
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In line with the Code all the Directors {including the Chairman) stood down and offered themselves for reappointment at the 2019
Annual General Meeting,. Additionally Victor Gladun was proposed for appointment as a director.

Whiist Michael Bakunenko, Victor Gladun, Andrei Shtyrba and Christian Bukovics were reappointed at the AGM Hanrs Jochum Horn
and Adrian Coates were not. Immediately following the conclusion of the 2019 AGM Andrey Shtyrba and Christian Bukovics tendered
their resignations which expired on 22 August 2019.

3 further independent non-executive directors (Charles Valceschini, Tony Alves and Dr. Rashid Javanshir) were appointed by the Board
on 16Septermnber 2019, as described on page 42.

In line with the recommendations of the Code the Directors have all agreed to stand down and submit themselves to the shareholders
for reappointment at the 2020 AGM.

Full biographies of all the Directors can be found on pages 40 and 41

Maminztion Comnirtee

The role of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size, skills and composition of the Company Board and the Boards of
companies owned by JKX Oil & Gas ple. The Comumittee also considers succession planning and suitable nominations for appointments
tc the Boards, and makes appropriate recommendations based on qualifications and experience. The Nomination Committee regularly
reviews the management structure of the Company and seeks ways to minimise any negative impact. During Q1 2019 the Nemination
Committee carried out an internal Board and Committee evaluation

The Committee meets as often as it determines is appropriate. Generally it meets at least once a year and more frequently if required.

Nurnber of meetingsin 2019

Committee member since To Attendance/Eligibility
Hans Jochum Horn (Chairman) November 2017 23 May 2019 1/1
Christian Bukovics February 2018 22 August 2019 1/1
Adrian Coates December 2017 23 May 2019 1/1
Andrey Shtyrba November 2017 22 August 2018 1/1
Charles Valceschini (Chairman) September 2019 Present 22
Tony Alves September 2019 Present 2/2
Michael Bakunenko September 2019 Present 2/2
Victor Gladun September 2019 Present 2/2
Rashid Javanshir Septernber 2012 Present 2/2

The Committee met 3 times during 2019 (2018: 5). During 2019 3 new independent Non Executive Directors (Charles Valceschini, Tony
Alves and Rashid Javanshir) were appointed following a search by an independent search consultant (Ward Howell International ) that
has no cther connection with the Group. Inaddition Victor Gladun was appointed as an executive director and Chief Executive Officer
in addition to his existing role as General Director of PPC.

Memborshipandproosys

During 2019 the membership of the Nomination Committee underwent significant change as a consequence of changes in the Board
membership. In order to ensure continuity of understanding the new members of the Board were provided with copies of previous
committee minutes and the Chairman ensured that new Directors were provided with a full induction.

In the period from 22 August until 20 September the Nomination Cornmittee did not cornply with the Code a5 there were no
independent naon-executive directors until 16 September.

The letters of appointment of each Non Executive Director are available for inspection at the registered office of the Company.

Suzcession planning

The Board is respensible for succession planning for Directorships and key management roles. This requires performance and talent
assessment in order to ensure that able successors for key roles are identified and then provided with suitable oppoertunities through
career and personal development plans. It is crucial that we remunerate our most talented people fairly and properly such that they are
maore likely to stay in cur employment.

Revisiznof Termsof Refarencea

The Nomination Committee reviewed its terms of reference against the Code and proposed a number of amendrments to the Board to
ensure it remained in compliance with the Code. The Board unanimously approved these amendments and the revised terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website.
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Compliance

Comphance with the 201R UK Covporate Governane i

The Board believes that, except inrelation to the Composmon of the Board and certain Board Committees following the 2019 AGM and
the appeintment of Dr Rashid Javanshir as Chairman of the Remuneration Committee the Company was fully compliant during 2018
with the provisions set cut in the Code.

frverral converland risk meacagenien
The Board has overall responsibility for the Group's system of internal control and for reviewing its effectiveness. The internal contral
systems are designed to meet the particular needs of the Group and to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives. Such systems can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board is responsible for identifying and evaluating the major business risks faced by the Company and for determining and
monitering the appropriate course of actian to manage theserisks. The Audit Committee reviews the Company's internal control
processes and risk management systerns and reports its conciusions to the Board.

During the year the Board has reviewed and strengthened a number of key internal contral processes. in particular to reflect the
appointment of a Chief Executive Officer, including those relating to approval of expenditure.

The Board has concludad that for the period up until the date of the Annual Report the Company's current procedures, policies and
systerms are appropriate and suitable to enable the Board to safeguard shareholders’investment and the Company's assets, and comply
with FRC ‘Risk Management, Internal Control and Related Financial Business Reporting Guidance'.

The Board has carried out a robust assessment of the principal risks facing the Company, including those that would threaten its
business model. future performance, sclvency or liquidity. Details of the principal risks and how they are managed or mitigated is
included on pages 30 to 39. Further information on internal control and risk management is set out in the Audit Committee Report on
page 50.

[ W, N
Gy proness

Each year the Board reviews and approves the Group’s annual budget with key risk areas identified. The preparation of the annual
Group budget is a multi-stage comprehensive process led by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer who work closely
with local managers of cperating subsidiaries in Russia and Ukraine.

Performance is monitored through the manthly reporting to the Board of variances from the budget. Relevant action is taken by the
Board throughout the year based on updated forecasts which are prepared using current information on the key risk areas and
sensitivities.

Druwestrnent appraisal

For each capital intensive project there is a rigorous project analysis and risk and return appraisal completed using technical, financial,
commercial, and operational specialists across the Group. The Board has reviewed the approach to ensure the most effective allocation
of capital across the group as part of a wider consideration of the Company's strategy.

Capital investrent is regulated by the budgetary process, our automated authorisation for expenditure (AFE'} system and pre-defined
authorisation levels. For expenditure beyond specified levels, detailed written proposals are submitted to the Board.

Using our AFE systern Group capital expenditures are reviewed on a project-by-project basis by the Chief Executive Officer and Chief
Financial Officer and overruns, actual or foreseen, are investigated, and approved by the Board where appropriate.

vinstlablovning
The Board reviews the arrangerments by which employees and sthers canraise any concerns they may have about workplace fraud or
mismanagement with local management on a confidential basis. Whistleblowing incidents are taken very seriously by the Board.

As part of the Board's commitment to support our employees in the work place, we have a confidential process for reporting "Concerns
at Work”". This is a confidential service for reperting delicate matters that sometimes arise in the work place.

In addition, this service forms part of the Company's commitment to comply with best practice under the UK Bribery Act. As disclosed
in our Anti-Bribery and Corruption pelicy which is available on the Cornpany’s website, all individuals who work on behalf of the Group
have aresponsibility to help detect, prevent and report instances not only of bribery but aisc of any other suspicious activity or
potential wrongdoing.

Employees are expected to make cornplaints to their line managers or, if this is not appropriate, through cur independently managed
confidential reporting process, which is available to all employees as well as third parties.

Complaints made under the confidential reporting service are sent to the Internat Audit Manager and are investigated in the first
instance prior to a decision being taken about further steps. Feedback is provided to the person making the complaint, if necessary.

The Board is absolutely committed to ensuring that all employees have a safe, reliable, and confidential way of reporting any suspicious activity.
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Uommunization with sharebhoidersz

The Board is committed to frequent and comprehensive communicaticn with all shareholders. The Board is committed to an open
relationship involving regular communications in order that shareholders views on the Group can be better understood and addressed
as appropriate.

Anumber of formal communication channels are used to account to shareholders for the performance of the Group, which include the
Annual Report, AGMs and periodic reports to the London Stock Exchange.

Formal presentations, when made, are available te all shareholders to dewnload from the Group's website (www.jkx.co.uk). Less formal
processes include contacts with other shareholders for which the Board as a whole takes responsibility.

Extensive information about the Group’s activities is provided in the Annual Repert and the Half-yearly Repoert. Enquiries frem
individuals on matters relating to their shareholding and the business of the Group are welcomed and are dealt with inan informative
and timely manner. Shareholders are encouraged te attend the Annual General Meeting to discuss the progress of the Group.

Conmfliers of Interest
The Company complies with the provisions on conflicts of interest in the Companies Act 20086.

The Company has procedures in place for the disclosure and review of any conflicts, or potential conflicts of interest which the
Directors may have and fer the authorisation of such conflicting matters by the Board. In deciding whether to authorise a conflict or
potential conflict the Directors must have regard to their general duties under the Companies Act 2008. The procedure operates to
ensure the disclosure of conflicts, and for the consideration and if appropriate, the authorisation of them by non-conflicted Directors.

The authorisation of a conflict matter, and the terms of authorisation, may be reviewed at any time by the Board. The Nomination
Committee is mandated to support the Board in this process, being tasked to review requests from Directors for authorisations of
situations of actual or potential conflict and making recommendations to the Board and to review any situations of actual or potential
conflict that have been previously authorised by the Board. The Cornmittee may also make recommendations regarding
appropriateness of the authorisation.

Golng concern

The Board closely monitors and manages the Group's liquidity risk using cash flow forecasts which are regularly produced and applies
sensitivities for different scenarios that reflect future expectations including but not limited to those regarding country, commodity
price and currency risks that the Group may encounter.

On behalf of the Board
Charles Valceschini
Chairman

31 March 2020
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Audit committee report

Attendance and eligibility

Number of meetings in 2012

Meraber Committee member since Attendance/Eligitility

Adrian Coates (as Chairman} December 2017 Ceased to be a member 23/5/19  2/2

Michael Bakunenkao December 2017 Ceased to be a member 20/9/19  2/2

Hans Jochum Hern October 2017 Ceased tobe amember 23/5/19 2/2

Andrey Shtyrba Cctober 2017 Resignaed 22/8/19 2/2

Tony Alves (Chairman) September 2019 Present 1/1 a
Rashid Javanshir Septernber 20192 Present /1

The Audit Committee currently comprises 2 Non Executive Directors, both of whom are independent.

Audit Committee during 2019

Adrian Coates (Chairman), Michael Bakunenko, Hans Jochurm Horn and Andrey Shtyrba were the members of the Audit Committee
until 23 May 2019. Following the decision at the AGM not to reappoint Adrian Coates or Hans Jochum Horn the Audit Committee
consisted of Andrey Shtryba and Michael Bakunenko. Following the expiry of Andrey Shtyrba's notice peried on 22 August 2019
Michael Bakunenko was the only member of the Audit Committee until 20 Septermnber 2015 when Tony Alves (as Chairman of the Audit
Committee) and Rashid Javanshir were appointed as members and Michael Bakunenko stood down, Up until 20 September 2019 the
Audit Committee did not comply with the Code. Thereafter it did.

The Audit Committee has carried out the requirements under the Disclosure and Transparency Rules 7.1.3R throughout the period that
this report covers. The Board has determined that Tony Alves has relevant and relevant financial experience as defined by the Code
and both Tony Alves and Rashid Javanshir have competence relevant to the sector in which the Company operates.

Role of the Audit Committee

The Audit Comnmittee has delegated authority from the Board set out in its written terms of reference, available on the Company's
website, which were last reviewed by the Board in Q4 2019 in order to bring them inte line with the latest recommendations of the
Cade. The principal objectives of the Audit Committee are:

= tomonitor the integrity of the financial statements of the Group and regulatery anncuncements, and to review any significant
financial reporting judgements;

= tomonitor the adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control, risk management and financial reporting processes:
= toprovide the Board with an independent assessment of the Group’s accounting affairs and financial position:

* toprovide the Board with assurance that the Annual Report and Accounts are presented in a rnanner that is fair, balanced and
understandable, so as to enable shareholders to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy;

* torecommend the re-appointment of the external auditors er follewing an appropriate competitive tender recommend the
appointment of a new external auditor and to annually assess their independence, objectivity, effectiveness, quality,
remuneration and terms of engagement, as well as ensuring that the policy with regard to their appointment for non-audit
services is appropriately applied. Thereafter, the Committee provides a recornmendation to the Board regarding the auditors
appointment ta be put te the shareholders in the forthcoming annual general meeting; and

= tomanage the adequacy and effectiveness of the Internal Audit function and the Risk Committee and to review any significant
matters arising.

Composition of the Audit Committee

The Board determined that Andrey Shtyrba, Hans Jochum Horn, Adrian Coates and Teny Alves had recent and relevant financial
experience gained through their previous and current roles.

The cormposition of the Audit Committee over the relevant period previded the Committee with an appropriate balance between those
individuals with a financial or accounting background and those with wider experience of the oil and gas sector and doing business in
regions in which JKX operates. [n practice, the Committee achieves its ohjectives by a process of regular interaction with management
and the external auditors, as well as by reviewing the work of Internal Audit and other advisory firms.

Together with the collective financial and commercial skiils and experience of the Committee members, the Committee had the
appropriate experience to fulfil its responsibilities and oversee the activities of the Company’s auditors.

Revision of Terms of Reference

In Q4 2018 the Audit Committee reviewed its terms of reference against the Code and proposed a number of amendments to the Board
to ensure it remained in compliance with the Code. The Board unanimously approved these amendments and the revised terms of
reference are available on the Company’s website.
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Attendance at meetings

The Audit Cormmittee met three times during 2019 {2018: 6).

The Committee's meetings were attended. when considered appropriate by the Chairman of the Committee, by other Directors
including the Chief Executive, the Chief Financial Officer, the external auditors arnd ather professional advisers, and by certain senior
managers who are responsible for specific topics, such as risk management, internzl audit, financial control, and internal compliance

procedures.

The Committee Chairman maintains contact with those other attendees throughout the year. Twice during 2019 (2018: twice) the
Committee Chairman met with the external auditors to discuss matters which the auditers and Audit Committee may wish to raise.

The Committee’s activities during 2019

During the periocd covered by this report, the Committee had an annual work plan, developed from its terms of reference, with standing
items that the Committee considered at each meeting in addition to any specific matters arising and topical items on which the

Committee has chosen to focus.

The work of the Audit Comnmittee during the year principally fell under three main areas and is summarised betow.

Internal controls and risk

External auditors

Accounting, tax and
financial reporting

= Considered reports from the external
auditors on their assessment of the
control environment;

* Considered feedback from both the
internal and external auditor reports
as submitted by local and Group
management;

* Reviewed risk reports, which required
marnagernent to identify risks and
evaluate them, and ensured
appropriate ritigating controls were
agreed and implemented;

= Approved the scope of the Internal
Audit programme for the year;

= Considered the effectiveness of the
Internal Audit function;

= Assessed the effectiveness of the
Group's internal control environment;

= Review of finance, legal, internal audit
and compliance staffing;

* Review of enhanced interim controls
relating to cost, procurement and
payrrent and ongoing monitoring of
their appropriateness and
effectiveness;

» Liaison with FCArelating to Free Float
level; and
Review of going concern and viability
status and potential impactin the
event of any adverse tax judgements.

» Considered and approved the audit
approach and scope of the audit work
tc be undertaken by the external
auditors and the fees for the same;

» Reviewed auditors'reports on their
audit findings at the half year review
and at the year end;

= Considered the independence of the
auditors and their effectiveness.
taking into account:
(a) non-audit work undertaken by the
external auditors and compliance with
the policy;
(b) FRC guidance;
{c) the Committee’s own Assessment;

= Considered and approved letters of
representation issued to the external
auditors; and

= Agreement of the external auditors’
remuneration for the 2019 statutory
accounts.

Reviewed the half year and annual
financial statements and the
significant financtal reporting
judgements made therein;

Considered the Liquidity risk and the
basis for preparing the Group half
yearly and full year financial
statements on a going concern basis
and reviewed the related disclosuresin
the Annual Report;

Reviewed the external auditors' report
on audit and accounting judgements,
including consideration of relevant
accounting standards and underlying
assumptions;

Reviewed disclosures in the Annual
Report in relation to internal controls,
risk management, principal risks and
uncertainties and the work of the
Committes;

Cngoing analysis of future cash flow
and liquidity and implementation of
monthly financial update reports;
Review of Transfer Pricing matters;
and

Review of ongoing tax and other
litigation.

Significant issues considered by the Audit Committee

After discussion with managerent and the external auditors, the Committee determined that the key risks of risstaternent in relation
to the Group's 2019 financial staterments related to:

* the carrying value of oil and gas assets;
* rental fee claims in Ukraine;

= registration and enforcement of the international arbitration award: and

= liguidity and going concern.
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These issues were discussed with management and the external auditors at the time the Committee reviewed and agreed the auditors’
Group Audit Plar, during the review of the half year interim financial statements in Iuly 2019 and at the conciusion of the audit of
these financial statements.

Matters considered

Response and conclusion

The carrying value of oil and gas assets

Asexplained in Note 5 to the financial statements, JKX's oil and
gas assets are grouped into cash generating units {CGUs’) for the
purpase of agsessing the recoverable amaunt. In each period
these assets are reviewed for indications of impairment. I[f any
assets are considered to have been impaired, the carrying valueis
adjusted downwards by an appropriate amount, with a
corresponding charge made to the Income Statement.

An impairment review necessarily invelves the use of
assumptions such as long-term production forecasts, gas prices,
productior-related taxes, capital expenditure, discount rates,
and other macroeconomic assumptions underlying the valuaticn
process.

The Committee received reports from management outlining the
basis for each of the key assumptions used, and these
asgumptions were reviewed and challenged by the Committee to
ensure reasonableness and consistency e.g. with the Group's
2020 Budget which is approved by the Beard. In additicen, this
area is a prime source of audit focus and accordingly our auditors
provided detailed reporting to the Committee. Management also
brought to the attention of the Committee the sensitivity
analyses disclosed in Note 5 to the financial statements.

The Committee agreed that, on the basis of the evidence
available, the projected future cash flows from the Group’s CGUs
adequately supported the carrying value of oil and gas assets in
Ukraine and Russia. and noted that full disclosure of the key
assumptions inrespect of the CGUs (including sensitivity
analyses in Note 5) had been appropriately made in the financial
statermnents.

Rental fee claims in Ukraine

As detailed in Note 25 to the financial statements, PPC continues
to defend itself in the local courts against claims initiated by the
tax authorities regarding rental fees for August to December
2010 and for January to December 2015. Management has
recorded total provisions for the rental fee claims of $41.3m
(2018:542.5m). The movement in provision during the year is
reflected in a net credit of $8.4rm (as set out in Note 18 to the
financial staternents) that is reported as an exceptional item.
Management has made a detailed investigation into the mostly
likely timing of any potential payments in respect of these rental
fee claims and accordingly reclassified some of the 2015 rental
fee claims as current. The underlying ameunts claimed are
denominated in UAH, whicly has resulted in foreign currency
translation charges of $2.1minrelation to current provisions and
s5.1m inrelation to non-current provisions {as set cut in Note 18
to the financial stataments which have been reported within the
movement in fareign currency translation reserve {see Note 17
to the financial statements)

The Committee addressed this issue, as in previcus periods, by
reviewing reports from senior management and examining the
degree to which these are supported by professicnal advice from
external legal and other advisory firms. This is alse an area of
significant audit risk and accordingly the Committee received
detailed verbal and written reporting frem BDOLLP {"BDO" ) on
this matter.

Having reviewed these reports and submissians, the Committee
was satisfied that total provisions of $41.3m{2018:$42,5m)
(including interest and penalties) were required in respect of the
rental fee claims and that both the classification of the $15.9m
provision for the 2010 rental fee claim and the clagsification of
the $25.4m provision for the 2015 rental fee claims as non-
current were appropriate.
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Matters considered

Response and conclusion

International arbitration award

Also as detailed in Note 25 to the financial statements, in
February 2017 an international arbitration tribunal awarded the
Company damages of $11.8m plus interest, and cests of $0.3m,
pursuant to a claim made against the Government of Ukraine.
While the tribunal ruling has been recognised in the Ukrainian
courts it has not yet been enforced. Management has judged that
it is not appropriate to recognise any potential inflow of
economic benefits from the arbitration award in the
Consolidated statement of financial position until there is
further clarity on the process for, and likely success of, enforcing
collection.

The Committee addressed this issue, as in previous pertods, by
reviewing reports from serior management and examining the
degree to which these are supported by professional advice from
external legal and other advisory firms. This is also an area of
significant audit risk and accordingly the Committee received
detailed verbal and written reporting from BDO on this matter.

Having reviewed these reports and submissions, the Committee
has concurred with rnanagement’s judgment and is satisfied that
the disclosures made in Note 25 to the financial statements in
respect of the international arbitration award are appropriate.

Liquidity and going concern

Under guidelines set out by the UK Financial Reporting Council
the Board is required to consider whether the going concern basis

The Committee addressed this issue by reviewing cash flow
forecasts, together with associated sensitivity analysisand a

reverse stress test scenario considering risks and potential
impacts relating to Covid 19 provided by senior management
having considered the Group's business model. In particular this
included examining and challenging the appropriateness of the
assumpticns used to prepare them and the scenarios considered.

is the appropriate basis of preparation for the financial
statements, and furthermore, is required o include appropriate
disclosure of any material uncertainties relevant to the going
concern assumption.

This is also an area of significant audit risk and accordingly the
Comuittee received detailed verbal and written reporting from
BDQ on this matter. Having reviewed these reports and
submissions, the Committee has advised the Board that the
Group has adequate resources to continue in operational
existence for the foreseeable future and that the going concern
basis is the appropriate basis of preparation for the 2019
financial statements but that 2 material uncertainty exists in
respect of going concern as a result of potential impacts of Covid
18 (See Note 2 to the financial statements).

Misstatements

Management reported to the Committee that they were not aware of any material or immaterial misstatements made intentionally to
achieve a particular presentation. The auditors reported the misstatements that they had found in the course of their work to the
Committee and confirmed that no material amount remained unadjusted.

Internal control

The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the financial statements and related announcements, reviews the Company’s internal
control processes and risk management systerns, and reportsits conclusions to the Board. The Committee regularly reviews the
effectiveness of the Company’s systems of internal controt and risk management.

Risk management

The Risk Committee, which comprises senicr management and functional experts, assists the Board in discharging their responsibility
to review on an ongeing basis the risks patentially facing the Group, their potential impact, the strategies available to mitigate those
risks and the costs of such mitigation.

The Risk Committee met once in 2019 {2018: once).

The Chairman of the Risk Committee reports to the Audit Committee and the Board at relevant meetings on matters it has reviewed
and material changes to the Group's risk environment, in addition to making recommendations when appropriate.

Fellowing each Risk Committee meeting, the Committee reviews the minutes, the latest Risk Register and related output, and
challenges the Group's high-rated risks and the mitigating actions identified by each risk owner. An updated list of principal risks is
included within the Strategic Repert on pages 32 to 39.
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For each high-rated risk the Commuittee reviews the Group’s current level of exposure and censiders the appropriateness of the
mitigating actions being taken by management.

The Committee was comfortable with the processes in place for risk management.

Additional information on risk manageroent is included in the ‘Principal risks and how we manage them' section on pages 30 to 32

Internal Audit

The Internal Audit Manager has direct access to the Chairman of the Audit Committee and undertook a number of significant pieces of
wark including:

* Ahealth check of the main processes established at JKX's Hungarian asset, including distribution of roles and responsibilities
between JKX management and contractors;

* Coordinating the Risk Management process at all JKX entities;
» Continuous monitoring of the software development process at PPC during implementation of a new ERP system: and
= Participation in Compliance Committee meetings. ensuring that supporting measures are timely taken.

The Audit Committee remains fully supportive of the development of the Internal Audit programme which is intended to ensure that
the necessary processes and controls are firmly embedded within cur srganisation making the contrel environment stronger and more
efficient.

External Audit

The Audit Committee maintains an objective and professicnal relationship with the Company’s auditors, BDO LLP. BDO were appointed
with effect from 18 October 2018 following a competitive tender process.

The Audit Cornmittee ave fully supportive of the Code's requirement that the audit should be put out to tender at least once in every ten
years. Any decision to open the external audit to tender within ten years is taken on the recornmendation of the Audit Committee based
on the results of the annual performance review.

Non-audit services

During the year the Committee reviewed their policy governing the engagemant of the external auditor te provide non-audit services.
The policy precluded the auditor from providing certain services such as valuation work or the provision of accounting services and
also sets a presumption that the external auditor should only be engaged for non-audit services where there is no legal or practical
alternative supplier.

In such instances, the continued objectivity and independence of the auditers in their capacity of auditor is an objective of the Group.

The Committee approves all non-audit services precured from the auditors. During 2019 in addition to the statutory audit fee BDOLLP
and member firms charged the Group $80.000 for audit-related assurance services.

Further details of the fees paid, for both audit and non-audit services, can be found in Note 22 to the consolidated financial statements.

The Committee is satisfied that the quantum cf the non-audit services provided by BDQ is such that the objectivity and independence
of the external auditor had not been compromised during their tenure.

Tony Alves

A A

Chairman of the Audit Committee
31 March 2020
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Directors’' remuneration report

Introduction

On behalf of the Board, [ am pleased to present our Remuneration Report for the year ended 31 December 2019, my first as Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee,

During 2018 the Remuneration Committee has reviewed remuneration across the Group, adopting a fit-for-purpose approach that
ensures that the necessary talent and skills are available at all levels of the Group in each of the locations in which it operates.

More specifically the Remuneration Committee has undertaken a number of significant activities, including reviewing the
remuneration of the Chairman, the Non-Executive Director's, the Chief Executive (the Company's sole Executive Director) and senior
executives, updating the KPI's and reward structures for key staff and implementing additional remuneration for technical staff who
have skills that are particularly in demand.

The Remuneration Committee has a full agenda, ensuring that the Directors' Remuneration Policy and remuneration structures for its
Executive Director, Non-Executive Directors and senior executives remain in line with market trends and governance development.
The Remuneration Committee annually examines the evelution of remuneration practices and policy for Executive Directors, Non-
Executive Directors and senior executives of the Company.

The Company's existing Directors’ Remuneration Policy has applied since 1 January 2015, having been initially approved by
shareholders at the 2014 AGM and re-instated at the AGM in 2017, This policy will expire this year and at the upcoming AGM, currently
expected to take place on 12 June 2020, the Remuneration Committee will put forward a new Directors’ Remnuneration Policy for
approval, which {if approved) shall apply from the date of the AGM (the "New Pelicy”}. The New Policy will be a continuation of the
existing Remuneration Policy, albeit that it will be updated to reflect the new reguirements introduced by the new UK Corporate
Governance Code 2018 {the "Code"} and changes to the legislative framework. The New Policy is disclosed on pages 64 to 71 and a
summary of the changes can be found in the "Locking Ahead™ section noted below.

Reward principles
The principles of the Company’s remuneration policy are to:

= payanappropriate level of total remuneration in relation to Group and individual performance and with reference to peer group
companies in order to attract, retain and motivate individuals with the appropriate skills and capabilities;

= ensure that thereisan appropriate link between performance and reward;

= award annual bonuses which reflect the achievement of short term financial and strategic objectives as well as personal
performance; and

= maintain the ability to foster long-term strategic thinking and to align the executive directors with shareholders through awards
granted under the Performance Share Plan (PSP} that vest over several years.

Each element of remuneration has a specific role in achieving the objectives of the remuneration policy and aligning the interests of
Executive Directors with the interests of shareholders. The cornbined potential rernuneraticn ensures that the balance of the executive
remuneration package includes significant at risk performance pay.

More than 95% of Group staff are based outside of the UK, primarily ini the Ukraine and Russia. The Remuneration Committee takes
into account remuneration conditions elsewhere in the Company, and particularly for those employees based in the UK, in formulating
the Executive Directors' remuneration policy.

Board Changes

On 23 May 2019 Hans Jochum Horn and Adrian Coates stood down from the Company's Board of Directors at the 2019 Annual General
Meeting and were not reappointed, During the meeting, Victor Gladun, General Director of the Company's main operating subsidiary,
Poltava Petroleum Company (PPC’), was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company.

Following the AGM, Christian Bukovics and Andrey Shtyrba tendered their resignations as Non-Executive Directors of the Company
and left the Board at the end of their three months' notice period, on 22 August 2019,

Until 23 May 2019 the Remuneration Committee comprised Andrey Shtyrba (as Chairman}, Christian Bukovics, Hans Jochur Horn and
Michael Bakunenko. From 23 May 2019 until 22 August 2019 the Remuneration Committee comprised Andrey Shtyrba (as Chairman),
Christian Bukovics and Michael Bakunenko. From 22 August until 16 September there were no independent directors and the
Company was not able to form a Rermuneration Committee compliant with the Code.

On 16 September 2019 three independent Non-Executive Directors joined the Board and on 20 Septerber 2019 a Remuneration
Committee comprising three independent Non-Executive Directors (Dr Rashid Javanshir {Chairman), Tony Alves and Charles
Valceschini} was formed. The Chairman did not have at least 12 menth's experience on a remuneration committee prior to his
appeintment as Chairman of the Committee as recommended by the Code. The Board however took into account the size of the Group,
the existing remuneration structure and Dr Javanshir's general management experience and considered him well suited to the role,

There were no Directors appointed as Executive Directors prior to 23 May 2019. On 23 May 2019, Victor Gladun was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company at the Annual Gereral meeting and on 20 September he was additionally appointed as the CEQ of
the JKX Group. Victor Gladun does not receive any board or committee fees in addition to his i) salary (as set out in section 2 below) in
relation to his role as CEO of the Company and Group; and ii) and his other executive roles including as General Director of PPC. The
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Remuneration Committee considers that the CEQ's remuneration is appropriate and reflects input from a benchmarking study
conducted by h2glenfern, specialist remuneration consultants.

Remuneration and discretion in 2019
Details of the remuneration decisions for the reperting year are covered in the Annual Report on Remuneration below.

As discussed in the Chairman and CEQ's reports, the Group’s performance in 2019 was strong with an increase in preduction volumes
and profitability despite difficult trading conditions and a declining Ukrainian gas price. As a result, the Remuneration Comumittee
concluded that Victor Gladun had met the KPI's agreed with the previous board in his capacity as Generz] Director of PPC at the
beginning of 2019 and awarded him an annual bonus of 382,000 for his performance in the 2019 financial year. No other bonus
payments of incentives (including any share options or awards in the Cormnpany or Group) were paid to Victor Gladun. More information
about the level of bonus awarded can be found in the later sections of this Remuneration Report.

The Remuneration Committee aims to ensure that total remuneration is set at an appropriate level relative to its peer group
comparator companies, those being UK-based oil and gas cempanies which are primarily quoted on the London Stock Exchange or AIM,
and it has sought advice from specialist, independent remuneration consultants in doing so. The main components of remuneration for
Executive Directors and senior management are basic annual salary, pension and benefits {including nen-contributory health
insurance and life assurance) and an annual bonus scheme linked to short-term financial and strategic abjectives.

Board fees for Non-Executive Directors were reduced in 2019 inline with market comparaters in the light of a benchmarking exercise
carried out by Pearl Meyer, specialist remuneration consultants, and to reflect the Non-Executive Directors’ reduced time commitment
following Victer Gladun's appointments in May and September 2019. The Naon-Executive Directar (Michael Bakunenko} who was not
independent had previcusly waived his board fees with effect from 22 March 2018 and ceased to be a member of the Remuneration
Committes on 20 September 2019,

The Remuneration Committee considers that the remuneration of the sole Executive Director and the Non-Executive Directors
operated as intended in 2019 in terms of quantum and Cormpany performance.

Looking ahead

The current Directors' Remuneration Policy will expire this year and we are seeking your support and approval for the new
remuneration policy which is intended to apply for three performance vears from the date nf the 2070 AGM As notod above, it is
intlennded tial the New Policy will be a continuation of the previous Directors’ Remuneration Policy and the sole Executive Director’s
salary will remain unchanged as a result of the approval of the New Policy. The new remuneration policy reflects the following limited
charnges to the existing policy:

a) malusand clawback provisions may apply to the annual bonus award, in line with the FRC's best practice guidance;

b} shareholding guidelines apply post-cessation of employment as set cut an page 68, at the lower of the shareholding guidelines and
the executive director's actual shareholding on the date that he/she leaves employment. Please see page 68 for moare details;

¢) any PSP awards will be subject to total holding and vesting period ¢f 5 years from grant;
d) any PSP awards may be subject to enhanced malus and clawback provisions, in line with the FRC’s guidance.

The Remuneration Committee believes that the New Policy will continue to strike the right balance between generating sustainable
success for the Group and for cur shareholders and rewarding exceptional performance of our Executive Director, senior management
and NEDs, The Remuneration Committee considers that the New Policy is appropriate in the light of the benchmarking studies carried
out in 2019 by Pearl Meyer (in relation to the Chairman and Non-Executive Director’s fees) and h2glenfern (inrelation to the CEQ's
reruneration) and the challenges and eppertunities that the Group faces.

The Group is determined to foster trust and open dialogue between its staff and the Board in all governance matters, including
executive pay. Similarty, in designing the New Folicy, the Remuneration Committee considered the incentive opportunity awarded to
the Group's workforce. Alt UK employees are eligible to receive an annual pensien contribution equivalent to 15% of base salary, on the
same basis as the Executive Director, and life assurance, income protection and private medical cover. The Executive Director receives
the same vacation allowance as employees in the Ukraine, his principal work location and participates in the annual bonus on 2 similar
basis to other employees (albeit that the performance weightings and opportunities within the annual borus plan will vary depending
onrole, tenure, seniority and individual performance).

Principles of Remuneration

The Remuneration Committee strives to ensure that the Directors' rernuneration attracts and retains the best talent, fosters
sustainable growth and preserves the flexibility to change to market conditions and trends. The following principles have been
considered when determining our Directors’ remuneration and in designing the New Policy:

Clarity - The Remuneration Committee has adopted 2 harmonious approach to remuneration. The Group's workforce and its sole
Executive Director are all eligible to receive an annual cash bonus on the satisfaction of their KPls, alang with their cash salary. In
20189, the sole Executive Director did not participate in the Company's PSP nor was he awarded any other shares or options to acquire
shares.
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Simplicity - The Remuneration Committee strives te ensure that performance measures are clear and transparent with respect to the
annual banus (including the relative weighting thereof). To the extent that any share interssts are granted to Executive Directors in
the future under the Company's PSP or cther performance plan arrangement, the Remuneration Committee will disclose the Executive
Directors’ KPIs and relative weightings thereof in the remuneration report for the relevant year.

Risk - The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to reduce and clawback any awards granted under the PSP and annual bonus
plan. Please see page 70 below for more information on the application of malus and clawback. Given the inherently discretionary
nature of the annual bonus scheme, there is no opportunity for inflated payments to Executive Directors due to formulaic outcomes.

Predictability - the range of possible values of the Executive Director's remuneration alongside the Remuneration Committee's
discretion to raduce or stop the vesting of awards under the PSP and annual bonus plan is set out in the New Palicy (which has been
detailed on pages 64 - 71}.

Proportionality/Alignment to culture - the Remuneration Committee strives to align the Executive Director's remuneration with the
short-to-medium term success of the Group through the annual bonus scheme which is linked to the performance of the individual and
the Group during the previous financial year. Further, the Policy reserves the flexibility with the use of the PSP to link Executive
Director perfermance to the long-term growth of the Company if there is a desire in the future from the Company and our shareholders
todoso.

Remuneration disclosure

This Report is split into two parts: the Directors’ Reruneration Policy and the Directors’ annual remuneration report:

* The Annual Report on Directors’ Remuneration (pages 58 to 64) sets out details of how our existing remuneration policy has been
applied for the year ended 31 December 2019. This sectionis subject to an advisory shareholder vote. A summary of the existing
Remuneration Policy that has applied since 1 January 2015 can be found in the 2014 Annual Report.

= The new Directors’ Rernuneration Policy {pages 64 to 71) which shall be subject to a vote at the 2020 AGM and which is intended te
apply from the date of the 2020 AGM.

These sections work together tg give you full and transparent disclosure of the Company’s approach to Directers’ remuneration during
2019, 2020 and for the years to come.

The Remuneration Committee will continue to review the Remuneration Policy for Executive and Non-Executive Directors on a regular
basis to ensure that it is in compliance with the regulatory framewecrk, market practice and is appropriate in the business environment
that the Group operates.

The Report was approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by

#

Dr. Rashid Javanshir
Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
31 March 2020
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Work of Remuneration Committee during 2019

The Company's Remuneration Committee is responsible for establishing and overseeing the Group's Director and senior executive
remuneration policy principles, approving remuneration arrangements, exercising oversight of Director remuneration and for
communicating Director remuneratior to its stakeholders.

A sumrmary of the Remuneration Committee's role and activities during 2019 can be found in the table below:

Members from 1 Jan 2019 Role of the Committee Activities during 2019
Dr. Rashid Javanshir {as Chairman)- Establishes the overall principles of In addition to regular topics, the
appeinted 20 September 2019 remuneration for Directors of allGroup  Committee engaged in specific matters
Charles Valceschini - appointed 20 companes including;
Septernber 2015 Determines the remuneration of » Review and approval of performance
. Executive Directors and Senior targets for the 2019/20 Annual Bonus

Tony Alves- appointed 20 September
2 Oig e P Management, communicates this tothe Scheme, and

stakeholders in the annual report * Review the application and
Michael Bakunenko - appointed 8 appropriateness of current

Recommends the participation in, and
operation of, the Company’s long-term
incentive plans.

Qctoher 2018, resigned as a member of remuneration policies.

the Comruittee on 20 September 2019

Setting of Non-executive Directors fee
levels and Executive Director

The full terms of veference are available remuneration.

from the Company's website

Andrey Shtytba (as Chairman) -
appointed 11 December 2017, resigned
22 August 2019

Christian Bukovics ~ appointed
§ February 2018, resigned 22 August
2019

Hans Jochum Horn - appointed
11 December 2017, stood dewn 23 May
2019

Membership and process

Number of meetings
in2019-

Members From To Attendance/Eligibility

Dr. Rashid Javanshir {Chairman) 20 September 2019 present 2/2

Tony Alves 20 September 2018 present 2/2

Charles Valceschini 20 September 2019 present 2/2

Michael Bakunenko 8 October 2018 20 September 2013 1/t

Andrey Shtyrba 11 December 2017 22 August 2019 /1

Christian Bukovics 9 February 2018 22 August 2019 1/1

Hans Jochum Horn 11 Decernber 2017 23 May 2019 /1

Dr. Rashid Javanshir, Charles Valceschini and Tony Alves joined the Board as independent Non-Executive Directors on 16 September
2019 and were appointed to the Remuneration Committee on 20 September 2019. Dr. Rashid Javanshir was appointed as Chairman of
the Remuneration Committee on 20 September 2019, This is Dr. Rashid Javanshir’s first time serving cn a Remuneration Committee.
Although the Code recommends that a Chairran has at least 12 months experience ona Remuneration Committee before being
appointed as Chair, the Board took into account the size of the Group, the existing remuneration structure and Dr Javanshir's general
management experience and considered him well suited to the role.

Between 22 August and 20 September 2019 the Board did not have a Reruneration Committee as a result of the Board restructure.

The Remuneration Cornmittee meets at least twice a year to assist the Board in determining the remuneration arrangements and
contracts of the Directors and senior employees. The Rermnuneration Committee met three times during 2018,

During 2019, no member of the Remuneration Committee had any personal financial interest and no conflicts of interests arise from
crosg-directorships or day-to-day involvement in running the Group. N Director plays a part in any decision regarding his/her own
remuneration.
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Advisors to the Remuneration Committee

Members of the Rermuneration Committee provide valuable input in shaping the remuneration practice and polices for Executive
Directors. Similarly the Remuneration Committee alsa seeks internal input from other members of the Board in determining Executive
Remurneration and assessing its appropriateness.

In addition, during the year, the Remuneraticn Committee received advice and information frem Pearl Meyer and h2glenfern,
specialist remuneration consultants with experience of peer companies in the same sector in order to ensure that the Non-Executive
Directors’ fees and the CEC's remuneration package remained appropriate and market related. Both were appointed as an independent
remuneration consultant following a tender process conducted in 2019. The aggregate amount of the fees paid to Pearl Meyer and h2
glenfern for advice to the Remuneration Committee during 2019 amounted to £11,400.

The Rermuneration Committee is satisfied that the advice they have received was objective and independent and was free of any
conflict in interest.

Statement of voting at General Meeting

At the Annual General Meeting held on 23 May 2019, the Directors’Remuneration Report received the following votes from
shareholders:

Total number of votes % of votes cast
For 99,778,459 99.97%
Against 30,381 0.03%
Total votes cast {for and against, excluding withheld votes} 99,808,840 100 %
Votes witheld! 47,289,211 47%
Total votes (for, against and withheld) 147,088,051

! Awithheld voteis not a vote 1~ Jaw and is not counted in the calculation of votes cast “for” and “against”a resolution.

Single figure of total remuneration

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Directer of the Company inrespect of their
employment with the Company’s Group (defined as the Company and PPC and YGE, being the only entities in the Group that have any
employees) for the financial years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2019. Since 28 January 2016, all Directors' rermuneration
was rebased to US Dollars {the Group's reporting currency).

Single figure of total remuneration for Executive Directors (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Executive Directar for the year ended 31 December
2019 since his appointed as CEQ and the Company's sole Executive Director on 23 May 2019. In 2019, the Executive Director’s contract
was settled inits Ukrainian Hryvna equivalent. Figures in this Report are disclosed in US Dollars (the Group's reporting currency).
Amounts paid were translated at the National Bank of Ukraine monthly average exchange rates in accardance with the Group’s foreign
exchange policy.

Salary and fees Benefits® }g:)r:i;l@ Fension® Total
2019 <000 000 <000 3'000 ='000
Executive Director
Victor Gladun
Chief Executive Officer! 33 - - - 33!
General Director 2612 - 382 - 643
Total 294 382 676

! This represents additional salary received following the appointment of Victor Gladun as a Chief Executive Officer from 20 September 2019 and is a prerated proportion of his

additicnal salary payable as CEOQ of $120.000 per annum together with separate remuneration in his role as General Director of PPC.

Salary:amount earned in 2019 by Victor Gladun in his capacity as General Director of PPC  following his appointment as an Executive Director on 237 May 2019

Benefits: the taxable value of benefits received in the year, including life assurance and private medical cover are negligible.

Annnal Benus: this is the total cash bonus earned based on performance for the 2019 calendar year and paid in Q1 2020.

Pension: arnial contribution by the Group to directors’ pension plans or cash in lieu. Victor Gladun will receive an ameunt wrich is 15% of his base salary, which is line with the

rest of the UK workforce rate, fram 1/1/2020.

€ Victor Gladun dees not receive any board or committee fees ir his capacity as Executive Director of the Company or for any other executive role that he holds in the Group
Victor Gladun has not received any other benefit from the Group {including any share awards). As no shares have been awarded, no amount of Victor Gladun's remuneration has
been subject to any share price appreciation or depreciation. No aspect of Victor Gladun's remuneration has been deferred.

roa oo
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Fixed - cashsalary The Company did not have any Executive Directors prior to 23 May 2019. On 23 May
Victor Gladun was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company at an Annual
General meeting. Victor Gladun has held the position of CEO from 20 September 2019
and was paid a proportion of his annual CEQ salary starting from this date. He does
not receive any board or committee fees in addition to his salary for his CEO and
other executive roles including as General Directer of PPC.

The Executive Director's basic salary and the other fixed elements of pay are
determined by the Remuneration Committee on appointment and then reviewed at
the beginning of each year and within the parameters of the remuneration policy.
The individual salary and benefits of the Executive Director were set taking into
account individual performance and market factors, with reference to independent
and ebjective research conducted by h2glenfern that provides up-to-date
information on a comparator group of UK companies operating in the independent oil
and gas sector.

Discretionary - Annual bonus award Victor Gladun received an annual bonus of $240,000 for the 2018 calendar year {paid
in 2019) inrespect of his role as General Director of PPC. This was calculated by
reference to KPI's agreed by the previcus board for the 2018 year. He received an
annual bonus of $382,000in Q1 2020 inrelation to his performaice in 2019 calendar
year.

Pension The Company will make a contribution equivalent to 15% of basic salary for the
Executive Director with effect from 1/1/20.

At his option, the Executive Directors may either have contributions of the same
amecunts made to his personal pension schemes or cash in lieu of pension at the stated
rate, or a combination of pension contributions and cash in lieu at the stated rate,
subject to normai statutory deductions.

Taxable benefits ‘ Benefits provided t0 the Rxecutive Director include life assurance, which is also
provided for senior managers, for a sum assured of four times base salary and private
medical cover is offered to all Company employees and provides medical caver for

them and their dependents, cn a non-contributory basis.

Pl byl
Matantorabie

There was no Executive Director appointed in 2018,
Basis for determining Executive Director's annual bonus award

The annual cash bonus award reflects the Remuneration Committee's assessment of the extent to which his financial and non-financial
KPls were achieved.

The Annual Bonus Scheme for the 2013 year applied to certain senior management including senior staff in PPC and Yuzhgazenergie
('YGE'). The scheme js discretionary and annual awards are not pensionable, The Remuneration Committee considered Victor Gladun's
performance to have fully met his KPI's and awarded him 100% of his maximum opportunity under his bonus award for 2019,

The annual bonus scheme payment for the 2018 year awarded to Victor Gladun in Q1 2019 did not relate to his work as Chief Executive

Officer or as an Executive Director of the Company but was based upon his 2018 KPI's and achievements in his capacity as General

Director of PPC. This annual cash bonus award was paid pricr to Victor Gladun's appointment as an Executive Director of the Group and

therefore, in accordance with the legislative framework, we have not reported on the assessment of the banus in this report. |

Arnual bonuses for the 2019 year paid in January 2020 will be further disclosed in next year's report {including the reievant XPls and
reporting thereof).

Single total figure of remuneration for Non-Executive Directors (audited)

The table below sets out a single figure for the total remuneration received by each Non-Executive Director of the Company for the
financial years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018

All Nen-Executive Directors’ remuneration was rebased from GBP to US Dellars from 28 January 2016 {the Group’s reporting currency).
However, in accordance with the letters of appointment, Dr. Rashid Javanshir, Tony Alves, Adrian Coates and Christian Bukovics
director fees were settled in its Sterling equivalent at the rate set in accordance with the Group's foreign exchange policy.
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Fees Total rernuneration

s'000 2019 2018 2018 2018
Non Executive Directors
Charles Valceschini 53 - 53 -
Tony Alves 31 - 31 -
Dr Rashid Javanshir 26 - 26 -
Michael Bakunenko - 2 - 2
Formar Non Executiva Directors
Hans Jochum Horn 110 260 110 260
Andrey Shtyrba 98 142 86 142
Adrian Coates 62 149 62 149
Christian Bukovics 87 113 87 113
Vladimir Tatarchuk - 2 - 2
Viadimir Rusinov - 2 - 2

465 670 465 670

The Non-Executive Directors’ fees are subject to an overall cap of £500,000 per annum, excluding exceptional fees for additional work
under the Company’s Articles of Assaciation. In arder to ensure compliance with this cap the Non-executive Directors’ waived certain of
their fees in December 2018.

Changes to Non-Executive Directors’' remuneration during 2019

The following Non-Executive Directors had been appeinted as such during the year:

Non-Executive Date of contract Term of cantract Notice period Date of termination!
Charles Valceschini 16 September 2019 3years 3 months N/A

Dr Rashid Javanshir 16 Septernber 2019 3years 3 months N/A

Tony Alves 16 September 2019 3years 3 months N/A

Michael Bakunenko 8 December 2017 3 years 3 months N/A

Hans Jochum Horn 24 October 2017 3 years 3 months 23 May 20189
Adrian Coates 8 December 2017 3 years 3 months 23 May 2018
Andrey Shtyrba 24 October 2017 3years 3 months 22 Aupust 2015
Christian Bukovics 9 Februéry 2018 3years 3 months 22 August 2019

On 23 May 2018, Hans Jochum Horn and Adrian Coatas stood down from tha Board and were not reappointed at the Annual General Meeting of the Company. Following the
meeting Christian Bukovics and Andrey Shtyrba tendered their resignations as directors of the Company and left the Board at the end of their three menths' notice period. on
22 August 2019,

All Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment automatically terminate if a number of events occur, including material breach,
being disqualified from acting as a director or ceasing to act as a director for other reasons. Non-Executive Directors are appointed for
an initial term of three years and notice periods are three months for either the Company or individual. No commpensation is payable
under the terms of the letters of appointment and within the remit of the remuneration pelicy in force for early termination.

The independent Non-Executive Directors are paid a base fee for carrying out their duties and responsibilities as Directors. fees for
membership of board committees and, where applicable, chairmanship of each of the remuneratiorn, nomination and audit committees.

The fees were reduced in 2019 from the level introduced in 2013 and were based on a per annum rate {in Sterling) which was corpared
to published material concerning Non-Executive Director fees in similar size companies and comparable companies in the sector.

All Non-Executive Directors remuneration was stated and paid in Sterling until 27 January 2016. From 28 January 2016, all Directors’
remuneration was rebased to US Dollars (the Group’s reporting currency).

These fees were reviewed at the 2019 year end and no increase has been awarded from their 2019 level. Non-Executive Directors’ fees
for 2019 and 2020 are as follows:
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Directors’' remuneration report

VR

% decrease from

Position! 2019 2020 2019 t0 2020
Chairman of the Company £250,000 2160000 36
Beard membership fee $120,000 60,000 50
Senior Independent Director 15,000 £15,000 nil
Cormmittee chairman - Audit 15,000 515,000 nil
Committee chairman - Remuneration 515,000 £15,000 nil
Committee chairman - Nomination 15000 £15,000 nil
Committee memnbership - Audit $7.500 $7.500 nil
Committee membership - Remuneration £7.500 $7.500 nil
Committee membershlp Nomination $7.300 $7,500 nil

! These paymentsrelate solelytu the position referred to ar\d where a Non-Executive Director helds more than one position he will receive paymeut for each such pesition heid.

Non-Executive Directors cannot participate in any of the Company’s share schermes nor are they eligible to join the Company’s pension
benefit arrangements. Nen-Executive directors who were not independent waived their fees for committee membership with effect
from 23 March 2018, having previously agreed to waive their board membership fees.

Scheme interests awarded in 2019 (audited)

Whilst the Company does still have cne long-term incentive plan, the 2010 Performance Share Plan (PSP} which was approved by
shareholders at the 2010 and 2014 Annual General Meetings, no grants have been made to Directors under the PSP (or ctherwise)
during 2019.

Percentage change in CEQ remuneration

The table below shows the percentage change in the CEO's remuneration from the prior year compared to the average percentage
change in rermuneration for UK employees.

The CEQ's remuneration includes base salary, taxable benefits and annual bonus. The analysis excludes part-time emplayees and is
based on a consistent set of all UK employees, i.e. the same individuals appear in the 2018 and 2019 populations. A comparison with UK
employees is used as the most likely recruitment location for senior staff in a premium listed company; all other Group staff are
employed in Ukraine and Russia which have different economies from the UK driving their remuneration levels and practices.

CEQ All UK employees
2019 20182 % change % change
000 £'000 2018-2019 2018-2019
Base salary 33! N/A 100%3 100%
Taxable benefits - N/A N/A N/A
Anrnual bonus 382 N/A N/A N/A
Total 7 ' 415 - NA 100% T 100%

! Thisrelates solely to the CEQ remuneration received by Victsr Gladun in the period from his appointment as CEO on 20 September 2019 until year end and does not include any
paymen: he receives in relation to his role as General Director of PPC. his role as CEOQ of PPC was recewed ir Q1 2013, prior to his appeintment.
Noamounts were received by a CEC in 2018, and Victor Gladun was not appointed as CEQ until 20 September 205 9.
100% increase is due to the fact that prior to 23 May 20.9. the Company did not have an Executive Director.

On 23 May 2019 Victor Gladun was appeinted as an Executive Director of the Company at an Annual General meeting. There were no
Executive Directors appeinted as Directors in 2018.

Payments for loss of office (audited)

Eemoutive Dicactor Sorvice Contrast gevecancs poijiots

There were no Executive Directors who left the business durmg the year.

<4
it

Hus-exeoutive Divoct, o~ Exit paymaents

On 23 May 2019 Hans Jochum Horn and Adrian Coates stood down form the Board and were not reappointed at the Annual General
Meeting of the Company. No additional payments were made to them. Following the Annual General Meeting, Andrey Shtyrba and
Christian Bukovics, tendered their resignations and such resignations were accepted by the Board, and they left the Board at the end of
their three months’ notice period. on 22 August 2019. No additional payments were made to them.

Payments to past directors (audited)

There were no payments made to past directors in 2019.




63 TKX il & Gas plc Ann:al Reporz 2019 m

Statement of directors’ shareholdings and share interests (audited)

In 2010, the Remuneration Committee introduced an executive share ownership guidelines of 100% of basic salary for Executive
Directors which can be built up cver a reasonable period of time from the date of appointment.

Victor Gladun, as the sole Executive Director, does not held any Shares or options (vested or unvested) in the Company as at 31
December 2019 and has not been awarded any Shares or options as part of his remuneration in 2020 between 1 January 2020 and the
date of this document, nor has he acquired any Shares in the Group. There were no Executive Directors appeinted in 2019 prior to
Victor Gladun's appointment on 23 May 2019,

At 31 December 2019, no Non-Executive Director held any Shares or options {vested or unvested) in the Company. Since 31 December
2018, there have been no changes in the Directors' interests in shares of the Company.

Relative importance of spend on pay

The table below shows shareholder distributicns (i.e. dividends and share buybacks) and total employee pay expenditure for the
financial years ended 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, along with the percentage change in both.

2019 2018 Year-on-year
$'000 s'000 change
All-employee remuneration 8,741 12,502 (30)%
Distributions to shareholders - - N/A

All-employee remuneration includes total staff costs for the Group and is converted into USS in accordance with Group foreign exchange policy
2 Nodividends or other distributions were made to sharehalders in 2028 or 2019,
*  Noother significant distributions and payments o other uses of profit or cash-flow were made in 2018 or 2018.

Performance graph and table

The following graph shows the Company's TSR performance compared to the performance of the FTSE All-Share and FTSE All-Share Dil
& Gas Producers indices over a 10-year pericd. These indices have been chosen as suitable broad comparators against which the
Company's shareholders may judge their relative returns given that the Company is a member of the FTSE All-Share and continue to be
part of the FTSE All-Share Qil & Gas Producers Index.
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The table below details the Company’s Chief Executive Officer's total remnuneration over the 10-year period. An investment of £100 in
the Company on 31 December 2009 was worth £8.7at 31 Decermber 2018 (same investment on 31 December 2008 was worth £14.0 at
31 December 2018).
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2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 2015 20186 2017 2018 2019
CEOQ single figure of remuneration -
Faul Davies (£000) 818 83z 983 1,141 1043 1322 62 N/A  N/A  N/A
CEC single figure of remuneration -
Tom Reed (£000) M/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 1,261 325 N/A  N/A
CEOC single figure of remuneration -
Victor Guadus (S000) N/A  N/A N/A O N/A O N/A L N/A N/A O N/A N/A 678
Total CEO single figure of 818 832 983 114l 1043 1322 1323 325  N/A 676
remuneration {3‘000)

-G i H

Bonus award - % against maximurm 40%  43%  33%  62%  33%  86%  70% 0% N/A  57%

opportunity

Srom 28 January 2016, the CEQ's remuneration waz rabased (o its equivalent US Dollar amount at that time. For financial years 2018 to 2015, the CEOQ's single figure
remureration amounts, which in previcus Remuneration Reparts were quoted in Sterling, have been converted into their U3 Dollar sguivalent in each year using the following
average Sterling: US Dollar exchange rates as follows: $2010:£1 $1.546; 2011: £1:31 604, 201 2: £1:51.585; 2013: £1:31.565; 2014: £151.648: 2015£1: $1.529.1n 2019, the
Executive Director's contract was settled in its Ukrainian Hryvna equivalen:. Amounts paid were converted at the National Bank of "Tkraine monthly average exchange ratas.

oA a e

No cash bonus award was received by the CEQin 2017,

The Company did not have a CEO in 2018 {or any other Executive Director).
No CEO of the Company has ever been awarded an award under the Company's Performance Share Plan or any other defarred share bonus or salary.

Victor Gladun did not raceive any bonus payment 1n 2019 after hus appointrment as CEO on 29 September 2020,

Single figure remuneration is calcufated on the samae basis as set out on page 59 and includes bath remrneration actually received as CEQ in 2019 and also a3 General Director

of PPC. The figure of 367€,000 includes the bonus award made in Q1 2020 in relation to the 2019 financizl year,

Summary of policy changes and 2020 implementation

The table below summarises the key components of our proposed remuneration framework, illustrating how it differs from the
existing policy and how we intend to implement the New Palicy in 2020, Full details of the New Policy are set out onpages 64 -71.

As the table below illustrates, the New Policy is intended to be a continuation of the existing policy that was approved by shareholders
at the 2014 AGM and which was re-instated at the 2017 AGM. The full policy, as approved by shareholders, can be found on pages 125-

133 of the 2013 Annual Report, a copy of which can be found on the Company’s website at http.//www.ikx.co.uk/investor-
centrefinvestor-down -centre.aspx
Existing Policy New Policy and 2020 implementation
Fixed Salary Fixed remuneration set out in the No change to the Policy.

se:ﬁcetclont:act;tohatt;'lacttartf An Executive Director’s basic salary and the other

re} amk .:.Len ;N ichre be‘;ts & fixed elements of pay are determined by the

roie, skills and responsibliities. Remuneration Committee on appointment and then

An executive director may receive  reviewed at the beginning of each year and within the

payinent under different contracts parameters of the remuneration policy. The individual

inrelation to different roles (e.g. salary and benefits of the Executive Director were set

acting as Group CEO and General taking into account individual performance and

Director of an oparating unit), but market factors, with reference to independent and

receives no other feesin abjective research that provides up-to-date

relationship to directorshipof any  information ona comparator group of UK companies

group company or membership of operating in the independent il and gas sector.

any Board comrmnittee.

Pension An Executive Director receives a No change.
- R o,
l]jaymerllt in lieu of penspr;lm‘ 15.f:hof At their option, Executive Directors may either have
t;\SE gajary per inzm)u]:, mn ;neglx{ contributions of the same amounts made to their
€ PENSION contributions for personal pension schemes or cash inlieu of pension at

workforce. N .
the stated rate, or a combination of pension
contributions and cash in lieu at the stated rate,
subject to normal statutory deductions.

Benefits Life assurance, private medical No change,

insurance and other benefits at the
Remuneration Committee's
discretion.
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Existing Policy

New Policy and 2020 implementation

Discretionary  Annual benus Te align the executive director with
the short-term and medium-term
success of the Group,

The Remuneration Committee has
the discretion to defer the annual
bonus inte shares to be held for one
year.

KPIs are set by the Remuneration
Committee at the start of each year.
The measures selected may vary
each year depending on business
context and strategy, and measures
will be weighted appropriately
according to business priorities.
Under normal circumstances,
financial measures will make up at
least half of the total bonus
opportunity.

Enhanced malus and clawback provisions may apply
and may be exercised at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee. No other change.

PSP Award The Remuneration Cornmittee has
the ability to grant awards of nii-
cost options annually to executive
directars, conditional on group
perfermance.

Maximum oppertunity: 150% base
salary.

Previous Measures and weightings:
» 25% TSR;

= 25% Earnings per share;

= 25% Other financial measures
{e.g. ROCE, Profit before tax, cash
resources);

25% Strategic and operational
measures (e.g. production,
reserves),

Three-year vesting period.

No PSP award was made in 20189,

PSP awards granted will be subject to a further two-
year holding period after vesting (total vesting and
holding pericd of 3 years).

No PSP award is intended tc be made in 2020.

Tothe extent that any PSP award is granted, full
disclosure of the KPIs and relative weightings will be
disclosed in following annual report.

Enhanced malus and clawback provisions will apply
and may be exercised at the discretion of the
Remuneration Committee.

Other Shareholding 100% of base salary. The lower of the shareholding requirement or the
guidelines Executive Director's actual shareholding will be
maintained for two years post-employment, releasing
on a phased basis: 50% after year 1 and 50% year two.
NED fees Feesreflect experience and skillof No change.

the individuals and responsibilities
and time commitments for the role.

Fee levels will be next reviewed during 2020, with any
increase effective 1 January 2021. It is expected that
increases to Non-Executive Director fee levels will be
inline with salaried UK-based employees over the life
of the New Policy.

Directors’' Remuneration Policy

The New Policy will be put to shareholders fer approval at the AGM to be held on 12 June 2020. Subject to approval, the New Policy is
intended to apply for three years from the date of the AGM, The Remuneration Committee is satisfied that the New Policy is in the best
interests of shareholders and does not promoete excessive risk-taking.
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Directors' remuneration report

The New Policy is a continuation of the existing remuneration policy, subject to the following differences:

a} malus and clawback provisions may apply te the annual bonus award, which may be exercised at the Remuneration Comrmittee's
discretion, in line with the FRC's best practice guidance;

b) Shareholding guidelines apply post-cessation of employment, at the lower of the shareholding guideline and the executive
directer's actuat shareholding on the date that he/she leaves employment;

¢} any PSP awards will be subject to total helding and vesting period of 5 years from grant;

d) any PSP awards may be subject to enhanced malus and clawback provisions.

Future Policy Table

Baseaalery

Purpose and link to strategy

To attract and retain the best talent by ensuring hase salaries reflect individual performance,
market factors and the individual's role, responsibilities and skills.

Qperation

Base salaries are reviewed annually, with reference to the individual’s role, experience and
performance; salary levels are referable to relevant UK sector comparators, and the range of
salary increases applied across the Group.

Maximum Oppartunity

Any base salary increases are applied in line with the outcome of the annual review.

Different increases may be awarded at the Remurneration Committee's discretion in instances
such as:

a) where there has been a significant increase in the size, value or complexity of the Group;
b) there has been a change in the role/responsibility;
¢) the incumbent executive director is paid below market comparators.

Performarice metrics

Business and individual perfermance are considered in setting base salary.

Comparator companies used to assess market pay competitiveness have historically included UK-based oil and gas companies listed on
the London Stock Exchange or AIM. The Remuneration Committee reviews comparator companies periodically to ensure they remain
appropriate and retains the discretion to adjust the reference group or companies as appropriate. In 2019, hZglenfern, a specialist
remuneration consultant, was engaged to assist the Remuneration Committee is setting the Executive Director's remuneration and
condurted a benchmarking exercise to ensure that it remained in line with market norms..

Fansiasn

Purpose and link to strategy

To pravide competitive retirement benefits and to encourage long-term saving and planning
for investment.

Operation The Company rmakes a contribution to the pension scheme of the individual's choice.
At their option, Executive Directors may either have equivalent contributions made to their
personal pension schemes or cash in lieu of pension or a combination of both.

Maximum Opportunity Executive Directors are eligible to receive anannual contribution equivalent to 15% of base

salary, in line with the rest of the UK workforce.

Performance metrics

Not performance related.

atits

LS

Purpose and link to strategy

To provide competitive benefits.

Operation

Exacutive Directors receive benefits which include, but are not limited te, life assurance and
private medical cover, although can include any such benefits that the Remuneraticn
Committee deems appropriate, including {but not limited to) a car or a car allowance and long-
term disability insurance.

Maximura Opportunity

Benefits values vary by role and are reviewed periodically relative to market circumstances.

The cost of the benefits provided changes in accordance with market conditions and
jurisdiction and will, therefore, determine the maximum amount that would be paid in the
form of benefits during the life-time of the Policy. The Remuneration Committee retains the
discretion to approve a higher cost in exceptional circumstances (e.g. relocation) or in




67

TKX 0il & Gasple Annzal Report 2019

circumnstances where factors outside the Company’s control had changed materially {e.g.
increases in insurance premiums).

Performance metrics

Not performance related.

Az

bt

Purpose and link to strategy

To incentivise the achievement of short-term and medium-term financial and strategic
objectives on an annual basis

Operation

Performance measures, targets and weightings are set at the start of the year according ta
strategic priorities.

At the end of the year, the Remuneration Committee determines the extent to which the
targets have been achieved, with any bonus payments delivered in cash. The annual bonus is
paid at the start of the following financial year (in relation to the executive director's
performance of the previous year).

For Executive Directors, the Remuneration Committee has the discretion to mandate the
deferral of a proportion {(up to 100%) of the annual bonus in JKX shares, to be held for a
minimum of 1 year.

The anrnual bonus award (and any deferred shares) may be subject to malus and clawback
provisions, which can be exercised at the Remuneration Committee’s discretion, in the event
of material erroneous, misleading data, gross misconduct, misstatement of accounts, serious
reputational damage, and corporate failure. Please see the notes ta the table for more
information.

The sale of any deferred shares is subject to meeting shareholding guidelines,

Opportunity

For Executive Directors, the maximum annual bonus opportunity is 100% of base salary or
150% of base salary in exceptional circumstances.

Performance metrics

Performance is assessed annually based on challenging and stretch targets for operational,
organisational, financial and health and safety performance. The measures selected may vary
each year depending on business context and strategy, and measures will be weighted
appropriately according to business priorities. Under normal circumstances, financial
measures will make up at least half of the total bonus opportunity. The targets and relative
weightings will be disclosed in the annual report following the relevant financial year.

Payment of any annual bonus award will be subject to a discretionary underpin {(including
individual performance}.

The Remuneration Committee has the discretion to alter the measures and/or targets during
the performance period if it believes the original rneasures and/or targets are no longer
appropriate.

The Remuneration Committee has discretion to adjust the forrulaic bonus outcomes both
upwards and dewnwards within the plan limits {including down to zero} to ensure alignment
of pay with the underlying performance of the business, e.g. in the event of a target being
significantly missed or unforeseen circumstances outside of management control.

Purformannse Shave Plan

Purpose and link to strategy

To incentivise strong long-term financial performance and superior longer term returns to
shareholders relative to peers and to align the interests of executive directorsand
shareholders.

QOperation

The Remuneration Committee has the ability to grant awards ¢f nil-cost options annually to
Executive Directors, conditional on Group performance over a period of at least three years.
Shares that vest under the PSP may then be subject to an additional holding period of up to
two years.

The PSP awards may be subject to malus and clawback provisions, which may be exercised at
the Remuneration Committee's discretion, in the event of material erroneous, misleading
data, gross misconduct, misstatement of accounts. sericus reputaticnal damage, and
corparate failure. Please see the notes to the table for more information.
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The sale of vested PSP awards is subject to meeting shareholding guidelines.

Opportunity The PSP provides for an award up to a normal aggregate limit of 150% of salary for Executive
Directars, with an overall limit of 200% of salary in exceptional circumnstances.

Performance metrics o Vesting of PSP awards is subject to continued employment and the Cmﬁpany’s perfom-lance
over a 3-year performance period. If no entitlement has been earned at the end of the
relevant performance period, awards will lapse.

From 2013, PSP awards are based on a number of financial and strategic measures, which may
include, but are not limited to:

= TSR:
= Earnings per share (EPS);
= Other financial measures {e.g, ROCE, Profit before tax, cash resources); and

= Strategic and operaticnal measures (e.g. production, reserves).

In addition, awards are subject to an underpin such that for any PSP awards to vest, the
Remuneration Committee must satisfy themselves that health and safety performance has
been satisfactory over the performance period. Each measure can be applied a weighting of
between 0% and 50%. Executive Directors will not be rewarded for poor performance. The
Remuneration Committee has the discretion to adjust the performance measures and
weightings in advance of making a PSP award to ensure that they continue to be linked to the
delivery of Cormpany strategy and long-term success of the Company. Performance measures
and weightings, as well as perfermance against these, will be disclosed in the Report on
Remuneration for the relevant year.

Under each measure, threshold performance will result in up to 25% of maximum vesting for
that element. The vesting level wilt increase on a sliding scale ta 100% vesting for stretch
levels of performance.

Vesting of PSP awards may be deferredin whole or in part for a peried of up to two years
following the end of a three year vesting period.

Asunder the annual bonus, the Remuneration Committee has discretion to adjust the
formulaic PSP outcomes within the PSP limits to ensure alignment of pay with performance,
ie. to ensure the cutcome is a true reflection of the performance of the Company and the

individual.
Purpose and link to strategy To align Executive Directors with the strategic long term success of the Company.
Operation To the extent that Executive Directors are awarded share options and shares as part of their

remunération package, Executive Directors may be required te build up a shareholding in the
Company over a reasonable period.

Al beneficially owned shares and deferred annual bonus shares and vested PSP awards will
count towards anindividual's shareholding ona net of tax basis (where relevant).

The lower of the Shareholding guideline (100% of base salary) and the individual's actual
shareholding will continue post-employment, unless the Remuneration Commitiee
determines otherwise (including determining that the Shareholding guidelines shall not
apply where the Executive Director has voluntarily acquired shares in the Company or
Group):

= the shareholding requirement will fall to 50% at the end of year 1;

= the shareholding requirement will fall to zero after two years.

Maximum Vaiue 100% of base salary.

Performance metrics Not performance related.
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Purpose and link to strategy To attract and retain Non-Executive Directors of the highest calibre with broad commercial
and other experience relevant to the Company and the Group.

Operation Feelevels are reviewed annually, with any adjustments effective 1 January in the year
following review. The feas paid to the Chairman and Non-Executive Directors are determined
by the Beard.

Additional fees are payable for acting as Senior Independent Director and as Chairman of the
Audit, Nomination and Remuneration Committees, and for individual membership of such
committees.

Fee levels are benchmarked against comparable companies in the sector as well as FTSE-
listed companies of similar size and complexity. Time commitment and responsibility are
taken into account when reviewing fee levels.

Opportunity Non-Executive Directors’ fee increases are applied in line with the outcorne of the annual fee
review.

Fee levels will be next reviewed during 2020, with any increase effective 1 January 2021.It is
expected that increases to Non-Executive Director fee levels will be in line with salaried UK-
based employees over the life of the policy. In the event that there is a material misalignment
with the market or a change in the complexity, responsibility or time commitment required to
fulfila Nen-Executive role, the Board has discretion to make an appropriate adjustment to
the fee level within the rmaximum level set cut under the Policy.

The maximum amount that may be paid to non-executive directors is £500,000 as set out in
the Company's Articles of Association.

Additional remuneration for a non-executive director who performs special services (as
determined by the Board) as expressly permitted by the Articles of Association of the
Company is also permitted under this policy.

Performance metrics None

srive Directors expenses

Purpose and link to strategy To compensate Non-Executive Directors for expenses incurred in connection with the
performance of their duties.

Operation The Company may reimburse Non-Executive directors for any business related costs (such as
travel costs, accormmeodation and other subsistence expenses incurred in connection with
their duties} and any associated tax on these.

The Remuneration Committee reserves the discretion to reimburse Non-Executive Directors
for other expenses if it considers that it is appropriate in the circumstances to do so.

Opportunity The maximum amount payable depends on the costs of providing such expenses.

Performance metrics None

Notes to the future policy table

ol

arfnrpans icnandagpraach tovargetsatiing

The measures used to calculate the annual bonus are selected a nuz;lly toreflect the Group's main objectives for the year and reflect
both financial and non-firancial priorities.

Under the Company's PSP plan. the Remuneration Cormmmittee considers the use of TSR to be appropriate since it is dependent on the
Company's relative long-term share price performance and therefore provides strong alignment with the interests of the Company's
shareholders. The Remuneration Committee equally considers EPS to be an appropriate measure, since it is the primary internal
benchmark of long-term financial performance and promotes alignment between management and the Company's shareholders, As
outlined in the Policy Table above, for future grants of long-term incentives, the Remuneration Committee may decide to include other
financial, strategic and operational measures in addition to EPS and relative TSR Such measures would be selected on the basis of their
relevance to the company's longer term strategy and the Remuneration Committee will provide rationale for their inclusion in the
Annual Report on Remuneration for the relevant year.
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Targets applying to both the annual bonus and PSP awards are reviewed annually, based on a number of internal and external
reference points. Performance targets are set to be stretching but achievable, with regard to the particular strategic priorities and
economic enviranment in a given year,

Matusand slawhizk

At any time prior to the vesting of a PSP award, delivery of any deferred shares pursuant to the annual bonus plan, or payment of a cash
bonus. the Remuneration Committee may determine that an unvested award may not vest {regardless of whether or not the
performance conditions have been mnet). At any tirne up to three years after the award vests, or a cash payment is paid or shares
delivered, the Remuneration Committee may determine that the cash bonus or shares, or their equivalent value in cash, shall be
returned to the Company as a result of misleading financial performance, or a material misstatement in the financial results of the
Group, a material downturn in the financial performance of the Group, gross misconduct, reputational damage, corperate failure and/or
if the Remuneration Committee considers that the amount of cash benus or shares under an award cannot be justified based on the
financial performance of the Company or performance of the individual.

poarera s Gomar e disoration
In addition to the malus and clawback provisions noted above, the Policy gives discretion to the Remuneration Committee to override
formulaic outcomes of the performance assessment in relation to the annual bonus and PSP.

Fattuwrmantpoliey Exzoative diracters

External appointment

In cases of hiring or appeinting a new Executive Director from outside the Group, the Remuneration Committee may make use of all
existing components of remuneration, as described on the Policy table above.

In determining appropriate remuneration structure and levels, the Remuneration Committes will take into consideration all relevant
factors to ensure that arrangements are in the best interests of both the Group and its shareholders. The Remuneration Committee
may make an award in respect of a new appointment to buy out' incentive arrangements forfeited on leaving a previous employer, i.e.
over and above the approach outlined in the table above. In doing so, the Remuneration Committee will consider relevant factors
including any performance conditions attached to these awards, the likelihood of those conditions being met and the proportion of the
vesting peried remaining.

Any such ‘buy-out’ awards will typically be made under the existing annual bonus and PSP schemes, although in exceptional
circumstances the Remuneration Committee may exercise the discretion available under Listing Rule 9.4.2 R to make awards using a
different structure, Any ‘buy-eut’ awards would have a fair value no higher than the awards forfeited,

Internal appointment

In cases of appointing a new Executive Directer by way of internal promotion from within the Group, the Policy will be consistent with
that for external appointees, as detailed above. Where an individual has centractual commitments made prior to their promotion to
Executive Director level, the Company will continue to honour these arrangements even in instances where they would not otherwise
be consistent with the prevailing Executive Director remuneration policy at the time of appointment.

g

< Loy Hovvgxroutive divectocs

In recruiting a new Non-Executive Director, the Board will use the Policy as set out in the table above.

A base fee in line with the prevailing fee schedule would be payable for membership of the Board of Directors, with additional fees
payable for acting as Senior Independent Non-Executive Director and as Chairman of any of the Audit, Remuneration and Nomination
Committees, and for individual membership of such Committees.

The Remuneration Committee considers that external directorships provide the Group's Directors and genior executives with valuable
experience that is of benefit to the Company, and believes that it is reasonable for the individual Non-Executive Diractor to retain any
feesreceived from external appointments.

Directors and senior executives may accept appointments cutside the Group providing that the Chairman's permission is sought and
granted. Details of Directors external appointments and the associated fees received are included in the Annual Report on
Remuneration.

Servicoventractsacn irsiiiyar pagynoent furloss ot of fice

It is the Remuneration Committee's policy that poor performance should not be rewarded. The table helow summarises how variable
incentives are typically tfreated in specific circumstances, with the final treatment remaining subject to the Rermuneration
Committee's discretion.

The current Executive Director's centract is for an indefinite term and has a 8 months' notice period by either the Company or the
inditvidual. This would be the normal policy for new appointments.




71 JKX Ot & Gas ple Anrvzal Reper: 2012 | [[804

Annual Bonus
Reason for leaving Timing of vesting/payment Calculation of vesting/payment
Retirement, ill-health, disability, deathor =~ Normal payment date, although the No automatic eligibility for payment. The
any other reasons the Remuneration Remuneration Committee has discretion to Rermuneration Committee may in its
Committee may determine inits absolute  accelerate. absolute discretion award a bonus for the
discretion. performance year. Cash bonuses will only
be paid to the extent that Group and
personal objectives set at the beginning of
the year have been achieved. Any resulting
bonus will be pro-rated for time served
during the year.
Change of control. Not applicable. Not applicable.
Any other reason. Nobonus is paid. Not applicable.
PSP
Reasan for leaving Timing of vesting Caleunlation of vesting/payment
Retirement, ill-health, disability, deathor  Normal vesting date, although the Any outstanding PSP awards will be pro-
any other reasons the Remuneration Remuneration Committes has discretion to rated for time and performance. Note the
Committee may determine inits absolute  accelerate. Remuneration Committee may in its
discretion. absolute discretion waive time pro-rating
of award.
Death. On date of event. Any outstanding PSP awards will be pro-
rated for time and performance. Note the
Remuneration Committee may in its
absolute discretion waive time pro-rating
of award.
Change of control. On date cf event. Any outstanding PSP awards will be pro-
rated for time and performance. Note the
Remuneration Cormmittee mayin its
absolute discretion waive time pro-rating
of award. In the event of a change of
control, PSP awards may alternatively be
exchanged for new equivalent awards in
the acquirer where appropriate.
Any other reason. No bonus is paid. Not applicable.

The table below sets out the date of the Executive Director's service contract, the dates of the Non-Executive Directors' letters of
appointment and their notice periods.

Victor Gladun Effective 20 September 20192 6 months
Charles Valceschini Effective 16 September 2019 3 months
Tony Alves Effective 16 Septmber 2019 3months
Michael Bakunenko Effective 8 Decernber 2017 3 months
Dr Rashid JTavanshir Effective 16 September 2019 3menths

Service contracts and letters of appointment are available for inspection at the Company's registered office.

Applicatian of Peliny
The table below provides an estimate of the potential future reward cpportunities for the Executive Director, and the potential split
between the different elements of rerauneration under three different performance scenarios: ‘Minimum', ‘On-target’ and ‘Maximum'.

? Victor Gladun's contract is for an irdeterminate period subject to termination by 6 months notice either way.
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Potential reward opportunities are based on the new Policy. The annual bonus is based on the maximum opportunity level which will
apply in 2020. Note that no PSP awards willbe been granted tn 2020. If a PSP award is granted in the future, a revised version of this
table will be prepared and disclosed in the annual return

The 'Minirum' scenario reflects base salary, pension and benefits (ie. fixed remuneration), being the only elements of the Executive
Directors’ remuneration package not linked to performance.

The ‘On-target’ scenario reflects fixed remuneration as above, plus on-target bonus {60% of salary).
The ‘Maximum' scenario reflects fixed remuneration, plus full payout under all incentives {150% of salary under the annual bonus).

The chart below tllustrates the potential future remuneration for the Executive Directar under the new policy. [n line with current
regulations, the illustrations do not assume any share price growth or dividend equivalent payments in share awards.

Victor Gladun
Hlustration of package vaiue under new policy.

TOTAL:$415,000

TOTAL: $664,000
£249,000

TOTAL: $1,037,500

$415,000 $622,500

Fixed Pay . Annual Bonus

Notes to application of remuneration policy charts
Element of package Assumptions used

Fixed Pay Basic salary effective: 20 September 2019
Benefits: as disclosed in single figure of remuneration
Pension: 15% cash allowance

Annual Bonus Minirnum: no benus earned
On target: 60% of maximum bonus is earned
Maximurn: 150% of mazimum bonus is earned

ari - orhedomninyas : g "
The Remuneratlon Commlttee takesinto consmleratmn the remuneration arrangements for the UK-based employee population in
making its decisions an remuneration for executive directars, non-executive directors and senior executives Maore thar 95% of the
Group's staff are based outside of the UK, primarily in the Ukraine and Russia, where salaries and benefits reflect local practice. The
Remuneration Committee does not currently consult with employees specifically on the effectiveness and appropriateness of the
executive reamuneration policy and framework. Hewever, the Company seeks to promote and maintain good relationships with
employee representative bodies as part of its employee engagement strategy and consults on matters affecting employees and
business performance asreqguired in each case by law and regulation in the jurisdictions in which the Company operates.

sharensidar o-

L L. . al
When determlmng remuneratzon the Remuneration Committee takes into account view of its shareholders and best practice
guidelines issued by institutional shareholder bodies.

The Remuneration Committee is always open to feedback from shareholders on remuneration policy and arrangements, and commits
to undergoing shareholder consultation in advance of any significant changes to remuneration policy. The Remuneration Committee
will continue to monitor trends and developments in corporate governance and market practice to ensure the structure of the
executive remureration remains appropriate. We will consult shareholders before making any significant changes to our
remuneration policy.
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Thisinformation is required to be presented by law. The UKLA's Disclosure & Transparency Rules {DTRs') and Listing Rules (LRs"} also
require the Company to make certain disclosures.

The Corporate Governance Report, the Audit Committee Report and the Strategic report form part of this information. Disclosures
elsewhere in the Annual Report and Accounts are cross-referenced where appropriate. Taken together, they fulfil the combined
requirernents of company law, the DTRs and LRs.

Legal form

JKX Oil & Gas plcis a company limited by shares and incorporated in England & Wales, with company nuraber 3050645. The principal
activities of the Group are oil and gas exploraticn, appraiszl, development and production. It conducts very limited business activities
on its own account, and trades principally through its subsidiary undertakings in various jurisdictions.

Annual General Meeting

Notice of the 2020 AGM and matters of Ordinary Business and those proposed as Special Business, together with explanatory notes,
will be sent to sharehelders at least 20 clear working days before the meeting.

At the AGM, individual shareholders are given the cpportunity to put questions to the Chairman and to other merabers of the Board.
The voting results are announced via the London Steck Exchange as socn as practicable after the meeting. The announcement is also
made on the Company's corporate website.

Political and charitable contributions

Inline with Group policy, the Group did not make any political contributions during the year (2018: nil}. The Group made charitable
contributions of $0.3m (2018: $0.2m) for local educaticnal, health, sport and village infrastructure initiatives in Ukraine and Russia.

Disabled employees

The Group gives full cansideration to applications for employment from disabled persons where the requirements of the jobcan be
adeguately fulfilled by such persons.

Should an existing employee become disabled, it is in the Group's policy wherever practicable to provide continuing employment under
nermal terms and conditions and to provide training and career development and promotion.

Greenhouse gas emissions

The disclosures concerning greenhouse gas emissions required by law are included in the Corporata Social Responsibility review on
pages 25to 28.

Policy on derivatives and financial instruments

The Group's objectives and policies on financial risk management, and information on the Group’s exposures to foreign exchange,
commodity price and liquidity risks can be found on pages 32 to 3% and in Note 13 to the financial statements.

Sharesin JKX 0il & Gas ple

Details of movements in share capital during the year are set out in Note 16 to the financial statements. The Company has one class of
Ordinary Share which carries no right to fixed income. Each share carries the right tc one vote at General Meetings of the Company.
There are no significant restrictions on the transfer of securities.

Treasuryshares

In 2018, the Company did not purchase in the market any of its own ordinary 10p shares, to be held as treasury shares. At 31 December
2019, 402,771 (2018: 402,771} shares continued to be held as treasury shares representing 0.23% (2018: 0.23%} of the shares thenin
issue.

Restrictions on voting

No meraber shall, unless the Directors otherwise determine, be entitled in respect of any share held by him/her to vote either
personally or by proxy at a shareholders’ meeting or to exercise any cther right conferred by membership in relation to shareholders’
meetings if any call or other sum presently payable by him/her to the Company in respect of that share remains unpaid. [n additien, no
member shall be entitled to vote if he/she has been served with a notice after failing to provide the Company with information
concerning interests in those shares required to be provided under the Companies Act.

Amendment of Articles of Association

Any amendments to the Articles may be made in accordance with the provisions of the Companies Act by way of special resolution.
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Directors

The names and biographies of the Directors who held office as at the date of this Annual Repart are set out on pages 40and 41.

Directors who held office throughout 2012 and the changes rade to the Board during the year are set out below:

Name Appointed Position

Charles Valceschini 16 September 2019 Non Executive Director,
Michaei Bakunenka 8 December 2017 Non Executive Director
Tony Alves 16 September 2019 Non Executive Director
Victor Gladun 16 September 2019 Executive Director
Rashid Javanshir 16 September 2019 Non Executive Director
Narme Removed/Resigned Position

Hans Jochum Horn 23 May 2018 Non Executive Director
Christian Bukovics 22 August 2019 Non Executive Diractor
Adrian Coates 23 May 20158 Non Executive Director
Andrey Shtyrba 22 August 2019 Non Executive Director

Appointment and replacement of Directors

The number of Directers shall not be less than two nor more than ten.

Directors may be appointed to the Board by shareholders by ordinary resolution or by the Board. A Director appointed by the Board
holds office only until the next following AGM and is then eligible for election by shareholders.

Directors and their interests

The Directors in office at the year end and their interests at the beginning and end of the year in the shares of the Company, all

beneficially held, were as follows:

31 December 2019

Ordinary Share
Nuraher

Michael Bakunenko!

1

47,287,027

Michael Bakunenke as a nominee for Bclairs Group Limited, is deemed tohave a baneficial interest in these ordinary shares.

There were no changes to the shareholdings of the continuing Directors between the end of the financial year and the date of this

Annual Report.

Details of Directors’remuneration and share options are shown in the Remuneration Report on pages 59 to 63. No Director hada
material interest in any significant contract, other than a service contract or contract for services, with the Company or any of its
subsidiary comparies at any time during the year.

The share capital structure is listed in Note 16 to the financial statements and the significant holdings are listed below.

Directors’indemnities

As permitted by the Articles of Association, the Directars have the benefit of an indemnity which is a qualifying third party indemnity
provision as defined by Section 234 of the Cempanies Act 2006. The indemnity was in force threughout the last financial year and is
currently in force. The Company alse purchased and maintained throughout the financial year Directors’ and Officers' liability
insurance in respect of itself and its Directors.

Change of control (significant contracts)

The Cornpany is not party to any significant agreements (and was not party to any significant agreements during 2019) that take effect,
alter or terminate upon a change of control following a takeover except for the $40m convertible bond dated 19 February 2013 (which,
following repurchases and cancellation of bonds during 2016, was reduced to a nominal value of $16m of which $5.7m remained
outstanding at 31 December 2019, see Note 11 to the consclidated financial statements). The final payments due under the terms of the
convertible bond were made on 18 February 2020 and it is now fully redeemed and all payments due have been made. There are no
agreements between the Cornpany and any Director or its employees that would provide campensation for loss of office or employment
resulting from a change of control following a takeover bid, except that provisions of the Company's share schemes may cause options
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and awards granted under such schemes to vest in those circumstances. All of the Company’s share schemes contain provisiens relating
te a change of control. Qutstanding options and awards would normally vest and become exercisable for a limited period of time upon a
change of control following a takeover, reconstruction or winding up of the Company {not being an internal reorganisation}, subject at
that time to rules concerning the satisfaction of any performance conditions. There are a number of other agreements that take effect,
alter or terminate upon a change of contrel of the Company such as commercial contracts, finance agreements and property lease
arrangerments. None of these is considered te be significant in terms of their likely impact on the business of the Group as a whaole.
There were no options or awards cutstanding under any such scheme as at 31 December 2019 and no options or awards have been
granted between that date and the 31 March 2020.

Events after the reporting date
Events after the reporting date are discussed in Note 33 to the financial statements.

Substantial shareholders

At 31 December 2019 and at 29 March 2020, the Company had received notification from the following institutions of interests in
excess of 3% of the total number of voting rights of the Company:

31 Decernber 2018 31 December 2018 29 March 2019 29 March 2019
Substantial shareholders Number of shares % of total voting rights Number of shares % of total voting rights
Eclairs Group Limited 47,287,027 27.54% 47,287,027 27.54%
Cascade Investment Fund 34,288,253 1997% 34.288.253 19.97%
Neptune Invest & Finance Corp 22,295,598 12.98% 22,295,598 12.98%
Keyhall Holding Limited 19,656,344 11.45% 19,656,344 11.45%
Interneft Ltd 10,599,447 6.16% 10,601,447 6.16%

Directors’'responsibilities statement

The Directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report, the Directors’' Remuneration Report and the financial statements
inaccordance with applicable law and regulation.

= Company law requires the Directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the Directors have
prepared the Group financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union, and the parent commpany financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclosure Framework”, and
applicable law). Under company law the Directors must not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the Group and the parent company and of the profit or loss of the Group and
parent company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the Directors are required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

= make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

state whether they have been prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Union for the group financial
staternents and United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101, have been followed for the parent company
financial statements, subject to any material departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; prepare the
financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate te presume that the Group and parent company will
continue in business: and

= prepare a director’s report, a strategic report and director’s remuneration report which comply with the requirements of the
Companies Act 2006.

The Directors are respenstble for keeping adequate accounting recerds that are sufficient to show and explain the Group and
parent company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the parent company
and the Group and enable therm to ensure that the financial statements and the Remuneration Report comply with the Companies
Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial statements, Article 4 of the [AS Regulation.

The Directors are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the parent company and the Group and hence for taking
reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

The Directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the parent company’s website, Legislation in the United
Kingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial statements may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

Other disclosures

Certain information that is required to be included in the Directors’ Report can be found elsewhere in this document as referred to
below, each of which is, to the extent not in this repoert, incorporated by reference.
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Dividends

No dividends have been paid er proposed for the year ended 31 Decernber 2019, The Board will not be recommending the payment of a
dividend at the forthcoming AGM.

Going concern

The going concern statement can be found on pages 1 - 92.

Future developments within the Group

The Strategic report starting on page i contains details of likely future developments within the Group.
Profit

Details of the Company’s profit for the year ended 31 December 2019 can be found on page 85 - 87.
Capitalised interest

No interest was capitalised in 2019 {2018: nil}.

Long term incentive schemes

See pages 58 to 71 of the Directors’ Remuneration Report.

Directors’ responsibilities

Directors’'responsibilities pursuant to DTR4
The directors confirm to the best of their knowledge:

The Group financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as
adopted by the European Union and Article 4 of the [AS Regulation and give a true and fair view of the assets, liabilities, financial
position and profit and loss of the Group.

The parent company financial statements, which have been prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards, comprising FRS 101 “Reduced Disclasure Framework”, and applicahle
law). give a true and fair view ot the assets, liabilities, financial position and loss of the company;

= The annual report includes a fair review of the development and performance of the business and the financial position of the Group
and the parent company, together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that they face.

* The annual report and financial statements, taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information
necessary for shareholders tc assess the Group and parent company's performance, business model and strategy;

* Inthe case of each Director in office at the date the Directors' Report is approved:

» sofarasthe Director is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Group and parent company's auditors are unaware;
and

= he or she has taken all the steps that he or she ought to have taken as a Director in order to make himself or herself aware of any
relevant audit information and to establish that the Group and parent company's auditors are aware of that information.

By order of the Board

Julian Hicks
Company Secretary
31 March 2020
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Independent auditor’s report

to the members of IKX Qil & Gas plc

Report on the audit of the group financial statements

Opivion

We have audited the financial statements of JKX 0il & Gas Plc (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaries {the 'Group’) for the year
ended 31 December 2019 which comprise the consolidated income statement. the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated and cormpany statement of financial position, the consolidated and company statement of cash flows, the consolidated
and company statement of changes in equity and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significanr accounting
policies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the Group financial statements is applicable law and
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union. The financial reporting framework that has
been applied in the preparation of the Parent Company financial statements is applicable law and United Kingdom Accounting

Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 101 Reduced Disclosure Framework (United Kingdern Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice}.

In our opinion the financial statements:

= give atrue and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs as at 31 December 2018 and of the Group's
profit for the year then ended;

= the Group financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Unien;

= the Parent Company financial staternents have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cempanies Act 2006 and Article 4 of the 1AS
Regulation,

Baginforoninion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Internaticnal Standards on Auditing (UK} (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements
section of our report, We are independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard as applied to public interest entities,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical respensibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

We draw attention to note 2 in the financial statements which sets out the directers’ considerations of the potential impact on the
Group's business of the Covid-19 pandemic. As stated in note 2, these events or conditions, indicate that a material uncertainty exists
that may cast significant doubt on the Group and Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. These financial statements do not
include the adjustments that would result if the Company and Group were unable to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is not
modified in respect of this matter.

Mareriztercsrvmirtyin eelution to golng concernarising from the Covid-18 pandemis

We have highlighted going concern as a key audit matter as a result of the estimates and judgments required determining oil and gas
prices, production, the timing and quantum of potential 2010 and 2015 Rental fee payments in the period to June 2021, and the
availability of sufficient and appropriate lending facilities. The level of judgment and estirnation uncertainty has subsequently been
significantly increased by the Covid-19 pandemic. We considered the resulting potenttal impact and the effect on our audit strategy
made this a key audit matter.

Durauditproredurerin respunse toths Key audit matter inzlndad

= We discussed the potential impact of Covid-19 with management and the Audit Committee including their assessment of risks and
uncertainties associated with areas such as the Group's workforce, supply chain, customer sales and commodity market prices that
are relevant to the Group's business model and operations. We formed our own assessment of risks and uncertainties based on our
understanding of the business and oil and gas sector.

= Weobtained management's reverse stress testing analysis which was perfermed to determine the point at which liquidity breaks and
considered whether such scenariss, including significant reductions in cormmaodity prices and production were passible given the
potentialimpacts of Covid-19 and the level of uncertainty.

» We evaluated potential mitigating actions identified by management. In doing so we confirmed the terms of facilities in place and
assessed the risk that draw down requests may not be approved given uncertainties associated with Covid-19. We used our Ukrainian
tax and legal specialists to confirm that Ukrainian legislation allows for payment plans to be granted should the rental claims fall
due but such arrangements are at the discretion of the relevant governmental departments.

= We obtained managerent's base case cash flow forecast, challenging the key cperating assumptions based on 2019 and 2020 actual
results and external data and marlket commentary, where possible.

= We tested the integrity of the forecast models and assessed their consistency with approved budgets and Field Development Plans, as
applicable.

= We confirmed that the forecasts did not include any receipts associated with the arbitration award detailed in ‘Rental fee claims in
Ukraine' helow.
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= We critically assessed management's judgments regarding the quantum and timing of rental fee payments to assess the status of the
claims, scenarios for the remaining legal process and risks of acceleration in the timing of petential paymments, as well as considering
the impact of the wider Ukrainian econormuic, pelitical and legislative environment on the Group's operations. In doing so, we made
inquiries of internal and external legal counsel and involved our own Ukrainian legal specialists.

« Wereviewed the adequacy and completeness of disclosures in the financial statements in respect of going concern.

champg oy prinsipsl riskz and vigburr y sratemer
We have nothing toreport in respect of the following information in the annual report, in relation to which the ISAs (UK} require us to
report to you whether we have anything material to add or draw attention to:

[RCIEL TS Tt 2%

= thedisclosuresin the annual report set out on pages 30 - 39 that describe the principal risks and explain how they are being managed
or mitigated; or

= the directors’ confirmation set out on page 38 in the annual report that they have carried out a robust assessment of the principal
risks facing the Group, including those that would threaten its business model, future performance, salvency or liguidity.

the directors statement set out on page 53 in the financial statements about whether the directors considered it appropriate to
adopt the going concern basis of acecunting in preparing the financial statements and the directors’ identification of any material
uncertainties to the Group’s ability to centinue to do so over a period of at least twelve months from the date of approval of the
financial statements;

whether the directors’ statement relating to geing concern required under the Listing Rules in accordance with Listing Rule 9.8.6R(3)
is materially inconsistent with our knowledge cbtained in the audit; or

the directors' explanation set out on page 28 in the annual report as to how they have assessed the prospects of the Group, over what
period they have dane so and why they consider that period to be appropriate, and their statement as to whether they havea
reasonable expectation that the Group will be able to continue in operation and meet its liabilities as they fall due over the period of
their assessment, including any related disclosures drawing attention to any necessary gualifications or assumptions.

Geva i rnarars

In addition to the matter described in the material uncertainty relating to going concern paragraph above, key audit matters are those
matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period and
include the most significant assessed risks of material misstatement (whether or not due to fraud} that we identified, including those
which had the greatest effect on the overall audit strategy, the allocation of rescurces in the audit and directing the efforts of the
engagement team. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinden thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter How the matter was addressed in our audit

Carrying value of oil and gas assets
(see note 5)

Management and the Directors are required to assess whether We gbtained and examined management’s impairment indicator
there are potential indicators of impairment of the Group’s oiland paper and agreed with their conclusion that a potential indicator
gas assets at each reporting date and, if potential indicators of of impairment was present, as detailed in note 5. Accordingly, we

impairment are identified, management are required to perform a obtained management's impairment test assessments.
full assessment of the recoverable value of the cil and gas assets
in accordance with the requirements of the relevant accounting
standard.

We assessed the appropriateness of Management’s determination
of each cash generating unit (CGU) in order to determine if tha
conclusions were in line with the relevant accounting standard.
Management identified an impairment indicator in respect of
each of the three cash generating units in the Ukraine and Russia
and performed an impairment test. Based on that impairment test
management concluded that no impalrment was required,

We obtained management's discounted cash flow models and
performed data integrity and mechanical checks on the maodels
using our proprietary tool.

We determined whether the basis of preparation of the models
were in line with the applicable accounting standard, our
expectations and valuation methodology.

The assessment of the recoverable value of the oil and gas assets
required judgments and estimates by management and the Roard
regarding the inputs applied in the models including future oit
and gas prices, production and reserves, ocperating and We compared the actual performance of the CGUs during 2019 to
development costs and discount rates. budgets for the period in order to assess the quality of

The carrying value of the Group's oil and gas assets were management's forecasting.

therefore considered to be a key audit matter. We critically challenged the NPV model, focussing on the
appropriateness of estimates with reference to empirical data
and external evidence with specific emphasis on the following
assuraptions: oil and gag prices, foreign exchange rates, reserves
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and producticn levels, operating and development costs and
discount rates.

We compared forecast oil and gas prices in Ukraine to current
pricing, empirical data and market analysis compiled with cur
internal research team. In addition, we compared the price
forecasts to those forecast by managements external reserves
engineer. In Russia, where prices are regulated, we compared
forecasts to current contracted prices and market inflaticn data.

We assessed the consistency of production profiles and capital
expenditure forecasts against the Group's Field Development
Plans, approved budgets, external reserves engineer decline
rates, and met with operational management to inform our
assessment and understanding of these plans and budgets.

We compared the 2P reserves included in the models to Reserve
Statements prepared by the Group’s internal and external reserve
engineers and performed procedures to assess for both their
independence and competence. We met with both the internal
and external reserve engineers as part of this process and
ascertained there had been no limitation to their scope.

We compared management's key assumptions to refevant
assumptions used by the external reserve engineers and
considered the appropriateness of management's assumptions
based on the field development plan and the merits of different
economic assumptions.

We reviewed management’s sensitivity analysis and performed
our own sensitivity analysis on key inputs to assess the impact of
changes in assumptions.

We involved our valuations specialists to review the valuation

methodelogy and support cur assessment of the disccunt rates
applied and discussed the judgments regarding the calculation
with the Audit Cornrmittee.

We read the key licence agreements and confirmed that the
Group holds valid licences. We considered management'’s
judgment that licences would be capable of being extended
beyond 2024 and 2026 including assessment of the legislative
process, the forecast economic value of the assets beyond the
expiry date and risks and uncertainties within the aperating
environments.

We evaluated management’s conclusion that the potential impact
of Covid-19 and the impact of represented a non-adjusting
subsequent event against the relevant accounting standards.

We reviewed the disclosures in the financial statements
regarding key assumptions and sensitivity of the carrying value
toreasonable changes in such assurnptions to ensure they were in
accordance with the requirements of the relevant accounting
standard.

Key Observation

Based on the procedures performed, we noted no material issues arising from our work in relation te the carrying value of oiland gas
assets. We found management’s conclusion that no impairment charge was required as at 31 December 2019 inrespect of the CGU's to
be supperted by the underlying models. We found the disclosures innote 5 to be appropriate. We found the conclusion that the
potential impact of Covid-19 represent a non-adjusting subsequent event and the disclosures regarding such subsequent events to be
appropriate. We found the judgments and estimates applied by management in preparing the forecasts tc be supportable, although the
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sensitivity tochanges in key inputs including oil and gas prices, foreign exchange rates and discount rates has increased compared to

2018.

We found the disclosures in note 5 to be appropriate.

Key Audit Matter

How the matter was addressed in cur audit

Rental fee claims in the Ukraine
(see notes 18 and 25)

The assessment of the provisioning for the 2010 and 2015 Rental
fee claims requires significant judgement and estimation by
management including both the valye of the provision and its
presentation within the financial statements.

Management have recorded a provision of $41.3m with $14.4m of
provisions released in the year as detailed in notes 18 and 25.

Separately. in a prior period the Group was awarded $11.8m plus
interest and costs at international arbitration in relation to
claims brought by the Group against the Ukraine. The Group
registered its claim and filed application for collection in
December 2019, The assessment of whether the award meets
asset recognition criteria at year end under relevant accounting
standards requires judgment given the operating environment.

The legislation behind the Rental fee claims is complex in nature
and the claims have been, and continue to be, subject to court
proceedings which are at various stages of pregression. When
taken together with the developing nature of the Ukrainian tax
system and the challenging legal and political regirne, to which
the Group are subject, this area is considered to be a key audit
matter.

We held focused meetings with management, internal and
external legal counsel in arder to obtain an understanding of the
significant developments in the year and the impact of the wider
legislative environment in the Ukraine on the overall assessment
of the claims.

We read key correspondence in the year between the Group, its
external legal advisers and the tax and legal autherities for
indications of additional claims or factors which may indicate
management’s conclusions are inappropriate.

We inspected a number of critical documents such as the most
recent court rulings in the Ukraine during 2019 and 2020 to date,
including those relating te the claims for which provisions have
beenreleased.

We evaluated management's conclusion that it remained
appropriate to maintain provision against the remaining claims,
following the awards in the Group's favour to date.In doing so, we
considered the background to the favourable awards and
legislative environment in the Ukraine.

We performed a recalculation of the movement in the Rental
claim provision including interest accrued and the guantum of
amounts released.

We compared the base claim amounts to the original claim
documents and assessed the corpliance of the fines and penalties
with local legislaticn. We specifically considered and challenged
any change to the basis of the calculations from prior year and
assessed the calculations for consistency with relevant Ukrainian
legislationin conjunction with our own legal and tax specialists.

We obtained legal letters from the Greup's external legal adviser
and cornpared these fo management's assessment of each claim.

We confirmed that there were no changes to the previous basis of
preparation and critically assessed the calculations for
consistency with relevant Ukrainian legislation, in conjunction
with our legal experts in the Ukraine and assessed whether
judgments and estimates associated with the claims were
supportable and appropriate.

We obtained management's analysis of the estimated timing of
any payments, discussed further under the material uncertainty
relating to going concern paragraph above and agreed the
presentational split between current and non-current provision
was consistent with this analysis.

Inrespect of the arbitration award, we confirmed the status of the
award with the Management, internal and external legal counsel
regarding the registration of the claim in Ukraine and reviewed
related documents.
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We critically assessed Management's judgments regarding the
probability of ultimate recovery and asseciated financial
reporting treatment, We specifically considered factors such as
the local legislative environment, histery of awards being
successfully enforced and other relevant facts and circumstances.
Woe discussed the process with legal counsel and the Board.

Wae reviewed the disclosures in the financial staterments, In
particular, we focused on ensuring that the disclosures are clear,
transparent and understandable notwithstanding the complex
nature of the matters.

Key Observation

Based on the procedures performed, we noted no material issues arising from our work inrelation to the Rental fee claims in the
Ukraine. We found management’s conclusion that it remains appropriate to record a prevision inrespect of the 2010 Rental fee claim
to be appropriate given the uncertainties associated with the remaining court process. We found the release of provisions inrespect of
four of the total 2015 Rental fee claims to be appropriate. We found the conclusion that it remains appropriate to maintain provision in
respect of the remaining 2015 Rental fee claims to be appropriate recognising the uncertainty associated with the court process. We
found the value of the provision to be approprizte and that the underlying judgments in determining the quantum to be acceptable.

We found the presentation of the provisions between current and non-current classifications in the statement of financial position to
be appropriate and consistent with the Board's assessment of the most likely timing of any required payments.

We found the disclosures in note 18 and 25 to be apprepriate.

Crur applizaticr of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality both in planning and performing our audit, and in evaluating the effect of misstatements. We
consider materiality to be the magnitude by which misstatements, including cmissions, could influence the ecenomic decisions of
reagsonable users that are taken on the basis of the financial statements. Importantly, misstatements below these levels will not
necessarily be evaluated as immaterial as we also take account of the nature of identified misstatements, and the particular
circumstances of their occurrence, when evaluating their effect on the financial statements as a whole.

Group

Materiality £1,100,000

Basis for determining materiality 5% of profit before tax hefare
exceptional items

Group

Performance materiality 825,000

Basis for performance materiality /5% of Group materiality

Company
Materiality $780,000

Basis for determining materiality 1% of total assets

Company

Performance materiality 585,000

Basis for performance materiality  73% of Company materiality

We considered the activities of the Group and previous period benchmarks. Given the Group earnings are now stabilising from prior
year, we consider a profit before tax before exceptional items based measure te appropriately reflect the key drivers of the business at
presant and therefore and appropriate basis for materiality.

Whilst materiality for the financial statements as a whole was $1,100,000, each significant compenent of the Group was audited toa
lower performance materiality ranging from $110,000 to $600,000.
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Performance materiality has been set at 75% of materiality, which is used to determine the financial statement areas that are included
within the scope of our audit and the extent of sample sizes during the audit. Performance materiality is applied at the individual
account or balance level set at an amount toreduce to an appropriately low level the probability that the aggregate of uncorrected and
undetected misstatements exceeds materiality for the financial statements as a whole.

We agreed with the Audit Committee that we would report to them all individual audit differences identified during the course of our
audit in excess of $20,000. We also agreed to report differences below that thresheld that, in our view, warranted reporting on
qualitative grounds.

fogvervicow el the sorpeal curaudit
In setting our Group audit strategy we obtain an understanding of the Group, its environreent and assessed the risks of material
misstatement in the financial statements at the Group as a whole.

Insetting the audit strategy we considered our approach inrespect of the ability of the audit to detect irregularities, including fraud.
We designed audit precedures to respond to the risk, recognising that the risk of not detecting a material misstaterment due to fraudis
higher than the risk of not detecting one resulting from error, as a fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, for example, forgery
or intentional misrepresentations cr through collusion.

We considered the laws and regulations of the Ukraine, Russia and the UK to be of significance in the context of the Group audit. As
part of our Group audit strategy direction was provided to the auditors of the significant cornponents to ensure an assessment was
performed on the extent of the compenents compliance with the relevant local and regulatory framework. As part of our Group audit
work we reviewed this work and held meetings with relevant internal Management and external third parties to form our own opinion
on the extent of Group wide compliance. In addition our tests included, but were not limited to agreement of the Financial Statement
disclasures to underlying supporting documentation, performing substantive testing onaccounts balances which were considered to be
at a greater risk of susceptibility to fraud and reviewed correspondence with regulators in so far as the correspondence related to the
Financial Statements. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures described above and the further removed non-compliance
with laws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the Financial Statements, the less likely we would become
aware of it.

The Group's operations principally comprise exploration, development and producticn assets split across two primary geographical
locations being Ukraine and Russia, We assessed there to be two significant components (Ukraine and Russia) which were both subject
to a full scope audit. Together with the parent company (also considered a significant component) and its group consolidation, which
was also subject to a tull scope audit, these represenl e signilicant components of the Group.

The three significant components subject to Tull scope audit procedures represent the principal business units and account for 100% of
the Group's revenue, 94% of the Group's profit before tax and 99% of the Group's total assets.

The audits of the Ukrainian and Russian components were performed in the Ukraine and Russia, respectively. The audits of the parent
company and the Group consolidation were performed in the United Kingdom. All of the audits were conducted by BDO LLP and BDO
network member firms.

AllBDO member firms performed the full scope audit of the significant components in the Ukraine and Russia, under the direction and
supervision of BDG LLF as Group auditor.

As part of our audit strategy, the Group Audit Partner or a Key Audit Partner and senior members of the Group audit team visited both
of the Group's key oil and gas operations during the year and met with management and the component auditers in the Ukraine and
Russia during the planning and execution phases of the audit. These teams from BDO UK performed a review of the component audit
files in the Ukraine and Russia and held meetings with the component audit teams during the planning and completion phases of their
audits.

The Group audit team was actively involved in the direction of the audits performed by the component auditors along with the
consideraticn of findings and determination of conclusions drawn. We performed additional procedures in respect of certain of the
significant risk areas that represented Key Audit Matters in addition to the procedures performed by the compenent auditor,

The remaining compenents of the group were considered non-significant and these components were principally subject to analytical
review procedures.

Orior irdromatinn

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual
report, other than the financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinion on the financial statements does nat cover the
other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in cur report, we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. [f we identify such material inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are
required to determine whether there is a material misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other
information. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of the other information, we
are required to report that fact.
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We have nothing te repert in this regard.

In this context, we also have nothing toreport inregard tec our responsibility to specifically address the following items in the other
information and to report as uncorrected material misstaterments of the other information where we conclude that those items meet
the following conditicns:

» Fair, balanced and understandable set out on page 78 the statement given by the directors that they consider the annual report and
financial statements taken as a whole is fair, balanced and understandable and provides the information necessary for shareholders
to assess the Group's performance, business model and strategy, is materially inconsistent with our knowledge obtained in the audit;
or

= Audit committee reporting set cut on page 51 the section describing the work of the audit committee does not appropriately address
matters communicated by us to the audit comrmittee; or

» Directors'statement of compliance with the UK Corporate Governance Code set cut on page 47 the parts of the directors' statement
required under the Listing Rules relating tc the Company's compliance with the UK Corporate Gevernance Code containing
provisions specified for review by the auditer in accordance with Listing Rule 2.8.10R(2) do not properly disclose a departure froma
relevant provision of the UK Cerporate Governance Cede.

Opinianson othar matrers prasavibed by the Companies Aot 2305

In our cpiniomn, the part of the directors’ remuneraticn report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the

Companies Act 20086.

In our epinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

= the information given in the strategic report and the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and

= thestrategic report and the directors’' report have been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

Mattars onwhich we are reguired to report by exesption
In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and the Parent Company and its environment obtained in the course of
the audit, we have not identified material rmsstatements in:

» thestrategicreport or the Directors' report; or

= theinformaticn about internal control and risk management systems in relaticn to financial reporting processes and about share

capital structures, given in cornpliance with rules 7.2.5 and 7.2.6 of the FCA Rules.

We have nothing te report inrespect of the following mattersin relation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us te report to you
if, in our opinion:

= adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or returns adequate for our audit have not beenreceived
from branches not visited by us; or

« the Parent Company financial staternents and the part of the directors' remuneraticn report to be audited are not in agreement with
the accounting records and returns; or

» certain disclosures of directors' remuneration specified by law are not made.

Wasponginilitias of directers

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement set out on page 76, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial staternents that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud cr error.

In preparing the financial staterments, the directors are responsible for assessing the Group's and the Parent Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, rmatters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent Company or to cease cperations, or have no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Auvditer’s responsibuiitias forthaaudit ol the finannal stataments

Our objectives are to obtain reascnable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's repoert that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with 1ISAs (UK) will always detect a material
rmisstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the Financial Reporting Council’s
website at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor's report.
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Urharmartars whichwr arareguirad toaddress

Following the recornmendation of the audit committee, we were appointed by the Beard of directors on 13 October 2018 to audit the
financial statements for the year ending 31 December 2018 and subsequent financial periods, The period of total uninterrupted
engagement is twe years, covering the years ending 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2018.

The non-audit services prohibited by the FRC's Ethical Standard were not provided to the Group or the Parent Company and we remain
independent of the Group and the Parent Company in conducting our audit.

Our audit opinion is consistent with the additional report to the audit cammittee.

Usarfourrepnr:

This report is made solely to the Parent Company's members, asa bedy, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the Companies Act
20086. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s members those matters we are required ta
state to themin an auditor's report and for no ather purpose. To the fullest extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone other than the Company and the Parent Company’s members as a body, for our audit work, for this repart, or
for the opinions we have formed.

e e’

Ryan Ferguson {Senior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behalf of BDOLLP, Statutory Auditor
London

31 March 2020
BDO LLP is & limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number 0C305127).
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

W -

Note 2019 2018
=000 =000
Revenue N 4 101,744 92.873
Cost of sales
Exceptional itern - net reversal of provision/(provision for production based taxes) i8 8,410 {5.055)
Other production based taxes 13 {23,518} {21,857)
Other cost of sales 19 {41,264} {35,629)
Total cost of sales 19 {56,372} {62.541)
Gross profit 45372 30,332
Administrative expenses (13,207} {13,545)
Loss on foreign exchange {615) {711}
Profit from operations before exceptional items 23,140 20,731 J
Profit from operations after exceptional items 31,550 15,676
Finance income 20 857 908
Finance costs 21 {2,054) {2,510}
Fair value mavement on derivative liability 12 62 {59}
Profit before tax 30,415 14,015
Taxation - current 25 {6.561) {5.478}
Taxation - deferrad
- before the excepticnal items 25 {1.968}) 1,472
- onthe exceptional items 25 (L.677} 1,761
Total taxation 25 {10,206} (2,245)
qujt from continuing operations (attributable to equity holders of the parent company} 20,209 11,770
E;ct):: from discontinued operation {attributable to equity holders of the parent company}, net 14 2,004 3,487
Prefit for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 22,213 15,257

The above consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 91 to 128
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For the year ended 31 December 2018

s

Nate 2018 2018
27 000 +000

Earnings per share for profit from continuing operations attributable te
the ordinary equity holders of the parent company:
Basic profit per 10p ordinary share {in cents)
-after exceptional items 27 12.02 7.06
-before exceptional items ¥ 8.02 9.04
Diluted profit per 10p ordinary share (in cents)
-after exceptional items 27 12.02 6.67
-before exceptional items 27 B8.02 B.54
Earnings per share for (loss) /profit from discontinued operations
attributable to the ordinary equity holders of the parent company:
Basic profit/(loss) per 10p ordinary share (in cents)
-after exceptional items 27 1.19 2.09
-before exceptional items 27 {0.14) 209
Diluted profit/{loss} per 10p ordinary share {in cents)
-after exceptional items 27 1.18 1.98
-before exceptional items 27 (0.14) 198
Earnings per share for profit attributable to the ordinary equity holders of
the parent company:
Basic profit per 10p erdinary share {in cents)
-after exceptionalitems 27 13.21 g.15
-before exceptional items 27 7.88 11.13
Diluted profit per 10p ordinary share {(in cents}
-after exceptional items 27 13.21 8.65
-before exceptional items 2/ 7.88 10.51

The abave consolidated income statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes or pages 91 to 128
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Consolidated statement of comprehensive income

For the year ended 31 December 2019

2019 2018
000 s000
Profit for the year 22,213 15,257
Other comprehensive income to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods when specific
conditions are met:
- Currency translation differences 21,481 (19,475)
Other comprehensive income that will not be reclassified te profit or loss in subsequent periods:
- Remeasurements of post-employment benefit obligations (94) (22)
- Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income 500 -
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax 21,887 (19,497)
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to equity shareholders of the parent company 44,100 (4,240}
Continuing operations 42,096 (7.587)
Discentinued operations 2,004 3,347

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notas on
pages 91 to 128
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Consolidated statement of financial position

Asat 31 December 2019
Nute 2019 2018
=000 <000
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment S(al 215,728 175,112
Deferred tax assets 26 8,012 10,419
[nvestment & 500 -
224,240 185,531
Current assets
Inventories 7 6,915 4,352
Trade and other receivables 8 3,931 5111
Cash and cash egquivalents 9 20,629 18182
31,475 28,645
Assets classified as held for sale 14 3,187 1,237
Totalcurrent assets - © 34B62 28882
Total assets 258,902 215413
LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Current tax liabilities {1,941) (2,214}
Trade and other payables 1o (14,158) (10,782)
Borrowings Iy {5.683) {5.962)
Provisions 18 {15,861) (12,645)
Leasge liabilities 1o (1.461) -
(39,104) (31.603)
Liabilities of dispasal group classified as held for sale S 14 (287) (775) ;
Total current liabilities {39.391) (32.378)
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 18 {31,769) {35,673)
Borrowings 11 - (5.041)
Derivatives 12 - 62}
Defined pension benefit plan {859) (577)
Lease liabilities 10 (628) -
Deferred tax liabilities 26 - -
(33,256) {41,353}
Total liabilities {72,647) {73.731)
Net agsets 186,255 141,682
EQUITY
Share capital 16 26,666 26,666
Share premiurm 97,476 97,476
Other reserves i7 (150.736) {172,623)
'Retained earnings e - 212,849  19G,163
Total equity - 186,255 141,682

Comparative amounts in respect of inventories and property, plant and equipment have baer ceclassified far comparability with 2019, Please refer to Mate 2.

These financial statements on pages 85 to 128 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

Victor Gladun Chief Executive Officer Ben Fraser

////

Chief Financial Officer

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes on pages 91 to 128
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Consolidated statement of changes in equity

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Attributable to equity sharehoiders of the parent

Share Share Retained  Other reserves Total
capital premium Earnings {Note 17} equity
000 s000 2000 £000 s000
At1 January 2019 26,6866 97,4786 190,163 {172,623) 141,882
Profit for the year - - 22,213 - 22,213
E;S?ai?gisdifferences arising on translation of overseas - R R 21,481 21.481
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations - - - {94) (54)
Changes in the fair value of equity investments at fair
value through other comprehensive income ) ) ) 500 500
e o bl ol : - mas amr
Transactions with equity shareholders of the parent
Share-based payment charge - - 14 - 14
Exercise of share options (Note 13) - - 17 - 17
Sale of shares held by Employee Benefit Trust (Note 15} - - 442 - 442
Total transactions with equity shareholders of the parent - - 473 - 473
At 31 December 2018 26,666 97.476 212,849 (150,736) 186,255
At January 2018 26,666 97,476 174,893 (153,126) 145,909
Profit for the year - - 15,257 - 15,257
E;{;?:trfssdifferences arising on translation of ocverseas ) . ) (18,475) (19,475)
Remeasurement of post-employment benefit obligations - - - {22) (22)
Total com i i i
shareholdzz‘:];irtl;?;;?:;:tt“butable oy j ) 15257 (19.457) (4.240)
Transactions with equity shareholders of the parent
Share-based payment charge - - 13 - 13
Total transactions with equity shareholders of the parent - - 13 - 13
At 31 December 2018 26,666 97.476 180,163 (172,623) 141,682

Share premium represents the amounts received by the Company on the issue of its shares which were in excess of the nominal valtue
of the shares.

Retained earnings represent the curnulative net gains and losses recognised in the statement of comprehensive income less any
amounts reflected directly in other reserves,

Otherreserves - please refer to the Note 17 for the details.
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Conso it'iné.'"éedus"tdatement of cash flows

For the year ended 31 December 2019

Note 2019 2018
$000 <000

Cash flows from operating activities -
Cash generated from continuing operations 29 41,386 37.281
Cash used in discontinued operations 14 {1786} {158)
Bank fees paid - (69)
[nterest paid (1,131} {1,870}
Income tax paid {7.080) (3,896)
Net cash generated from operating activities 32,989 31288
Cash flows from investing activities
Interest received 818 208
Dividend received 27 -
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 47 3
Purchase of property, plant and equipment (27,380) (13,688)
Net ¢ash used in investing activities {26,488) (12,777}
Cash flows frem financing activities
Restricted cash movement 211 286
Exercise of share options 17 -
Sale of shares held by Employee Benefit Trust 442 -
Repayment of borrowings {5.280) (5,760)
Lease liabilities {1,778) -
Nel vash used in financing activities (6.386) (5,474)
Increase in cash and cash equivalents in the year 115 13,037
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January 19,455 6,929
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents 1,158 {511}
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December 20,725 19,455
Cash and cash equivalents in continuing operations at the end of the year 9 20,629 _EZBZ—

Cash and cash equivalents in discontinued operations at the end of the year 14 96 273
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Notes f&lébiisoﬁdated financial statements

1. General information

JKX 0il & Gas plc (the ultimate parent of the Group hereafter, *the Cornpany’) is a public limited company listed on the Londen Stock
Exchange which is domiciled and incorperated in England and Wales under the UK Companies Act. The registered number of the
Company is 3050645. The registered office is 6 Cavendish Square, London, W1G OPD and the principal place of business is disclosed in
the introduction to the Annual Report.

The principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries {the ‘Group’} are the exploration for, appraisal and developruent of eil and
gasreserves.

2.Basis of preparation

The Group's financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs") as
adopted by the European Union, IFRS Interpretations Committee {IFRS [C') interpretations and the Companies Act 2008 applicable for
Companies reporting under IFRS and therefore the consolidated financial statements comply with Article 4 of the EUJ [AS Regulations.
The Group's financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for derivative instruments held
at fair value through profit or loss. The principal accounting policies adopted by the Group are set cut below.

Additionally, on 1 January 2019, the functional currency of the Group's wholly owned Ukrainian subsidiary Peltava Petroleum
Company {PPC’) changed from US Dellar ($) to Ukrainian Hryvnia (hryvnia). The change in the functional currency was considered
appropriate as gas prices are denominated in hryvnia in a freely traded gas market and the increased impact of local market forces on
gas prices, together with the increasing hryvnia cost base, development plan and availability of hryvnia draw dewns in the Group's
facilities. As such, management concluded that hryvnia is the currency of the primary economic environment which the Company
operates in. This change in functional currency is applied prospectively with effect from 1 January 2019. The exchange rate used to
translate the balance sheet to reflect the change in functional currency on adoption is $1: 27 .69 hryvnia.

Comparative amounts in respect of property, plant and equipment ard inventories have been reclassfied for comparability with 2019 in
accordance with IFRS. The reclassifications had no impact on net assets or the profit for the period.

Comparatives

= Inthe 2018 Annualreport a group of inventories of $1.6m held for well workovers was included in inventories, whereasin 2019
Annual report they were reclassified under property, plant and equipment to conform with 2019 presentation and to more
appropriately reflect their nature. In 2019 Annual report 31 December 2018 inventories balance was reduced by $1.6m from $6.0m
to $4.4m; preperty, plant and equipment balance was increased by $1.6m from $173.5m te 5175 1m.

Guing coneern

The Directors note that the Group is debt free and has generated $33.0m of cperating cash flow in 2019, centinued its drilling program
and ended the year with $20.6m of cash in continuing operations. The Board have reviewed the Group's forecast cash flows for the
period to June 2021. Capital and operating costs are based on approved budgets and latest forecasts in the case of 2020 and current
development plans in the case of 2021. The forecast cash flows reviewed include scenarios where potential liabilities arise in relation to
therental fee claims in Ukraine {(see Note 25 to the consclidated financial statements) including assessments of the timing of such
potential payments undertaken following detailed analysis of Ukrainian legislation and the status of each claim with internal and
external legal and tax experts. Based on the Group’s cash flow forecasts, the Directors believe that the combination of its current cash
balances, net cash flows from cperations, as well as the anticipated availability of additional courses of action with respect to financing
the settlement of any successful rental fee claims arising in the forecast period, mean that the Group will be able to meet its liabilities
and commitments as they fall due across the forecast period. In addition, the Group benefits from an undrawn Tascornbank loan facility
of UAH280m (£11.8m) and overdraft facility of UAH50m ($2.1m} that were both renewed in December 2019, although each draw down
is subject to credit approval by the bank.

Notwithstanding the Group’s current financial performance and position, the Board are cognisant of the potential impacts of COVID-19
on the Group. Whilst there has been little impact of COVID-159 on the Group's operations at present there may be significant impacts on
the business going forward which are currently unknown. The Board has considered possible reverse stress case scenarios for the
impact on the Group’s eperations, financial position and forecasts. Whilst the potential future impacts of Covid-19 are unknown the
Board has considered operational disrupticn that may be caused by the factors such as a) restrictions applied by governments, illness
amongst our workforce and disruption to supply chain and szles channets; b) market volatility in respect of commodity prices
assoclated with Covid-18 in addition te geopoelitical factors; and ) the Group's ability to utilise its credit facilities.

In addition to sensitivities that reflect future expectations regarding country, commodity price and currency risks that the Group may
encounter, in March 2020 and to date, reverse stress tasts have been run to reflect possible negative effects of COVID-19 including
sustained lower commodity prices and one month production stop in both Russia and Ukraine. None of the scenarios have recognised
any possible future benefit that may result from the arbitration award (see Note 25 to the consolidated financial statements). Should
the rental claims becorne payable during the forecast period, or more extended disruption to production occur, the Group would likely
need to utilise the Tascom facilities, make forward gas sales, agrea a payment plan with the tax authorities, or take other such measure
as may be required. Whilst the Board anticipate being able to draw down under those facilities, draw down requests are subject to
certain credit approval precedures by the bank and there can be ne guarantee that such funding will be made available as and when
required. Similarly the Board anticipate being able to secure a payment arrangement with the tax authorities if needed, securing
sufficient forward gas sales or taking other such measures as may be required but there can be no guarantee that these measures will
be available when required or sufficient.
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Having considered the forecasts and sensitivity scenarios the Board considers it is appropriate to adopt the going concern basis of
accounting in preparing these financial statements. However, at the date of approval of these financial statements, the potential future
impact of COVID-191s uncertain and there can be no guarantees that the Group would receive credit approval for draw downs on the
Tascom facilities, secure an appropriate payment plan arrangement for rental fee claims that fell due, secure sufficient forward gas
szles or be able to take suitable other measures as required to maintain liguidity. These circumstances indicate the existence of a
material uncertainty which may cast significant doubt about the Group's ability to continue as a going concern and therefore it may be
unable toTealise its assets and discharge its liabilities in the normal course of business. As such thisis considered to be a material
uncertainty. The financial statements do not include the adjustments that would result if the Group was unable to continue as a going
TOTICRIN.

Aduption of pew and sevised standards

New standards, interpretations and amendments effective from 1 January 2019 ‘
The disclosed palicies have been applied consistently by the Group for bath the current and previous financial year with the exception
of the new standards adopted.

The European Union ("EU”) IFRS financial information has been drawn up on the basis of accounting policies consistent with those
appiied in the financial statements for the year to 31 December 2018, except for the following:

{a) IFRS 16 Leases’ !
{p) 1FRIC 23Uncertzinty over Income Tax Positions’

{c} Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation - Amendments to [FRS 8

{d) Long-term Interestsin Associatesand Joint Ventures - Amendments to IAS 28

(e} Annuallmprovements to IFRS Standards 2015 - 2017 Cycle

(f} Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement - Armmendments to IAS 19

The application of (b) to (f) has had no impact on the disclosures or the amounts recognised in the Group's cansolidated financial
statements.

There were no retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting IFRS 16 'Leases” The Group amended accounting policies applied from
1 January 2019 are disclosed in Note 3 under ‘Significant accounting policies’.

IFRS 16 specifies how to recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting model,
requiring lessees to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all material leases. It resuits in almost all leases being
recognised on the balance sheet by lessees. as the distinction between operating and finance leases was removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases. The Group’s well service and rental arrangements in Ukraine for cil and gas extraction activities are outside
of the scope of [FRS 16.

The Group adopted IFRS 16 from 1 January 20195 using the modified retrospective approach and accordingly the information presented '
for 2018 is not restated. [t remains as previously reported under IAS 17 and related interpretations. On initial application, the Group

elected to record right-of-use assets based on the corresponding lease liability. A right-of-use asset and lease obligations of $3.1m were

recorded as of 1 January 2019, with ne net impact on retained earnings. When measuring lease habilities, the Group discounted lease

payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2019, The weighted-average rate applied is 16%.

The balance sheet shows the following arnounts relating to leases:

Right-of-use
asset
recognised Depreciation
1 January during the chargefor 31 December
2019 year the year 2019
$000 $'000 2000 2000
Qil and gas asset ~ coil tubing 2.159 - (1,177} 982
Properties 907 446 {332) 1,021
Total 3.066 446 {1,509) 2,002
31 December
2019
5000
Lease liabilities

Current 1,461
Non-current 628

Total 2,089
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The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases:

31 December
2019
000
Interest on lease liabilities (included in finance cost} 254
Expenses relating to short-term leases (included in administrative expenses) 235
Expenses relating to low-value assets, excluding short-term leases of low-value assets {included in administrative a1
expenses)
Total 520
31 December
2019
£000
Amounts recognised in the statement of cash flows
Total cash outflow for leases 1,776

The following table reconciles the Group's operating lease obligations at 31 Decernber 2018, as disclosed in the Group's consolidated
financial statements, to the lease obligations recognised on initial application of [FRS 16 at 1 January 2019,

5
QOperating lease commitments at 31 December 2C18 39
Discounted using the incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2018 28
Effect of discounting 0.4
Recognition exemption for short-term leases 0.2
Assets that do not meet definition of a lease 01
Impairment provision to be recognised on one of the properties c4

Effective as of 1 January 2019, IFRIC 23 explains how to recognise and measure deferred and current income tax assets and liabilities
where there is uncertainty over a tax treatment. An uncertain tax treatment is any tax treatment applied by the Group where there is
uncertainty over whether that treatment will be accepted by the tax authority. IFRIC 23 applies to all aspects of income tax accounting
where there is an uncertainty regarding the treatment of an item, including taxable profit or loss, the tax bases of assets and liabilities,
tax losses and credits and tax rates. There was no impact on adoption of [FRIC 23 on 1 January 2019.

New standards, interpretations and amendments not yet effective
Below is a list of new and revised [FRSs that are not yet mandatorily effective {but allow early application) for the year ending
31 December 2012 and have not heen early adopted by the Group. These standards are not expected to have a material impact on the
Groupin the future reporting periods and on foreseeable future transactions.
Effective for

annual periods
heginning on or

after
Amendments to IFRS 3, ‘Business combinations’ 01-Jan-20
Amendments to [AS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of Material 01-Jan-20
Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in [FRS Standards  01-Jan-20
[FRS 17, ‘Insurance contracts’ T 01-Jan-21

3.Significant accounting policies

Bagisof consaliiatior
The consolidated financial statements incorporate the financial statements of the Company and entities controlled by the Company (its
subsidiaries) made up to 31 December each year. All intragroup balances, transactions, income and expenses and profits or losses,
including unrealised profits arising from intragroup transactions, have been eliminated on consclidation.

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities} over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the
Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvernent with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date on which contral is transferred to the Group. They
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are deconselidated from the date that control ceases. The consclidated financial statements include all the assets, liabilities, revenues,
expenses and cash flows of the Companies and their subsidiaries after eliminating intragroup transactions as noted above. Uniform
accounting policies are applied across the Group.

Year end for one of the Group's subsidiary, JKX 0il & Gas {Jersey} Ltd, is non-contemperaneous with the Group's year end, but its
financial results are being consoclidated at 31/12/2018.

Furmign corranging
Allamounts in these financial statements are presented in thousands of US dollars, unless otherwise stated, The presentation currency
of the Group is the US Dollar.

Each entity in the Group is measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates ('the
functional currency’). Foreign currency transactions are translated into functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing at the
dates of the transactions or valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denaminated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the income statement.

The effect of a change in functional currency is accounted for prospectively. The Group translates all items into the new functional
currency using the exchange rate at the date of the change. The resulting translated amounts for non-monetary items are treated as
their historical cost.

On consolidation of subsidiaries and joint operations with a non US Dollar presentation currency, their statements of financial position
are translated into US Dollar at the closing rate and incorme and expenses at the average monthly rate. All resulting exchange
differences arising in the period are recognised in other comprehensive income, and cumulatively in the Group's translation reserve.
Such translation differences are reclassified to profit or loss in the pericd in which any such foreign operation is disposed of.

Subsidiaries within the Group hold monetary intercompany balances for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the
foreseeable future and thus this is considered to be part of the Group’s net investment in the relevant subsidiary. An exchange
difference arises on translation in the company income statement which on conselidation is recognised in equity, only being recognised
inthe income statement on the disposal of the net investment.

The major exchange rates used for the revaluation of the closing statement of financial position at 31 December 2019 were 51.£0.76
{2018.$1:£0.78), $1: 23.68 Hryvnia {201 8: $1: 27.69 Hryvnia). ¢1: 61 31Roubles (2018: $1: 69.47 Roubles), $1: 294.43 Hungarian Forint
{2018: 1. 280.31 Hungarian Forint).

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition are treated as assets/liabilities of the foreign entity and translated at the
closing rate.

Proparty giantand egapme BEW-ERETE
Property‘ plant and equipment comprises the Group 5 tanglble 011 and gas assets tagether with computer equipment. motor vehicles and
other equipment and are carried at cost, less any accurnulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. Cost includes purchase
price and censtruction costs for qualifying assets, together with borrowing costs where applicable, in accordance with the Group's

accounting policy. Depreciation of these assets commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.

smrard otherin

Oil and gas assets
Exploration, evaluation and development expenditure is accounted for under the ‘successful efforts’ method. The successful efforts
method means that only costs which relate directly to the discovery and development of specific oil and gas reserves are capitalised.

Exploration and evaluation costs are valued at costs less accumulated impairment losses and capitalised within intangible assets.
Development expenditure on producing assets isaccounted for in accordance with JAS 16, ‘Property, plant and equipment’”. Costs
incurred prior to obtaining legal rights to explore are expensed immediately to the income statement.

All lease and licence acquisition costs, geological and geophysical costs and other direct costs of exploration, evaluation and
development are capitalised as intangible assets or property plant and equipment according to their nature. Intangible assets are not
amortised and comprise casts relating to the exploration and evaluation of properties which the Directors cansider to be unevaluated
until reserves are appraised as commercial, at which time they are transferred to property plant and equipment following an
impairment review and are depreciated accordingly. Where properties are appraised to have no commercial value, the associated costs
are treated as an impairment loss in the period in which the determination is made.

Costs related to hydrecarbon production activities including producticn plants and capital spares are depreciated on a field by field
unit of production method based on commercial proved plus probable reserves of the production licence, except in the case of assets
whose usefullife differs from the lifetime of the field, which are depreciated on a straight-line basis over their anticipated useful life of
up to 10 years.

For assets under construction depreciation begins when the assets are avaitable for use and continues until the assets are derecognised,
evenifitisidle.

The calculation of the ‘unit of preduction’ depreciation takes account of estimated future development costs. The ‘unit of production’
rate is set at the beginning of each accounting period. Changes in reserves and cost estimates are recognised prospectively applied from
the date of the Board appreval of revised field development plans.
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Other assets
Depreciation is charged so as to write off the cost, less estimated residual value, over their estimated usefui lives, using the straight-
line method, for the following classes of assets:

Motor vehicles -4 years
Computer equipment -3years
Other equipment -5to 10 years

The estimated useful lives of property plant and equipment and their residual values are reviewed on an annual basis and, if necessary,
changes in useful lives are accounted for prospectively. Assets under construction are not subject to depreciation until the date on
which the Group makes them available for use.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an asset is determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the income statement for the relevant period.

Dusziness combinatinag

The acquisition of subsidiaries is accounted for using the purchase method. The cast of the acguisition is measured at the aggregate of
the fair values, at the date of exchange, of assets given, liabilities incurred or assumed and equity instruments issued by the Group in
exchange for control of the acquiree, The acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the criteria for
recognition under [FR3 3 {revised) are recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date. In a business combination achieved in
stages, the previously held equityinterest in the acquiree is re-measured at its acquisition date fair value and the resulting gain or loss,
if any, is recognised in the income staternent. Acquisition costs are expensed.

Goodwillis recognised as an asset and is initially measured at cost being the excess of the cost of the business combination over the
Group's share in the net fair value of the acquiree’s identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities. After initial recognition,
goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances indicate a potential impairment. Impairment losses on goodwill are not reversed.

On disposal of a subsidiary or joint arrangement, the attributable amount of unamertised goodwill, which has not been subject to
impairment, is included in the determination of the profit or loss on disposal.

Meprourrent assets held for eale and dissontinuad operacion:

A discontinued operation is a component of the entity that has been disposed of or is classified as held for sale and that representsa
separate major line of business or geographical area of operations, is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of such a line of
business or area of operations, or is a subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Nen-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a
sale transaction rather than through continuing use and a sale is considered highly probable, They are measured at the lower of their
carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell, except for assets such as deferred tax assets, and financial assets within the scope of
IFRS 9, which are specifically exempt from this requirement. An asset classified as held for sale is not depreciated.

Nen-current assets classified as held for sale and the assets of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented separately from
the other assets in the statement of financial position. The liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are presented
separately from other liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Any gain or loss from disposal, together with the results of these operations until the date of disposal, is reported separately as
discontinued operations. The financial information of discontinued operations is excluded from the respective captionsin the
Consolidated financial statements and related notes for all periods presented. Comparatives in the statement of financial position are
not represented when a non-current asset or disposal group is classified as held for sale. Comparatives are represented for
presentation of discontinued operations in the Statement of cash flow and Statement of comprehensive income, Further information
on discontinued operations and non-current assets held for sale can be found in note 14 “Discontinued operations and assets classified
as held for sale”.

Imparrreent ciproperty plantand sguipment and intangibls
Whenever events or changes incircumstances indicate that the carrying amount may nat be recoverable, the Group reviews the
carrying arnounts of its property, plant and equipment and intangible assets to determine whether there is any indicatien that those
assets have suffered an impairment loss. Individual assets are grouped together as a cash-generating unit for impairment assessment
purpeses at the lowest level at which their identifiable cash flows, that are largely independent of the cash flows of the other Groups
assets, can be determined. A cash-generating unit is the smallest group of assets that independently generates cash flow and whose
cash flow is largely independent of the cash flows generated by other assets.

If any such indication of impairment exists the Group makes an estimate of its recoverable amount.

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value in use. Where the carrying amount of an individual
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset/cash-generating unit is considered impaired and is written
down to itsrecoverable amount. Fair value less costs of disposal is determined by discounting the post-tax cash flows expected to be

generated by the cash-generating unit, net of associated selling costs, and takes into account assumptiens market participants would
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use in estimating fair value. In assessing the value in use, the estimated future cash flows are adjusted for the risks specific to the
asset/cash-generating unit and are discounted to their present value that reflects the current market indicators.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset/cash-generating unit is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have
been determined had no impairment loss been recognised far the asset {cash-generating unit) in prior years. Areversalof an
impairment loss is recognised as income immediately.

HMuryowing casts

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, censtructien or production of qualifying assets, which are assets that
nacessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such
time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. To the extent that variable rate borrowings are used to finance
aqualifying asset and are hedged in an effective cash flow hedge of interest rate risk, the effective portion of the derivative is
recognised in other comprehensive incorme and reclassified to profit or loss when the qualifying asset impacts profit or logs. To the
extent that fixed rate borrowings are used to finance a qualifying asset and are hedged in an effective fair value hedge of interest rate
1isk, the capitalised borrowing costs reflect the hedged interest rate. Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the peried in which they are incurred.

TLE Brnployee Banefur Trust

fe P
The IKX Employee Benefit Trust was established in 2014 to hold ordinary shares purchased to satisfy various new share scheme
awards made to the employees of the Company which will be transferred to the members of the scheme on their respective vesting
dates subject to satisfying the performance conditions of each scheme.

Firspmmlimauments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the consolidated statement of financial pesition when the Group becomes
party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Convertible bonds due 2020 - embedded derivative
The net proceeds received from the issue of convertible bonds at the date af issue have been split between two elements: the host debt
instrurnent classified as a financial liability in Borrowings, and the embedded derivative.

The fair value of the embedded derivative has been calculated first and the residual value is assigned to the host debt liability. The
difference between the proceeds of issue of the convertible bonds and the fair value assigned to the embedded derivative, representing
the value of the hest debt instrument, is in¢luded as Borrowings and is not remeasured. The host debt component is then carried at
amortised cost and the fair value of the embedded derivative is determined at inception and at each reporting date with the fair value
changes being recognised in profit or loss.

Issue costs are apportioned between the host debt element {included in Borrowings) and the derivative component of the convertible
bond based on their relative carrying amounts at the date of issue.

The interest expense on the component included in Borrowings is calculated by applying the effective interest method, with interest
recogrised on an effective yield basis.

Upen redemption of convertible bonds by the Company in the market, the difference between the repurchase cost and the total of the
carrying amount of the liability plus the repurchased embedded option te convert is recorded in the income statement.

Equity investments at fair value through other comprehensive income {FVQCI}

Investments in unquoted equity instruments were previously measured at cost less impairment as allowed by [AS 39, As of 1 January
2018 investments in equity instruments were reclassified to financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The
Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOC]). Movements in the carrying amount are taken through OCl, except for the recognition of
irnpairment gains or losses, interest and dividends income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in profit or loss.
There was e impact of reclassification on the carrying value of its unlisted investment. Please refer to Note 6 for details.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis. The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period.

Trade and other receivables

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at their transaction price in accordance with [FRS 9 and are subsequently
measured at amertised cost. The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected credit losses (ECL) prescribed by IFRS
9, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. Expected credit losses are assessed ona
forward locking basis. The loss allowance is measured at initial recognition and throughout its life at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
Any impairment is recognised in the income statement within ‘Administrative expenses’,
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Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and current balances with banks and similar institutions. which are readily
convertible to knewn amounts of cash. Cash equivalents are short-term with an original maturity of less than 3 months.

Restricted cash
Restricted cash is disclosed separately on the face of the statement of financial position and dencted as restricted when it is not under

the exclusive control of the Group.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method if the time value of money is significant.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into. An
equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity
instruments issued by the Company are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.

Inventsries

Inventory is comprised of produced oil and gas and certain materials and equipment that are acquired for future use such as: parts for
cars/trucks, field maintenance, overalls, hand-tools, general materials, accessortes, small value parts for production equiprnent. The il
and gasis valued at the lower of average production cost and net realisable value; the materials and equipment inventory is valued at
purchase cost. Cost comprises direct materials and, where applicable, direct labour costs plus attributable overheads based on a normal
level of activity and other costs associated in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is calculated using
the weighted average method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling price less all estimated costs of completion and
costs to be incurred in marketing, selling and distribution and any provisions for cbsolescence.

Tazilien

Income tax expense represents the sum of current tax payable and deferred tax.

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported in the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates to items charged or credited directly to equity or in other
coraprehensive income, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial statements and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temperary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary differences arising on investrnents in subsidiaries, and interests in joint
ventures, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no lenger probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Any suchreduction shall be reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available,

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised
based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there exists
alegal and enforceable right to offset and they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends to
settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Sagmentaroporning

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the Chief Operating Decision Maker.
The Chief Operating Decision Maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the Executive Directors of the Group that make the strategic decisions.

Peanteronhiganong

The liability recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit pension plans is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period. The defined benefit obligation is calculated annually by an independent actuary using the
projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows using interest
rates of government bonds that are denorminated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid (hryvnia}, and that have terms
approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Currently, there is no sufficiently developed market of bonds denominated in
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hryvnia with a sufficiently long period of repayment which would be consistent with an estimated peried of payment of all benefits. in
such cases the Standard 2llows using current market rates to discount respective short-term payments and calculating the discount
rate for long-term liabilities by extending the current market rates along the yield curve.

The current service cost of the defined benefit plan, recognised in the Income Statement, except where included in the cost of an asset,
reflects the increase in the defined benefit obligation resulting from employee service in the current year, benefit changes
curtailments and settlements. Past-service costs are recognised immediately in the Income Statement.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation. This cost is
included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit er loss.

Actuarial gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged or credited to equity
in other comprehensive income in the period in which they arise.

“ o Tk e e
cToptigr s

The group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation plan, under which the Company receives services from Senior
Management as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the group. The fair value of the services received from Senior
Management in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised as an expense, The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

= including any market performance conditions; (for example, the Company's share price);

» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions {for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period); and

= including the impact of any non-vesting conditions {(for example, the requirement for employees tosave).

Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of options that are expected to vest.
The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the group revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the non-
market vesting conditions. [t recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any. in the income statement, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the options are exercised, the company issues new shares or shares held by the JKX Employee Benefit Trust. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity financial statements.

The social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options is considered an integral part of the grant
itself, and the change will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

The rules regarding the scheme are described in the Remuneration Report on pages 67 and 68 and in Note 24 on share based payments.

The Group operates a bonus scheme for its employees. The bonus payments are made annually, normally in January of each year and the
costs are accrued in the period to which theyrelate.

Tt e

The Group cantributes to the individual pension scheme of the qualifying employees’ choice. Contributions are charged to the income
statement as they become payable. The Group has ne further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.

[

TNz LALY

Provision is made for the cost of decommissioning assets at the time when the cbligation to decommission arises. Such provision
represents the estimated discounted liability for costs which are expected to be incurred in removing production facilities and site
restoration at the end of the preducing life of each field. A corresponding item of property plant and equipment is also created at an
amount equal to the provision. This is subsequently depreciated as part of the capital costs of the production facilities. Any change in
the present value of the estimated expenditure attributable to changes in the estirnates of the cash flow or the current estimate of the
discount rate used are reflected as an adjustment to the provision and the property plant and equipment. Discount rates are based on
governmental bonds which will be redeemed around the end of field life. The unwinding of the discount is recognised as a finance cost.

Fravisions
Provisions are created where the Group has a present obligation as a result of a past event, where it is probable that it will result inan
outflow of economic benefits to settle the obligation, and where it can be reliably measured.
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Provisions are measured at the best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the cbligation at the balance sheet date, and are
discounted te present value where the effect is material. Where amounts provided for attract interest reflecting the appropriate time
value of money no discounting is applicable. The amounts provided are based on the Group's best estimate of the likely committed
cutflow.

Amounts received in advance for future gas sales are recorded as contract liabilities and revenue isrecognised as the performance
obligaticns are met.

)

i
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Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when or as the Group satisfies a performance obligation by transferringa
promised good or service to a customer. A good or service is transferred when the custorner obtains control of that good or service. The
transfer of control of 0il, natural gas, LPG, condensate, and other items sold by the Group usually coincides with title passing to the
customer and the customer taking physical pessession. The Group principally satisfies its performance obligaticns at a point in time

and the amounts of revenue recognised relating to performance obligations satisfied over time are not material.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideraticnreceived, excluding discounts, rebates, value added tax (“VAT"} and other
sales taxes or duty. Production based taxes are not included in revenue, they are paid on production and recorded within cost of sales.

Amounts received in advance for future gas sales are recorded as contract liabilities and revenue is recognised as the performance
obligations are met.

Share capitaland treassrysharas
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised asa
deduction from share premium, net of any tax effects.

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributabie
costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised in retained earnings.

Repurchased JKX 0il & Gas plc shares are classified as treasury shares in shareholders’ equity and are presented in the retained
earnings. The consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued.

When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting
surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in share prernium. No gain or loss is recognised in the financial statements on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares.

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The asset is depreciated to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the lease term using the straight-line
method as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits. The lease term includes
pericds covered by an option to extend if the Group is reasonably certain to exercise that option. Lease terms range from two to three
years for oil and gas equipment and offices. Service agreements for equipment on the working sites are not considered leases as, based
upon an assessment of the terms and nature of their contractual arrangements, the contracts do not convey the right to contral the use
of ar identified asset. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are nat paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determired, the Group's incremental borrowing
rate, Generally, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is measured at amertised cost
using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change in anindex
or rate, if there is a change in the Group's estimate of the ameount expected to be payable under a residual value guarantee, ar if the
Group changes its assessment of whether it will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option, When the lease liability is
remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or the effect isrecorded
in profit or loss if the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset has beenreduced to zerc.

The Group elected to apply the practical expedient not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases that
have alease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Group alsc made use of the practical expedient to not
recognise a right-of-use asset or a lease liability for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application.

The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense cn a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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The Group did not elect to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases on the date of
initial application, as previously assessed under 1AS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Group applied the definiticn of a lease under IFRS 16 to all
existing contracts.

Tindands
Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid to the Cormpany's shareholders. Finzal dividends are recognised when they are
approved by shareholders.

S ceptional rtams

Exceptional items comprise items of income and expense, including tax items, that are material either because of their size or their
nature and unlikely to recur and which merit separate disclasure in order to provide an understanding of the Group's underlying
financial performance. Examples of events which may give rise to the disclosure of material items of income and expense as
exceptional items include, but are not limited to litigation claims by ar against the Group and the restructuring of components of the
Group's operations. Exceptional items are disclosed separately on the face of the income statement.

Crrniesl aconuniing #3timates asrumpnions and iudyementy

The Group makes estimates, assumptions and judgements concerning the future, The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldoin equal the related actual results. The estimates, assumptions and judgements that have a risk of causing material adjustment to
the carrying amounts of assets and Habilities within the next financial year are discussed below.

a) Recoverability of oil and gas assets and intangible oil and gas costs {Note 5 (a})

Costs capitalised as oil and gas assefs in property, plant and equipment, and intangible assets are assessed for impairment when
circumstances suggest that the carrying value may exceed its recoverable value. As part of this assessment, management has carried
out an impairment test {ceiling test) on the oil and gas assets classified as property, plant and equipment, where indicators of
impairment have been identified on a CGU. This test compares the carrying value of the assets at the reporting date with the expected
discounted cash flows from each project prepared under the fair value legs cost of disposal approach. For the discounted cash flows to
be calculated, managernent has used a production profile based on its best estimate of proven and probable reserves of the assets and a
range of assurnptions, including an internal oil and gas price profile benchmarked to mean analysts' cansensus and third party
estimates and a discount rate which, taking intc account other assumptions used in the calculation, management considers to be
reflective of the risks. This assessment involves judgement as ta (i) the likely commerciality of the asset, {ii} proven, probable (2P
reserves which are estimated using standard recognised evaluation techriques (iii} future revenues and estimated development costs
perlaiiing Lo the agset, {iv) the discount rate to be applied for the purposes of deriving a recoverable value including estirmates of the
relevant levels of risk premiums applied to the assets. In cases where impairment tests demonstrate headroom, reversals of
impairment charges are not recognised in the Group income statement if the existence of the headroom is sensitive to pricing,
production or discount rates.

b} Depreciation of oil and gas assets (Note 5 (a))

Giland gas assets held in property, plant and equipment are mainly depreciated on a unit of production basis at a rate calculated by
reference to proved plus probable reserves and incorporating the estimated future cost of developing and extracting those reserves.
Future development costs are estimated using assumptions as to the numbers of wells required to produce those reserves, the cost of
the wells, future production facilities and operating costs; together with assumptions on oil and gas realisations based on the approved
field development plans.

c¢) Taxation including rental fees and deferred tax assets (Notes 25 and 26)

Tax previsions are recognised when it is considered probable that there will be a future outflow of funds to the tax authorities. In this
case, provision is made/reversed for the amount that is expected to be settled or won, The provision is updated at each reporting date
by managerment by interpretation and application of known local tax laws with the assistance of established legal, tax and accounting
advisors. These interpretations can change over time depending on precedent set and circumstances. In addition new laws can come
into effect which can conflict with others and, therefore, are subject to varying interpretations and changes which may be applied
retrospectively. A change in estimate of the likelihood of a future outflow or in the expected amount to be settled would resuit ina
charge or credit to income in the period in which the change cceurs.

Tax provisions are based on enacted or substantively enacted laws. To the extent that these change there wauld be a charge or credit ta
income both in the period of charge, which would include any impact on cumulative provisions, and in future periods.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent it is considered probable that those assets will be recoverable. This invelves an
agsessment of when those deferred tax assets are likely toreverse, and a judgement as to whether or not there will be sufficient
taxable profits available to offset the tax assets when they do reverse. This requires assumptions regarding future profitability and is
therefore inherently uncertain. To the extent assumptions regarding future profitability change, there can be an increase or decrease
in the level of deferred tax assets recognised that can result in a charge or credit in the period in which the change occurs.

d} Provisions for decommissioning costs (Note 18)

Estimates of the cost of future decommissioning and restoration of production facilities are based on current legal and constructive
requirements, technolegy and price levels, while estimates of when decommissioning will occur depend on assumptions made
regarding the economic life of fieids which in turn depend on such factors as oil and gas prices, decommissioning costs, discount rates
and inflaticn rates. Management reviewed the estimation process and the basis for the principal assumptions underlying the cost
estimates, noting in particular the reasons for any major changes in estimates as compared with the previous year. The Group was
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satisfied that the approach applied was fair and reasonable. The Group was also satisfied that the discount anc inflation rates used to
calculate the provision were appropriate. The discount rates were based on government bonds issued in the respective countries.

e) Judgement used in the fair value of unlisted investments {Note 6)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market is determined by using valuation techniques. The
objective of a fair value measurement is to estimate the price at which an orderly transaction would take place between market
participants under the market conditions that exist at the measurement date. [FRS 13 requires that valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable inputs and minimise the use of uncbservable inputs. The Group has used amarket approach to estimate fair value of
the unlisted investments. The Group used its judgements to (i) select a valuation method, {ii) make assumpticns that are based on
market conditions existing at the end of the reporting period, (iii) determine the point in a range of values that is 'most representative
of a fair value’, {iv) determine discounts applied to the fair value.

f) Enforcement of arbitration award (Note 25}
No asset has beenrecognised inrespect cof the arbitration award due to the uncertainty inherent in the process for, and likely success
of, enforcing collection.

g) Exceptional items (Notes 18 and 25)
Judgment is required when determining whether items meet the definition of ‘excepticnal’ under the Group's accounting policy.

Provisions and reversals for August te December 2010 and January to December 2015 rental fee claims have been included in
‘exceptional itermns’ due to their material, specific and unusual nature and the Board considered that it was appropriate to highlight
these items to users of the financial statements. In particular, the issues are considered to represent isclated historical disputes that
will not recur having related to spacific circumstances and discrete periods of time with production based taxes currently paid at
standard Ukrainian government rates. Whilst the Board is cognisant that items should not be disclosed as exceptional when they recur,
in this instance the Board considered items to be exceptional, because the underlying claims are not anticipated to recur and the
additional charges refer to accrual of interest and penalties of the original claims.

4. Segmental analysis

The Group has one single class of business, being the exploration for, evaluation, development and production of oil and gas reserves.
Accordingly the reportable operating segments are determined by the geographical location of the assets and, therefore all information
is being presented for geographical segments. This is consistent with the revenue information that is disclosed for each reportable
segmeant under [FRS 8 Operating Segments.

There are four (2018: four) reportakble operating segments which are based on the internal reports provided to the Chief Operating
Decision Maker (‘CODM’). Ukraine and Russia segments are involved with production and exploration; the ‘Rest of World' are involved
in exploration, development and production and the UK is the home of the head office and purchases material, capital assets and
services on behalf of other segments.

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a point in time.

Segment revenue, segment expense and segment results include transfers between segments. Those transfers are eliminated on
consolidation.

Segmentresults and assets include items directly attributable to the segment. Segiment assets consist primarily of property, plant and
equipment, inventories and receivables, Capital expenditures comprise additions to preperty, plant and equipment and intangible
assets.
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UK Ukraine Russia l‘:;;::l:lf‘ SubTotal Eliminations Tatal
2018 s000 s000 000 s000 000 s000 5000
External revenue
Revenue by location of asset:
- il - 24,339 701 - 25,040 - 25,040
-Gas - 52,318 18,750 - 69,069 - 9,069
- Liquefied petroleum gas - 6,562 - - 6,562 - 6,562
- Qther - 1,055 18 - 1,073 - 1,073
- 84,275 17,469 - 101,744 - 101,744
Inter segment revenue:
- Management services/other 1.650 - - - 1,650 {1,650) -
1,650 - - - 1,650 {1.650) -
Total revenue 1,650 84,275 17.469 - 103,394 (1,650} 101,744
Profit/{loss) before tax:
Profit/(loss) from operations {6,922) 37,544 1,052 {238) 31.438 112 31,550
Finance incorme 857 - 857
Finance cost {2.054) - {2,054}
Derivative liability written-off 62 - 62
30,303 112 30,415
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 365 116,734 98,629 - 215.728 - 215,728
Investment 500 - - - S00 - 500
Deferred tax - (172) 8,184 - 8,012 - 8,012
Inventories - 5,285 1,620 - 6,915 - 6,915
Trade and other receivables 349 1.603 1,873 6 3,931 - 3.931
Cash and cash equivalents 9,496 9,571 1,414 148 20,629 - 20,829
Total assets’ 10,714 133,027 111,820 154 255,715 - 255715
Total liabilities! {7.323) {57.980) {7.027) {30) 172,360) - {72,360)
?ﬁ;;ﬁ;ﬁiﬁ:ﬁ;e {other than depreciation 229 214 118 R 561 - 561
omoviionFor production based taes - Baw - - B - a0
[ncrease in property, plant and equipmaent . 20,850 9,104 . 28,954 R 29.954

and intangible assets
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 246 13,048 5,922 - 19,217 - 19,217

! Total assets and liabiliries exclude assets and habilities of the Hungarian disposal group elassi‘ied as ~eld for sale. Please refer to Note 14 for details.

: 2019 2018
Major customers <000 =000
Ukrajne - 18,131
Russia 17,231 16911

There is one customer in Russia that exceeds 10% of the Group's total revenues (2018: two customers. one in Ukraine
and one in Russia).
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Rest of
UK Ukraine Russia World! Sub Total  Eliminations Total
2018 s000 =000 s000 000 000 000 000
External revenue
Revenue by location of asset:
-0il - 19.341 679 - 20,020 - 20.020
- Gas - 49,221 17,155 - 66,376 - 66.376
- Liquefied petroleum gas - 5.579 - - 5379 - 5578
- Other 112 781 5 - 898 - 888
112 74,922 17,839 - 92,873 - 92,873
Inter segment revenue:
- Management services/other 3,523 - - - 3523 (3.523) -
3,523 - - - 3,523 (3.523} -
Total revenue 3,635 74922 17,839 - 96,396 (3,523} 92,873
Profit/{loss) before tax:
Profit/{loss) from operations {6,106} 20,979 {104} (817} 13,952 1,724 15,676
Finance income a08 - s08
Finance cost N (2,510) - (2,510)
E:gjﬁ;]{ue movement on derivative (59) R {59)
12,291 1,724 14,015
Assets
Property, plant and equipment 211 91,836 82,331 734 175,112 - 175112
Deferrad tax - 966 9,453 - 10,419 - 10,4189
Inventories - 2851 1,501 - 4,352 - 4,352
Trade and other receivables 736 2,502 1,864 9 5,111 - 5111
Cash and cash equivalents 13,344 3,453 2,265 80 18,182 - 19,182
Total assets! 14,291 101,648 97.414 823 214,178 - 214,176
Total liabilities! (12,580) (56.857) (3.481) (38) (72,956) - {72,956)
?;f;;i;zii):fjriﬁe (other than depreciatien i 673 80 6 750 ) 759
Exceptional item - production based taxes - 5.055 - - 5,055 - 5,055
Increase in property, plant and equipment - 11,011 742 - 11,753 - 11,753
and mtangible assets
58 9210 5,887 - 15,155 - 15,155

Depreciation, depletion and amortisation

! Totalassetsand liabilities exclude assets and habilities of the Hungarian disposal group classified as neld for sale. Please rafar to Note 14 for details.
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5. Property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets
5.(a) Property, plant and equipment

Oil and gas
fields Gas field
Ukraine Russia  Other assets Total
2018 - o $000 s000 000 s000
Group
Cost
At 1 January 578,094 192,852 17,755 788,801
Application of IFRS 16 - Right-of-use assets - 2,159 1,353 3,512
Additions during the year 19,924 8,887 1,143 29,954
Foreign exchange 93,454 23,578 510 123,543
Disposal of property, plant and equipment - - {10} {407) {417)
At 31 December 597,472 227,567 20,354 945,383
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortisation and
provision for impairment
At 1 Jarwary 486,258 110,621 18810 £13,689
Depreciation on disposals of property, plant and equipment - {10) (185) (205)
Foreign exchange 83,387 13,327 240 86,964
Depreciation charge for the year o 12,728 5,784 705 19,217
At 3] Decernber 582,383 128,722 17,5860 729,685
Carrying amount
At 1January 91,836 82,331 945 175,112
At 31 December 115,089 97.845 2,794 215,728

Oil and gas fields in Ukraine and Russia include 7.8m and $0.6m vespectively relating to items under construction (2018: $1 Om and

nil).
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Qiland gas assets

Qil and gas Qiland gas
fields Gas field fields

Ukraine Russia Hungary Other assets Total
2018 =000 5000 $000 000 000
Group
Cost
At 1 January 567,185 230,149 37,442 18,257 853,043
Additions during the year 10.889 602 - 252 11,753
Foreign exchange - (39,325) - {292} (39.617)
Disposal of property, plant and equipment - (112} - (462} (574)
Reclassified to assets held for sale - - (37,442) - (37.442)
Reclassified from inventories - 1.638 - - 1,638
At 31 December 578,094 152,952 - 17,755 788,801
Accumulated depreciation, depletion and
amortisation and provision for impairment
At 1 January 477,171 127188 37,442 17,211 659,012
S:E:;rii::liton on disposals of property, plant and R (112) _ (459) (571)
Foreign exchange - {22,212) - (253) (22,465}
Depreciation charge for the year 9,087 5,757 - 311 15,155
Reclassified to assets held for sale - - (37.442) - (37.442}
At 31 Decernber 486,258 110,621 - 16,810 613,689
Carrying amount
At 1 January 90,024 102,961 - 1,046 194,031

At 31 Decernber 91,836 82,331 - 945 175112
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S.{b)Intangible assets: exploration and evaluation expenditure

Ukraine Hungary Rest of World Tatal
20189 000 s000 s000 000
7Group
At 1 January - - - -
At 31 December - - - -
Ukraine Hungary Rest of World Tetal
2018 s000 $000 $000 3000
Group -
Caost:
At ] Januvary 1,308 814 14,2386 16,358
Raclassified to assets held for sale - (814) - (814)
Disposal of assets written off {1.308) - {14,236} {15,544)
At 31 December - - - -
Provision against oil and gas assets
At 1January 1308 814 14,236 16,358
Reclassified to assets held for sale - (814) - (814)
Disposal of assets written off {1,308} - (14,236) (15,544)_

At 31 December - - -

Carrying amount
At 1 January - R
At 31 December - - - -

5.(c} Impairment test for property, plant and equipment

Areview was undertaken at the reporting date of the carrying amounts of property, plant and equiprnent to determine whether there
was any indication of a trigger that may have led to these assets suffering an impairment loss. Following this review impairment
triggers were noted inrelation to the Ukrainian assets due to the significantly lower gas sales prices in 2019, inrelation to the Russian
assets due to the lower than expected production rate achieved by Well 5 and the negative revision to its reservesin the latest CPR, and
inrelation to both Ukrainian and Russian assets due to the carrying amount of the Group net assets exceeding the Company’s market
capitalisation.

As there is noreadily available market for the Group's oil and gas properties, fair value is derived as the net present value of the
estimated future cash flows arising from the continued use of the assets, incorporating assurnptions that a typical market participant
would take into account.

The value in use of an oil and gas property is generally lower than its Fair Value Less Costs of Disposal (FVLCD') as value in use reflects
only those cash flows expected to be derived from the asset in its current condition. FVLCD includes appraisal and development
expenditure that a market participant would consider likely to enhance the productive capacity of an asset and optimise future cash
flows. Consequently, the Group determines recoverable amount based on FVLCD using a Discounted Cash Flow { DCF') methodology.

The DCF was derived by estimating discounted after tax cash flows for each CGU based on estimates that a typical market participant
would use in valuing such assets.

The impairment tests compared the recoverable amount of the respective CGUs noted below to the respective carrying values of their
associated assets. The estimates of FVLCD meet the definition of leve] three fair value measurements as they are determinted from
unobservable inputs. The irnpairment tests were performed based on conditions as at year end.

[mpairment test for the Ukrainian oil and gas assets

Poltava Petroleurm Company {PPC’), a wholly owned subsidiary of JKX, holds 100% interest in five productien licences (Ignativske,
Movchanivske, Rudenkivske, Novomykolaivske, Elyzavetivske) and ene exploration licence (Zaplavska) in the Poltava region of
Ukraine.

The Ignativske, Movchanivske, Rudenkivske, Novomykolaivske production licences contain one or more distinct fields which, together
with the Zaplavska exploration licence, form the Novomykeolaivske Complex (NNC.
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The Elyzavetivske production licence is located 45km from the Novomykolaivske Complex and has its own gas production facilities.

Ukrainuan Cash Garerating Univs { CCU5T
Inrespect of the Group's Ukraine assets the NNC forms a single CGU as these contain oil and gas fields which are serviced by a single
processing facility and do not have separately identifiable cash inflows. [n addition they have commanality of facilities, personneland

services.

The Elyzavetivske licence also has its own separate processing facilities and separately identifiable cash flows and therefeoreisa
distinet CGU for the purpose of the impairment test. During 2015 an extension to the Elyzavetivske preduction licence was awarded to
PPC which included the West Mashivska field. Due to the proximity of the West Mashivska field to the Elyzavetivske plant, production
will be tied back to the Elyzavetivske processing facilities and therefore forms part of this CGLL

In accordance with [AS 36, the impairment review was undertaken in Ukrainian hryvnia being the currency in which future cash flows
from NNC and Elyzavetivske wiil be generated.

Way dssamptinng = NN and Elyzavenvike
The key assumptions used in the impairment testing were:

» Production profiles: these were based on the latest available information assessed internally including assessment of the results of
external reserve engineer audits in the year. Such information included 2P reserves for NNC and Elyzavetivske of 21.5 MMbee and
1.8 MMhboe, respectively.

= Economic life of field: it was assumed that the title to the licences is retained and that the NNC licence term will be successfully
extended beyond its current 2024 expiration date through to the economic life of the field (expected to be around 2037). The
economic life of the Elyzavetivske field is currently expected to be around 2035 as per management's current expectation.

» Gas prices: during 2015 Ukraine acquired the ability to purchase gas from Europe rather than being completely dependent on Russia
for imports. As such, Ukrainian gas prices are expected to be more aligned with European gas prices in future but also influenced by
international cil prices. The gas price used for 2020 is based on estimates of gas prices to be realised by our Ukrainian subsidiary
determined considering external market forecasts as at year end with consideration given the applicability or otherwise of relevant
pricing adjustments for the local market. For the following ten years a forward gas price curve was used with gas prices increasing in
line with inflation thereafter.

= Qil prices: the Company used a foerward price curve as at year end for the next eight years and remaining constant thereafter.

= Production taxes: the Company has assumed production tax rates of 29% for gas and oil. A gas tax rate of 12% is applied to wells
drilled since 1 January 2018.

» Capital and operating costs: these were based on current operating and capital costs in Ukraine for both projects. Estimates were
provided by third parties and supported by estimates from our own specialists, where necessary.

= Post tax nominal discount rate of 14.2%. This was based on a Capital Asset Pricing Model analysis consistent with that used in
previous impairment reviews.

Based on the key assumptions set out above:

» the recoverable amount of NNC's oil and gas assets (S111.4m) exceeds its carrying amount ($107.8m} by $3.6m and therefore NNC's
oiland gas assets were not impaired.

* Elyzavetivske's recoverable amount (including the West Mashivska extension) {$19.9m) exceeds its carrying amount ($15.8m) by
$4.1m, and therefore the CGU's oil and gas assets were not impaired.

Sensitivityaralens for e NND and Elyzavetivake
Anyimpairment is dependent on judgement used in determining the most appropriate basis for the assumptions and estimates made by
managerment, particularly in relation to the key assumptions described above. Sensitivity analysis to potential changes in key

assurptions has therefore been provided below.

The impact on the impairment calculation of applying different assumptions to gas prices, production valumes, future capital
expenditure and post-tax discount rates, all other inputs remaining equal, would be as follows:

NNC

Increase/{decrease)in
headrocomotf $3.6 tor

Elyzavetivske
Increase/f{decrease} in

NNCCGU headroom of #4.1m for
Sm Elyzavetivske CGU $m
Impact if gas and oil prices: increased by 20% 40.0 7.9
reduced by 20% ~ (40.0} (7.9)
1 if i i
mpact if gas and oil preduction increased by 10% 36.8 6.5
volumes:
decreased by 10% (17.1} (0.4)
Impact if future capital expenditure: increased by 20% {7.2) (2.2)
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decreased by 20% 26.9 4.7
Impact if post-tax discount rate: increased by 2 percentage points to 168.2% (10.4) (0.5)
decreased by 2 percentage points te 12.2% 14.5 0.5

Impairment test for Yuzhgazenergie LLC ("'YGE'), Russia

Fellowing the 2007 acquisition of YGE in Russia, a technical and environmental re-evaluation of YGE's Koshekhablskove gas field
redevelopment was undertaken by the Group. The re-evaluation resulted in a revised development plan and production profile, The
development plan and production profile have continued to be refined since that time.

In accordance with [AS 36, the impairment review has been undertaken in Russian Roubles, which is the functicnal currency of YGE.

i - PR

mey Sy ntn T

The key assumptions used in the impairment testing were:

= Production profiles: these were based on the latest available information assessed internally including assessment of the results of
external reserve engineer audits in the year. Such information included 2P reserves for YGE of 56.6 MMboe.

= Economic life of field: it was assumed that YGE will be successful in extending the licence term beyond its current 2026 expiration to
the economic life of the field (expected to be around 2049). The discounted cash flow methodology used has not taken account of any
opportunities that may exist to extract reserves in a shorter timeframe by investing to increase the current plant capacity.

» Gas prices: from 1 July 2020 and annually thereafter, the gas prices have been increased by 3.8% and then by 2% through to 2025
based on historical experience,

= Capital and operating costs: these were based on current operating and capital costs in Russia, project estimates provided by third
parties and supported by estimates from our own specialists, where necessary.

= Post tax nominal Rouble discount rate of 10.5%. This was based on a Capital Asset Pricing Model analysis consistent with that used in
previous impairment reviews.

Based on the key assumptions set out above YGE's recoverable amount ($112.8m) exceeds it carrying amount ($97.8m) by $15.0m and
therefore YGE's Koshekhablskoye gas field was not impaired.

Any impairment is dependent on judgement used in determining the most appropriate basis for the assumptions and estimates made by
management, particularly in relation to the key assumptions described above. Sensitivity analysis to potential changes inkey
assumptions has therefore been reviewed below.

The impact on the impairment calculation of applying different assumptions to gas prices, production, future capital expenditure and
post-tax discount rates, all other inputs remaining equal, would be as follows:

increase/(decrease) in headroom of $15.0m for

Yurhgazenergie CGU
sSm
Impact of Adygean gas price: growthrates increased by 10% annually 4.2
grewth rates reduced by 10% annually (4.2)
Impact of production velumes: Increased by 10% 363
Decreased by 10% (7.4)
[mpact of future capital expenditure: Increased by 20% 7 (9.7)
) Decreased by 20% o - o - 202
Impact of post-tax discoul;t réte: 7 [ncreaéed byl perc;htage poin{to 115% B (8.0
Decreased by 1 percentage point to 9.5% ) 104

6. Investments

Group unquoted equity investments comprise a 10% holding of the ordinary share capital of PJSC of “Mining Company
Ukrnaftoburinnya” (‘UNB"), a Ukrainian oil and gas company. and a 1.43% holding of the ordinary share capital of Linx
Telecommunications Helding B.V. {"Linx"), a Netherlands telecommunications company. These investments were previously measured
at cost as allowed by TAS 39 (paragraph 46 {c)) and were fully imnpaired at 31 December 2017 and had been for several years.

Agof 1 January 2018 Group's investments in equity instruments were reclassified to financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income in accordance with the provisions of IFRS 9. The Group has made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value through other comprehensive incore (FVCCI).
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At 31 December 2019 the carrying value of UNB remained fully impaired following assessment by the Board considering relevant
available information and valuation technigues, reflecting:
* thelack of liquidity in the shares of UNB and considerations regarding the nature of markets for such an investment;

» the absence of any history of dividends or other returns on the investment since acguisition in 2006 and the significant uncertainty
regarding future returns;

» the absence of regular formal communication with UNB or potential buyers;

the level of uncertainty regarding any market valuation methed based on quoted Ukrainian oil and gas companies given key
differences in the respective businesses and corparate structures;

the limited number of quated Ukrainian oil and gas companies that can be used for the market valuation approach, defined
in[FRS 13;and

* apaper prepared by a sperialist third party advisor tc the Board of Directorsnoted the limited number of likely parties potentially
interested in purchasing the investment and the difficulties in determining the consideration for which the investment might be
disposed generally.

At 31 December 2019 the carrying value of Linx was reported as $0.5m (2018: nil), with this valuation being based uponr management's
expectation of future and final dividends to be received from Linx in 2020. Management attends Linx shareholder meetings and isin
regular communication with its management. Management understands that Linx continues to dispose of its businesses units and
dividend out all proceeds to shareholders prior to a liquidation of the company. Previously dividends were received during 2017 and
2019 of $0.1m and $0.03m respectively after disposals of other business units, The carrying value of $0.5m is consistent with Linx
management expectations of consideration to be received for disposal of the remaining business units and also with the most recent
financial statercents of Linx,

7.Inventories

2019 2018

$000 s000

Warehouse inventory and materials 4,058 2273
Oil and gas inventary 2,859 2,079
6,915 4,352

During the year there were no obsolete inventories written off to profit and loss (2018: there were no obsolete inventories written off
to profit and loss).

B.Trade and other receivables

2019 2018

$000 s000

Trade receivables . 7 o 2,221 ; 2,085
Less: ECLs (423) {559}
Trade receivables - net 1,798 1,528
Other receivables 160 279
VAT receivable 639 384
Prepayments 1,334 2,922
3,931 5111

As of 31 December 2012, trade and other receivables of $0.4m {2018: $0.6m) were past due and full expected credit loss ("ECL")
provision was recognised with the asset considered credit impaired. The amount of the provision was $0.4rmn (2018: $0.6m}. This
receivable relates to a single gas customer, which is more than three years past due. Legal proceedings were initiated in Q4 of 2016 and
finished in Q3 of 2018 in favour of the Company. During the year ended 31 December 2018 the Company collected $0.1m and is seeking
collection of the amount outstanding, but significant uncertainty remains over the collection.

Asof 31 December 2018, trade and other receivables of $3.9m {2018: $1.8m) were current and not impaired. There is no difference
between the carrying value of trade and other receivables and their fair value.

Prepayments comprise of prepayments made to suppliers. Decrease in prepayments of $1.6m from $2.9mto $1.3m is mainly due to the
completion of 3D seismic work on Elyzavetivske field in Ukraine in April 2019, which amounted to $1.3m and was included in $2.9m
balance at 31 December 2018,
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The carrying amounts of the Group's trade and other receivables are denominated in the following currencies:

2019 2018
5000 =000
US Dollar i1 42
Sterling - -
Euros 1 1
Hungarian Forints - -
Ukrainian Hryvnia 148 15
Russian Roubles 1,798 1,747
1,958 1,805
9.Cash and cash equivalents
- 2019 2018
2000 s000
Cash 12,495 16,939
Short term deposits 8,134 2,243
20,629 i9,182
Short term deposits held comprised amounts held on deposit, but were readily convertible to cash.
10. Trade and other payables
2019 2018
4000 000
Current
Trade payables 3,894 873
Other payables 298 3
Contract liabilities 2111 3,273
QOther taxes and social security costs 2,435 2,198
VAT payable 1,993 1,327
Accruals 3,427 3,110
14,158 10,782
Current
Lease liabilities 1,461 -
Non-Current
Lease liabilities 628 -
11.Borrowings
2018 2018
000 000
Current o
Convertible bonds due 2020 5682 5,962
Term-loans repayable within one year 5,683 5.962
Non-Current
Convertible honds due 2020 - 5,041
Term-loans repayable after more than one year - 5041

Convertible bonds duas 2020
On 19 February 2013 the Company succassfully completed the placing of $40m of guaranteed unsubordinated convertible bonds with
institutional investors which were due 2018 (prior to restructuring) raising cash of $37.2m net of issue costs.
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Prior to restructuring the Bonds had an annual coupon of 8 per cent per annum payable semi-annually in arrears.

The Bonds were convertible inte ordinary shares of the Company at any time from 1 April 2013 up until seven days prior to their
maturity on 19 February 2020 at a conversion price of 76.29 pence per Ordinary Share, unless the Company settles the conversion
notice by paying the Bondholder the Cash Alternative Amount (see below).

The Company made the final payment to Bondholders on 19 February 2020 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond
(see Note 33).

Lenverntlebordsresiructured ar 3fanaary 2017
On 3 January 2017 a special resolution was approved by Bondholders to change the terms and conditions of the Bonds. The main
amendments te the terms and conditions of the Bands were as follows:

= the Bondholder's option to require redernption of all of the outstanding Bonds on 12 February 2017 was deleted;

» the final maturity date of the Bonds was extended to 19 February 2020, with the outstanding principal amount of the Bonds being
repaid in three instalments; 33% on 19 February 2018, 33 % on 19 February 2019; and 34% on the 19 February 2020;

= the couponrate of the Bonds was increased from 8% to 14%;
= the covenant which limited new borrowings by the Cornpany was removed; and

= the Company were to make two payments to Bondholders in respect of prior accretion amounts, on 18 February 2017 and on 18
February 2018 of 12.0% and 3.0%, respectively, of the principal amount of the Bonds.

On 19 February 2018 the Company made a payment of the first instalment to Bondholders of $5.3m (33% of the principal amount of the
Bonds), together with the final accretion payment of $0.5m (3.0% of the principal amount of the Bonds) and interest of $1.1m. On 12
February 2019 the Company made a payment of the second instalment to Bondholders of $5.3m {33% of the principal amount of the
Bonds). together with $0.7m interest payment in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond. Cn 19 August 2019 the
Company made interest payment of $0.4m in accordance with the terms and conditicns of the Bond. On 19 February 2020 the Company
made the final payment of the third instalment to Bondholders of $5.4m (34% of the principal amount of the Bonds), together with
50.4minterest payment in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond.

Cash Alteroative Amount
At the option of the Company, the conversion notice in respect of the Bonds could be settled in cash rather than shares, the Cash
Alternative Amount payable was based on the Volume Weighted Average Price of the Company's shares prior to the conversion notice.

Greditfanilay

On 11 December 2018, PPC, our subsidiary in Ukraine, rernewed a 12 month revolving credit line from Tascombank for UAHZ80m
(originally secured 15 Deceraber 2017 for UAH150 m). At 31 December 2019 the total short-term line of credit amounted to $11.8mat an
exchangerate of $1: 23,69 (2018: 310.1m at an exchange rate of 31: 27.69 Hryvnia), The amount outstanding at 21 December 2018 was
nil (2018: ni}}, so the undrawn portion totaled $11.8m (2018: $10.1m). The facility will be available through December 2021 {subject ta
planned renewal if required) and draw downs are subject to certain bank credit approvals. In addition PPC holds a UAHS50m {$1.8m)
overdraft facility which remains undrawn and was renewed until 13 December 2021,

The main terms and canditions of the revolving credit line are as follows:

* drawdowns canbe made either in UUSD or UAH and are individually subject to credit approval by the lender;

= interestrate cost for USD drawn down is 9%;

» interest rate cost for UAH drawn down: 17.0% to 30 days, 17.50% 31 to 90 days, 20.00% 91 to 180 days. 21.00% 181 to 365 days;
borrowing above UAHI0m, equivalent to $3.8m at 31 December 2019 {2018: $3.3m) will require a corporate guarantee from JKX 0il &

Gas Plc. The corporate guarantee provided by the JKX Qil & Gas plc in respect of the credit facility with Tascombark is considered to
be an insurance contract under the provisions of IFRS 4,

assets with a market value of UAH460m, equivalent to $19.4m at 31 December 2019 (2018: UAH460m, equivalent to $16.6m at 31
December 2018) have been identified for use as a collateral, collateral is to be provided only on a drawdown;

= amount borrowed will be repaid during the last 4 months, by equal-sized monthly payments, to be effected on the last day of the
month/the last day of the credit limit period. Last date of repayment for the last part of amount borrowed is 13 December 2021.

The credit facility of $11.8m (2018: £10.1m) includes two financial covenants. If the covenants are not met an additional interest of 2%
appiles to the facility but failure to meet covenants does not represent an event of default:

= tokeep gross margin at no less than 50% during the peried of the credit facility agreement, based on PPC's financial reporting
results,

= starting from the first quarter of 2019 and during the period of the credit facility agreement, PPCis to maintain the ratio between
financial (interest) debt and EBITDA (adjusted to the annual value) at no more than 3.0.
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12, Derivatives

2019 2018
2000 3000
Non-current derivative financial instruments
At the beginning of the year 82 3
Derivative liabtlity written-off (62) -
Fair value loss movement during the year - 59
At the end of the year - 52

Corvartible tondsdue 2020 « g hyddaa derivatevss

Corapany Call Option

The Company could redeem the Bonds at any time in full but not in part at their principal amount plus one semi-annual coupon plus any
accrued interest. If the Bonds were called prior to 19 February 2020, the redemption price would also include an additional US. $8,000

per Bond.

The Cormpany ceuld redeem the Bonds any time in full but not in part at their principal amount plus any accrued interest if the
aggregate principal amount of the Bonds outstanding is less than 15% of the aggregate principal amount originally issued.

Fixed exchange rate
The Sterling-US Dollar exchange rate is fixed at £1/$1.5809 for the conversion and other features.

The Company made the final payment to Bondholders on 19 February 2020 in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond
(see Note 33).

13.Financial instruments

Toirvatlursof Denasizlaseasen P hranonl habidiae - oenn
Set put below is a comparison by category of carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial instruments. Fair value is the
amount at which a financial instrument could be exchanged in an arm's length transaction. Where available, market values have been

used (this excludes short term assets and habilities).

Bock Value Fair Value Book Value Fair Value
2019 2019 2018 2018
$000 <000 S000 <000
Financial assets
E;Ti?iz:;iztequivalents and restricted cash {Note 9) - classified at 20,629 20,629 19182 19,182
Trade receivables {Note 8) — classified at amortised cost 1,798 1,798 1,526 1,526
Other receivables {Note 8) - classified at amortised cost 160 160 279 279
Financial liabilities
Trade payables {Note 10) - carried at amortised cost 3,894 3,894 873 873
Other payables {Note 10) - carried at amortised cost 298 298 3 3
Accruals (Note 10) - carried at amortised cost 3,080 3,080 2.468 2,468
(iate 111" eareio a amrtised rost (cosrent] 5663 5683 5962 5962
(Note 117 eareted at amoreoed cont {nom carvent) : - soa o soa
Lease liabilities 2,088 2,089 - -
Derivatives — fair value through profit or loss {Nate 12) - - 62 62

Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost are carried at $15.0m {(2018: $14.3m). The Group's borrewings at 31 Decernber 2019
relate entirely to the convertible bends due 2020.

!

Farrvalua hrevarchy

Derivatives

At 31 December 2018 the Group's derivative financial instrument related to embedded derivative within the convertible bonds due
2020 (Note 12). The value of the derivative was calculated at inception using the Monte Carlo simulation methodelogy and
subsequently using the Black-Scholes formula, and the Cornpany's historic share price and volatility, treasury rates and other
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estimations. As it was derived from inputs that are not from observable market data it was grouped into level 3 within the fair value
measurement hierarchy.

The main assumptions used in valuaticn of the derivative conversicn option as at 31 December 2018 were:

» underlying share price of 2018: £0.11;
» £/USSspotrateof £1/$1.2754;
= historic velatility of 54.03%;

= risk free rate based on the maturity which is 1.14 year US Treasury rate of 2.578% and 0.14 year U5 Treasury rate of 2.444%
(continuously compounded).

A 10% increase/decrease in Company’s historic share price volatility would have resulted in an increase in the fair value loss for the
year of $0.1m and decrease in the fair value loss of 0.02m, respectively, assuming that all other variables remain constant.

Following the final payment of the Bond made tc Bondholders on 19 February 2020 (see Note 33) the derivative of $0.1m was written
off to the Income statement at 31 December 2019 as its fair value was negligible at year end.

Cradit risi - Group

The Group has policies in place to ensure that sales of preducts are made to customers with appropriate credit worthiness. The Group
limits credit risk by assessing creditworthiness of potential counterparties before entering into transactions with them and continuing
to evaluate their creditworthiness after transactions have been initiated. Where appropriate, the use of prepayment for product sales
limits the exposure te credit risk. There is no difference between the carrying amount of trade and other receivables and the maximum
creditrisk exposure.

The maximum financial exposure due to credit risk on the Group's financial assets, representing the sum of cash and cash equivalents,
trade receivables and other current assets, as at 31 Decernber 2019 was $22.6m {2018:$21.0m}.

Gapital mansgemant - Groap

5 4 ¥
The Directors determine the appropriate capital structure of the Group specifically, how much is raised from shareholders (equity) and
how much is borrowed from financial institutions (debt) in order to finance the Group's business strategy.

The Group's policy as to the level of equity capital and reserves is to ensure that it maintains a strong financial position and low gearing
ratio which provides financial flexibility to continue as a going concern and to maximise shareholder value, The capital structure of the
Group consists of shareholders' equity together with net debt. The Group's funding requirerments are met through a combinaticn of
debt, equity and operational cash flow.

Matcash
Net cash comprises: borrowings disclosed in Note 11 and total cash in Note S and excludes derivatives. Equity attributable ta the
shareholders of the Company comprises issued capital, other reserves and retained earnings {see Consolidated statement of changes in

equity}.

The capital structure of the Groupis as follows:

2019 2018
s000 <000
Convertible bonds due 2020 (current and non-current, Note 11} {5,683) {11,003}
Total cash (Note 9) 20,629 18,182
Net cash 14,946 8178
Total shareholders equity 186,255 141,682

Lipudiry visk - Drouy

The treasury function is respensible for liguidity, funding and settlement management under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. Liquidity needs are monitored using regular forecasting of operational cash flows and financing cornmitments. The Group
maintains a mixture of cash and cash equivalents and committed facilities in order to ensure sufficient funding for business
requirements.

The following tables set out details of the expected contractual maturity of non-derivative financial liabilities. The tables include both
interest and principal cash flows on an undiscounted basis. To the extent that interest flows are floating rate, the undiscounted amount
is derived from interest rate curves at the reporting date.
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The maturity analysis for financial liabilities was as follows:

Within 3 3 months 1-2 2=-5
months - lyear years years
Group - 31 December 2018 s000 000 5000 $000
Maturity of financial liabilities
Trade payables {Note 10} 3,804 - - -
Other payables {Note 10) 298 - - -
Accruals (Note 10} 3,080 - - -
Borrowings — Convertible bonds due 2020 5683 - - -
Lease liabilities 484 1,294 392 342
Within 3 3 months
months - lyear 1-2 years
Group - 31 December 2018 2000 $000 $000
Maturity of financial liabilities
Trade payables (Nate 10) 873 - -
Other payables (Note 10) 3 - -
Accruals (Note 10) 2.468 - -
Borrowings - Convertible bonds due 2020 6,030 381 5,821

peftivol fivonawtacserenrd b

Fixed rate interest is charged on the Group's convertible bond (see Note ll) The interest rate profile of the other financial assets and
liabilities of the Group as at 31 December is as follows (excluding short-term assets and liabilities, non-interest bearmg)

2019 2018

Within 1 Year Within 1 Year

Group — 31 December s000 3000
Floating rate

Short term deposits (Note 9) 8,134 2,243

Other receivables (Note 8} 180 279

Other payables (Note 10} 298 3

Floating rate financial assets comprise cash deposits placed on money markets at call, seven day and monthly rates.

\',‘m,.ua«, N . T
Lotemsylval saasiti sty - .;,./.L,

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to interest rates on our short term deposits at the reporting
date.

If interest rates had been 1 per cent higher/lower and all other variables were held constant, the Group's profit (2018: profit) after tax
and net agsets for the year ended 31 December 2019 would increase/decrease by $12,000(2018: $16,000). 1 per cent is the sensitivity
rate used as it best represents management’s assessment of the possible change in interest rates that could apply to the Group.

Tl o TIFOEROAHT G TN

The table below shows the extent to which the Group has monetary assets and liabilities in currencies other than the functional
currency of the operating company involved. These exposures give rise to the net currency gains and losses recognised in the income
statement.
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As at 31 December the asset/(liability) foreign currency exposures were:

2019 2018

s000 =000
Sterling 675 {1,223}
Euros 1,086 371
Ukrainian Hryvnia 5,470 4,583
Bulgarian Leva 41 33
Russian Roubles (368) 3.732
Canadian Dollar - 6
Total net 6,904 7.502

1 Fareigneurrency exposures donot include Hungarian Forints, as Hungary is included under “asse*s held for sale” in the Statement of financial pasition.

Forsigncurrency sansitivity - Group
The Group is mainly exposed to the currency fluctuations of Ukraine (Hryvnia), Russia (Rouble) and UK (Sterling). The sensitivity
analysis principally arises on money market deposits and working capital items held at the reporting date.

The following table details the Group's sensitivity toa 10 per cent (2018: 10 per cent) increase and decrease in the US Dollar against
Sterling and against Hryvnia and Rouble, all other variables were held censtant. Due to the historically significant foreign currency
fluctuation in the UK, Ukraine and Russia 10 per cent has been used to calculate sensitivity for Sterling, Hryvnia and Rouble. 10 per
cent {2018: 10 per cent} is the sensitivity rate that best represents management's assessment of the possible change in the foreign
exchange rates affecting the Group. A positive number below indicates an increase in profit and equity when the US Dollar weakens
against the relevant currency. For a strengthening of the US Dollar against the relevant currency, there would be an equal and opposite
impact on the profit and other equity, and the balances below would be negative.

Hryvnia Hryvnia Rouble Rouble Sterling Sterling
2019 2018 2018 2018 2019 2018
s000 =000 s000 $0C0 s000 s0c0
Profit/(loss) for the year and Equity
i:n;;:r cent strengthening of the US Dollar/{2018: 10 per 547 458 37) 373 67 (122)
10 per cent weakening of the US Dollar/(2018: 10 per cent) (547) (458) 37 {373) (67) 122
Commodity riskand sonsiuvity - Group

The Group's earnings are exposed to the effect of fluctuations in oil, gas and condensate prices and the risks relating to their
fluctuation in are discussed on page 38, together with the discussion of financial risk factors. The Group’s oil. gas and condensate is sold
to local trading companies through market related contracts.

The Group is a price taker and does not enter into commodity hedge agreements unless required for borrowing purposes which may
cccur from time to time. Therefore no sensitivity analysis has been prepared on the exposure te oil, gas or condensate prices for
cutstanding monetary items at the 31 December 20183 as there is no impact on any cutstanding amounts.

14.Discontinued operations and assets classified as held for sale

In early February 2018 the Group anncunced its intention to exit its cil and gas operations in Hungary and initiated an active
programme to dispose of its Hungarian business, The sale-purchase agreement for the dispesal of the Hungarian business was executed
in March 2020.

The associated assets and liabilities were presented as held for sale in the financial staterments at 31 December 2018 and remains as
suchat 31 Decernber 2019, Prior to the reclassification assets were measured at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs
tosell

At the time the sale was agreed the consideration expected to be received was comprising of approximately $2.0m of consideration and
a working capital adjustment anticipated to be $0.9m, with the actual consideration sum due to be determined and settled in full on
completion which is expected before the end of April 2020. A reversal of impairment of $2.2m was recognised at 31 December 2019.
The amount of this reversal is exceeded by previous historical impairment charges, allowing for depreciation, made against the
Hungarian assets.
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The financial performance and cash flow information presented are for periods ended 31 Decemnber 2019 and 31 December 2018.

31 December 31 December

2019 2018

$000 000
Revenue 133 1,645
Exceptional item - reversal of provision for impairment of Hungary 2,232 -

Rovyalties {25) (75}

QOther cost of sales (369} (356)

Total cost of sales 1,971 (431)
Administrative expenses {11) 20
Gain/(loss} on foreign exchange 44 {304)
Profit from operations and before tax 2,004 930

Taxation — current - {7}
Taxation - deferred - 2,564
Total taxation - 2,557
Profit for the year 2,004 3,487
Net cash outflow from operating activities (178} {158}
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents - 17
Net cash used by the subsidiary (176) (141)

The following assets and hiabilities were classified as held for sale in relation to the discontinued operation as at 31 Decernber 2019 and

2018.

31 December 31 December

2018 2018

Aggets and liabilities of disposal group classified as held for sale <000 s000
Assets classified as held for sale
Property. plant and equiprent 2,232 -
Trade and other receivables 859 753
Cash 96 273
Restricted cash - Z21L
Total assets of disposal group held for sale 3187 1,237
Liabilities of the disposal group classified as held for sale
Trade and other payables (87) (322)
Abandonment provision {200) (453}
Total liabilities of disposal group held for sale (287} (775)
Net assets 2,900 462

15.JKX Employee Benefit Trust

In 2013, JKX Employee Benefit Trust was established and acquired 5,000,000 of shares in JKX Qil & Gas plc at a cost of $4.0m for
the purpose of making awards under the Group’s employee share schemes and these shares have been classified in the statement

of financial position as treasury shares within retained earnings.

During 2019 JKX Employee Benefit Trust sold 1,186,547 shares at an average price of £0.30 per share {2018: nil}. 180,525 shares
were used in 2019 (2018: nil) to settle share options, out of which 48,660 were sold in order to caver National insurance cost,
therefore at 31 December 2018 JKX Employee Benefit Trust held 3,632,928 shares in JKX 0il & Gas plc (2018: 5,000,000}. During

January 2020 JKX Employee Benefit Trust sold its remaining 3,632,928 shares at an average price of £0.28 per share.
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16.Share capital
Equity share capital, dencminated in Sterling, was as follows:
2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Number £000 000 Nurnber £000 +000
Authorised
Ordinary shares of 10p each 300,000,000 30,000 - 300,000.000 30.000 -
Allotted, called up and fully paid
Opening balance at 1 January 172,125,916 17,212 26,666 172125516 17.212 26,666
Exercise of share options - - - - - -
Closing balance at 31 December 172,125,918 17,212 26,666 172125916 17,212 26,666
Of which the following are shares held in treasury:
Treasury shares held at
1 January and 31 December 402771 40 77 402,771 40 77

The Company did not purchase any treasury shares during 2019 (2018: none) and no treasury shares were used in 2019 (2018 none) to
settle share options. There are no shares reserved for issue under options or contracts. As at 31 December 2019 the market value of the

treasury shares held was $0.1m {2018: $0.2m).
17.Other reserves

Post- )
Foreign  employment Equity
Capital currency benefit ~ 1nvestments
Merger redemption translation obligation ~ With FVOCI
reserve reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
=300 <000 $000 <000 000 $000
At January 2018 30,680 587 (184,060) {333) - (153,126)
Exchange dlffer.ences arising on translation of } ) (19,475 ) ) (19.475)
overseas operations
Rer‘neasurement of post-employment benefit R R B (22) . (22)
obligations
At 31 December 2018 30,680 587 (203,535) (355) - {172,623)
At 1 January 2019 30,680 587 {203,535) (355} - {172,623)
Exchange dlffer.ences arising on translation of ) _ 21,481 ) ) 21.481
overseas operations
Remea@rement of post-employment benafit _ _ _ (94) _ (94)
obligations
Changes in the fair value of equity investments
at fair value through other comprehensive - - - - 500 500
income
At 31 December 2018 30,680 587 (182,054) {449) 500 (150,736)

Merger reserve was created on 3C May 1995 when JKX Qil & Gas plc acquired the issued share capital of JP Kenny Exploration &
Production Limited for the issue of ordinary shares and represents the difference between the fair value of consideration given for the

shares and the nominal value of those instruments.

Capital redemption reserve relates to the buyback of shares in 2002, there have been no additional share buy-backs since this time.

Foreign cyrrency translation reserve includes movements that relate to the retranslation of the subsidiaries whaese functional

currencies are not the US Dollar,

Equity investments with FVOCI reserve includes movements that relate to changes in the fair value of unlisted investments in equity.
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During 2019, the Russian Rouble (RR) strengthened by approximately 11% from RR69.47/% to RR61.91/% (2018: weakened by
approximately 21%, from RR57.80/S to RR69.47/s). Ukrainian Hryvnia (UAH') strengrhened by approximately 14% from UAH 2769/
to UAH 23.69/% (2018: strengthened by approximately 1%, from UAH 28.07/% to UAH 27.69/3). Currency translation differences of
US$21.4m (2018: US$19.4m) included in the Consolidated statement of comprehensive income arose on the translation of property,
plant and equipment denaminated in RR and UAH and amounted to $12 2m and $9.2m respectively (see Note 5(a}).

Post-employment benefit obligation reserve relates to a remeasurement of liability for defined benefit pension plan in PPC, our
subsidiary in Ukraine. Under the Ukrainian legislation, emplayees whe work in hazardous conditions have the right for an early
retirement. PPC has jobs with hazardous working conditions (hereinafter referred to as the *list 11”) and participates in the government
defined benefit plan. Upon early retirement the pensioners are entitled to a pension which is financed by their employers until they
enralinto a regular pension scheme financed by 2 Pension Fund of Ukraine. The early pension benefit (in the form of a monthly
annuity} is payable by employers only until the employee has reached the statutory retirement age {60 - for males and females), The
right to pension emerges once a number of conditions pertaining to pension insurance service record and service record in hazardcus
Jobs have been met and a certain age has beenreached. Once employees from the list [l have reached 55 years of age, PPC would
compensate to Pension Fund of Ukraine pansion obligation for the next 5 years on a monthly basis. The erployer is respansible for
100% for “list " categories of early pensioners. Pensions are calculated using a formula based on the employee's salary, pension
insurance service record, ard total length of past service at specific types of workplaces {“list 11" category) and, thus, the pension plan is
a defined bernefit plan by its nature,

18. Provisions

Production basad Onerous lease
taxes! provision? Total
Current provisions s000 $000 s000
At 1 January 2019 12,431 214 12,645
Included in right-of-use assets on transition - (214} (214)
Foreign currency translation 2,107 - 2,107
Amount provided in the year 1,323 - 1,323
At 31 December 2019 15,861 - 15,861
Production based
taxes’ Total
Non-current provisions s000 sQoo
At 1 January 2019 30,074 30,074
Amount provided in the year 4,670 4,670
Amount released in the year (14,403} (14,403}
Foreign currency translation 5.064 5,064
At 31 December 2019 25,405 25,405

# Theprovision for production based taxes, is in respect of claims against PPC for additional rental fees for the periods August to December 2010 ard January to Dacamber 2015,
£8.4m was recognised as a credit in the 2019 Consolidatad incorre starement (2018 $5.1m charge] which is the net of 2 $14.4m reversal of provisions far faur tax cases that
rave baen closed in favour of PPCrelating to January te December 2015 claims and of $6.0m interest accryed for the remaining cases that hawe not been closed, of which $1.3m
charge relates tathe August to December 2010 ciaim (2018:81.0m] and $4,7m charge relate to January to December 2015 claims {2018$4.1m). Remaining claims arebeing
contested in the Ukrainian courts (see Note 25). The amount is denomirated in Ukraizian Hryvnia (UAH'} and is stated above at its US$-equivalent amount using the 2019 year
end rate of UAH23.69/¢ (2018 UAH27 69/%). The provision for rental fee tlaimsat 3] December 2018 includes estimated interest and penalties. Judgament is applied
regarding application of relevant legislation to determine estimates of the interest and penalties, together with aspacts of the underlying claims which are considered
overstated based on the legislation on which the ¢laims are based, should this legislation be applied, notwithstanding that the Group disputes the claims in their entirety. The
Board believes that the ¢laims are without merit under Ukrainian law and the Campany will continue to contest them vigoronsly. Whilst provisions are held by the Group.
additional contingent Liabilities exist in respect of the rental fee claims giver. the judgments required in forming rhe provisions and alternative potential outcomes.

2018 onerous lease provision concerned the Group's lability for orerous lease contracts relating to its London office. Following a reduction in Londan office staff in 2016, three
cutof the four floors of the occupied butlding became surplus to requiremants, The provision was determined asthe present value of the unavoidable costs relating to rentsand
ratesta the end of the lease terms, net of the expacted sub-lease income, discounted at 6.5%, The remaining life of the leases at 31 December 2018 was 3 years. Subsequently,
three out of three floors have been assigned tn naw tenants which resiltad in the release of the provision.
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Non-current provisions Ukraine Russia Total
Provision on decommissioning 3000 s000 $000

Provision for site restoration

At 1 January 2019 3.581 2,018 5,599
Foreign exchange adjustment 573 251 824
Revision in estimates {676) - (676)
Unwinding of discount (Note 21) 500 117 617
At 31 December 2019 3,978 2,388 6,364

The provision in respect of Ukraine represents the present value of the well and site restoration costs that are expected tobe incurred
up to 2034 (2018: 2035). The Russia provision results from the decommissioning of 15 wells (2018:15) and removal of plant as required
by the licence obligation and is due to start from 2050 (2018: 2050). The provisions are made using the Group's internal estimates that
management believe form a reasonable basis for the expected future costs of decommissioning.

19. Cost of sales

2019 2018

<000 =000

Operating costs 22,752 20,897
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 18,512 14,732
Other production based taxes 23,518 21,857
64,782 57,486

Exceptional item - producticn based taxes (credit}/charge (Note 18) (8.410) 5,055
56,372 62,541

The cost of inventories (calculated by reference to production costs) expensed in cost of sales in 2019 was $3.0m (2018: $0.9m).

20.Finance income

2019 2018
s000 s000
[nterest income on deposits 857 908
857 208

21.Finance costs
2018 2018
s000 s000
Borrowing costs 1,183 2,068
[nterest for lease liabilities 254 -
Unwinding of discount on site restoration {Note 18) 617 442
2,054 2,510

22.Profit from operations - analysis of costs by nature

Profit from operations derives solely from continuing operations and is stated after charging/(crediting) the following:

2018 2018
S000 s000
rDepreciation - other assets (Note 5. (a}} 705 311
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation - oil and gas assets {Note 5. {a)) 18512 14,732
Staff costs (none was capitalised during the year {2018: net of $0.5m), Note 23) 9,051 12,452

Foreign exchange loss 615 711
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During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidiaries) obtained the following services from the Company's auditors:

2019 2018 2018

5000 =000 $000

BDO fees BDO fees PWC fees

Audit of the parent company and consolidated financial statements 204 205 -
Fees payable to company’s auditors for other services:

- Audit of the Company’s subsidiaries 231 167 -

- Audit related assurance services 80 - 105

- Other non-audit services - 2 2

605 374 107

No non-audit services were provided in 2019 (2018 included 52 thousand of tax advisory services provided by BDO Unicon Moscow.
The tax advisory services fee relates to reporting periods prior to BDO LLP's appointment as the Group auditor and was discontinued
upon their appointment.)

23.5taff costs
2019 2018
$000 <000
Wages and salaries 8,741 12,502
UK social security costs 130 257
Other pension costs 1866 205
Share based payments (equity-settled) (Note 24) 14 13
9,051 12,977

Staff costs for the year ended 31 December 2018 were shown gross and $0.5m was capitalised, representing time spent on exploration
and development activities.

During the year, the average monthly number of employees was:

2019 2018

Number Nurnher

Management/operational 492 487
Administration support 82 a8
574 575

There is cne Director on service contract included within management/operational (2018: nil). Further details of the Directors and
their remuneration are included on pages 59 to 62 which form part of these financial statements.

24.Share-based payments

According to the 2010 Performance Share Plan (PSP} that is currently in place, the Remuneration Cormnmittee has the ability to grant
awards of nil-cost options annually to senior management of the Group, conditional on the Group's performance over a period of at least
three years. Ne consideration is required to be paid for the grant or exercise of an Option. Vesting of the options is dependent upon
certain criteria, including comparison of the Group's TSR against the FTSE Fledgling index and the All-Share Cil & Gas Producers index.
Options lapse when certain criteria are not met and may be forfeited when employees cease to be employed by the Group. The planrules
are described in the Directors’' Remuneration Report. All share-based payments are equity settled. During the year 180,525 share
options were exercised and none granted in accordance with the PSP (2018: nil). The weighted average share price at the date of
exercise of these shares was 23 pence.

Ar 31 December 2018, there were outstanding options under the PSP, exercisable during the years 2019 to 2026 to acquire 256,150
shares of the Company at nil cost per share, The vesting period for 256,150 of the share options was 3 years, with an exercise period of 7
years making a 10 year maximum term. During 2019 180,525 shares were exercised at nil cost per share and 75,625 shares lapsed.
There were no outstanding options under the PSP at 31 December 2019.

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices {WAEP'} of, and moverents in, share options during
the year.
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2019 2019 2018 2018
Number WAEP Number WAEP
Outstanding at 1 January 151,250 0.00p 1.058.650 0.00p
Exercisable at 1 fanuary 104,900 0.00p - -
Lapsed/forfeited during the year {75.625) 0.00p (803,500} 0.00p
Exercise of share options {180,525) 0.00p - -
Cutstanding at 31 December - - 151,250 0.00p
Exercisable at 31 December - - 104,900 0.00p
25.Taxation
2018 2018
Analysis of tax on loss s000 000
Current tax
UK - current tax - -
Overseas - current year 6,561 5478
Current tax expense 6.561 5478
Deferred tax
Overseas - prior year - -
Overseas - current year 3,645 {3,233)
Deferred tax benefit 3,645 {3,233)
Income tax expense 10.206 2,245

Fanrovsthoataffectthe votaltac charge
The total tax charge for the year of $10.2m (2018: $2 2m charge) is lower (2018: lower) than the average rate of UK corporation tax of
19.00% (2018: 19.00%). The differences are explained below:

2018 2018
Total tax reconciliation S000 =000
Profit before tax 30,415 14,015
Tax calculated at 19.00% {2018: 19.00%) 5,778 2,663
Movement in recognised tax losses 474 {1,.332)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions 355 205
Rental fee provision 1,677 (724)
Other non-deductible expenses 1,745 1,149
Other 176 284
Total tax charge i 10,206 2,245

The total tax charge for the year was $10.2m (2018: $2.2m charge} comprising a current tax charge of $6.6m (2018: $5.5m charge) in
raspect of Ukraine, a deferred tax charge before exceptional items of $2.0m {2018: credit of $1.5m) and a deferred tax charge of $1.7m
inrespect of exceptional items {2018: credit of $1.8m). The increase in current tax charge reflects a higher profitability in Ukraine. In
Ukraine, the corpaorate tax rate for 2018 was 18% and remains at this level in 2019.

The standard rate of corperation tax in the UK changed from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017. The Company’s profits for this
accounting year are taxed at an effective rate of 19.00%.

Fawrorgtharmay affestfutura rax charges
A significant proportion of the Group's income will be generated overseas. Profits made overseas will not be able to be offset by costs
elsewhere in the Group. This could lead to a higher than expected tax rate for the Group.

Changes to the UK cerporation tax rates were substantively enacted as part of Finance Bill 2015 and Finance Bill 2016. These include a
reduction to the main rate from 19% to 17% from 1 April 2020. The impact of the rate reduction is not expected to have a material
impact on UK current taxation.
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Tezotion o Uaraing - productiontaxas
Since Poltava Petroleum Company's (PPC's') inception in 1994 the Company has operated in a regime where conflicting laws have
existed, including in relation to effective taxes on oil and gas production.

Inorder to aveid any confusion over the level of taxes due, in 1994, PPC entered inte a licence agreement with the Ukrainian State
Committee on Geology and the Utilisation of Mineral Resources {'the Licence Agreement’) which set otit expressly in the Licence
Agreement that PPC would pay Rental Fees on production at a rate of only 5.5% of sales value for the duration of the Licence
Agreement.

Pyrsuant to the Licence Agreement, PPC was granted an exploration licence and four 20-year production licences, each inrespectafa
particular field In 2004, PPC's production licences were renewed and extended until 2024, Subsocil Use Agreements were signed and
attached to the licences and operations continued as before.

InDecember 1954, a new fee on the production of oil and gas (known as a ‘Rental Payment’ or ‘Rental Fee) was introduced through
Ukrainian regulations. On 30 December 1295, JKX, together with its Ukrainian subsidiaries {including PPC), was issued with a Joint
Decision of the Ministry of Economy, the Ministry of Finance and the State Committea for the Oil and Gas (‘the Exemption Letter’),
which established a zero rent payment rate for oil and natural gas produced in Ukraine by PPC for the duration of the Licence
Agreement for Exploration and Exploitation of the Fields. Based on the Exemption Letter PPC did not expect to pay any Rental Fees
until the new law on Rental Fees was enacted in 2011,

Yartal Fansg

In 2011 a new law was enacted which established new mechanisms for the determination of the Rental Fee. Notwithstanding the
Exemption Letter, in January 2011 PPC began to pay the Rental Fee in order to avoid further issues with the Ukrainian authorities but
without prejudice toits right to challenge the validity of the demands.

Rental fees paid have been recorded in cost of sales in each of the accounting periods te which theyrelate.

Fovsrnr oo abay Sl an 3
In 2015, the Company and its whally-owned Ukrainian and Dutch subsidiaries commenced arbitration proceedings against Ukraine
under the Energy Charter Treaty, the bilateralinvestment treaties between Ukraine and the United Kingdorn and the Netherlands,
respectively. In these proceedings, the Company sought repayment of more than $180 million in Rental Fees that PPC had paid on
production of cil and gas in Ukraine since 2011, in additicn to damages to the business,

Durirg 2013 Rental Fees in Ukraine were increased to 55% and capital control restrictions were introduced. On 14 January 2015, an
Emergency Arbitrator issued an Award ordering Ukraine not to collect Rental Fees from PPC in excess of 28% on gas produced by PPC,
pending the outcome of the application to a full tribunal for the Interim Award. On 23 July 2015 an internaticnal arbitration tribunal
issued an Interim Award requiring the Government of Ukraine to limit the collection of Rental Fees on gas produced by PPC to 2 rate of
28%.

The Interim Award was to remain in effect until final jedgement was rendered on the main arbitration case, which was heard in early
July 2018. A decision from the tribunal was awarded on 6 February 2017.

The tribunal did not find in favour of the Company in respect of the Rental Fees but awarded the Company damages of $11.8 million
plus interest, and costs of $0.3 million in relation to subsidiary claims.

InMarch 2017, Ukraine's Ministry of Justice filed a claim with the High Court of the United Kingdom naming JKX as a defendant in an
application seeking to set aside the arbitration award for damages against Ukraine and in favour of JKX.

In Getober 2017 the High Court of the United Kingdem, ordered that the application brought by Ukraine seeking to set aside the recent
arbitration award against Ukraine and in favour of JKX be dismissed. The Government of Ukraine is therefore still liable to pay to JKX
the sum of USD11.8 million plus interest, and costs of USD0.3 million in relation to subsidiary claims, as previously ordered. The Judge
alsq ordered that Ukraine should pay [KX's costs of 0.1 million.

The arbitration award has now been legally recognised in Ukraine and in December 2019 JKX filed for its collection. No recognitior will
be made in the financial statements of any possible future benefit that may result from this award until there is further clarity on the
process for, and likely success of, enforcing collection.

Beatal Fasdomnands

The Group currently has twe claims {2018: two) for additional Rental Fees being contested through the Ukrainian court process. These
arise from disputes over the amount of Rental Fees paid by PPC for certain periods since 2010 (2018: 2010), which in total amount to
approximately $41.3 million {2018: $42.5 million) (including interest and penalties), as detailed below. All amounts are being claimed in
Ukrainian Hryvnia (UAR') and are stated below at their US$-equivalent amounts using the year end rate of $L.UAH 23.69 (2018: $1:
UAH 27.69).

» August -~ December 2010: approximately $15.9 million (2018: $12.4 million) {including $10.7 million (2018: $8.0 million) of interest
and penalties). On 11 March 2014 PPC won the case in the Poltava Court. The tax office appealed and the Kharkiv Appellate
Administrative Court reversed the earlier decision. PPC then lost an appeal in the High Administrative Court of Ukraine and the
Supreme Court rejected PPC's application for the appeal. PPC has discovered that there were in fact certain procedures that were not
followed regarding the tax notifications that formed the basis of the original claims against PPC. Certain documentation was found
to be missing from the files of the tax authorities. In Apri! 2017 the Poltava Circutt Administrative Court found in favour of PPC and
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cancelled the tax notification decisions cn the grounds that due process had not been followed. On 1 June 2017 the Kharkiv Appellate
Administrative Court upheld the judgment of the Poltava Circuit Administrative Court. In July 2017 the Poltava Joint State Tax
Inspectorate {"PJSTI") filed a cassation complaint against the previcus court judgements of lower courts in PPC's favour. This
cassation hearing at the Supreme Court of Ukraine is expected before the end of 2020. Whilst PPC has been successful in the April,
June and July 2017 court hearings, the Board considers it appropriate to maintain a provision notwithstanding that PPC disputes the
claim basis, given assessment of all relevant facts and circumstances.

= January - December 2015: approximately $25.4 million (2018: $30.1 million) (including $16.7 million (2018: £17.9 million) of interest
and penalties). Following the commencement of international arbitration proceedings at the beginning of 2015 {see above), from July
2015 PPCreverted to paying a 28% Rental Fee for gas preduction (instead of the revised official rate of 55%) as a resuit of the
awards granted under the arbitration. PPC alsc declared part of its Rental Fee payments at 35% for the first 6 months of 2015 as
overpayments and consequently stopped paying the Rental Fee for gas in order to align the total payments made in 2015 with the
28%rate awarded made under the arbitration proceedings. The Ukrainuan tax authorities have issued PPC with the series of claims
for the difference between 28% and 55%. which were being contested in eight separate cases. Four of these cases have now been
resclved in PPC’s favour and the others continue to be contested-

» Case No.816/845/16 for principal of $0.3m. In December 2018 the Poltava Circuit Administrative Court, and in May 2019 the
Kharkiv Appellate Administrative Court, found in favour of PPC and both ruled that Tax Notification Decisicens previously issued
against PPC were illegal and were cancelled, It was expected that PJSTI would file cassation complaint. [n July 2019 the Suprerme
Court of Ukraine refused to accept the cassation complaint of the PISTI for procedural reasons, meaning that these decisions will
not be appealed. This case is therefore closed in favour of PPC.

= Case No.816/688/16 for principai of $1.8m. In April 2019, the Poltava Circuit Administrative Court, found in favour of PPC and
ruled that Tax Notification Decisions previously issued against PPC were illegal and were cancelled. As PISTI did not file an
appeal within the required tirne, the judgement of the Poltava Circuit Administrative Court is now binding. This case is therefore
closed in favour of PPC.

= Tweo cases (Nos. No. 816/846/16 and No, 816/844/16) for a total principal of £3.5m. On 14 Novernber 2019 the Poltava Circuit
Administrarive Court found in favor of PPC in both cases as well as tuled that Tax Notification Decisions previously issued
against PPC were illegal and were cancelled. PJSTI filed appellate complaints in both cases, however, failed to pay the court fee.
The Kharkiv Appellate Administrative Court returned in January 2020 appellate complaints in both cases without consideration.
PISTT had time until mid-March 2020 to challenge the above return of appellate complaints, however they failed to do so. Thus,
the cases are effectively closed in favour of PPC.

= Two cases (Nos. 816/687/16 and 816/1191/16) for a total principal of $2.1rm are in the process of consideration by the first
instance court of merits.

Case No.816/685/18 far a total principal of $2.2m was previously suspended. PISTI have filed cassation complaint with the
Supreme Court to unsuspend it. The hearing is expected to take place in the secend half of 2020.1f PJSTI is successful at these
hearings, then the case will be considered by the first instance court of merits.

Case No.816/686/18 for a total principal of $4.4m were previously confirmed as suspended by the Supreme Court. [tisexpected
that PISTI may file motions in the first instance court to renew these cases.

It is expected that the process of hearings in respect of the remaining outstanding 2015 rental fee claims will continue into 2021 and
possibly beyond. Full provisions are made for all these outstanding clairs and classified as non-current. In 2019 reversals have been
applied to the provisions {inclusive of interest and penalties} of $0.6m in respect of Case No. 816/845/16, $4.8m in respect of Case No.
816/688/16, £5.3min respect of Case No. 816/846/16 and $3.7m in respect of Case No. 816/844/18, as all four cases have been
closed in PPC's favour.

An exceptional item of $8.4 million has been credited to the Consoclidated income statement in the year (2018: $5.1 million charge),
being the net of provisions reversed for cases closed in PPC's favour and interest accrued on the remaining August - December 2010
and January - Deceraber 2015 claims (see Note 18).
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26. Deferred tax

Assets Liability Net
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
- 000 <000 <000 s000 $000 3000
Continuning operations
Ukraine 8,108 9,193 (8.280) {8.227) {172) 986
_Russia 12,033 11,130 (3,849) {1,677) 8,184 9,453
Deferred tax asset 8012 10,419

Refer to Note 2 for details of reclassifications hetween deferred tax assets and liabilities affecting the comparative information.

The halance comprises temporary differences attributable to:

Assets Liability Net
2019 2018 2019 2018 2019 2018
o 000 s000 000 $00C 5000 $000
Property, plant and equipment - - {12,128} {3.635) {12,128) (9.635)
Inventory g14 1,206 - - 614 1,206
Provision for disputed rental fees 6,528 7.038 - - 6.528 7.038
Provision for site restoration 1,131 1,058 - - 1,131 1,058
Tax losses 11,556 10,721 - - 11,556 10,721
Ether 311 300 {1} {269) 310 21
Deferred tax asset 20,141 20,323 (12,129) (9.904) 8,012 10,419
/{liability)recognised
1 Jamuary exchange to profit 31 December
2019 differences or loss 2019
000 $000 $000 000
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (9.635) (1,511) {982) {12,128)
Other {269) 32 236 {1}
Defer:ﬁ:a tax assets )
Inventary 1,206 191 (783) 614
Provision for disputed rental fees 7,038 1,188 (1,698) 6,528
Provision for site restoration 1,058 160 {87) 1,131
Tax losses 10,721 1,310 {474) 11,556
_cher 300 {132) 143 310
Net deferred tax 10,419 1,238 (3,645) 8,012

* Note there are munor differences in the tables due to counding effects
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{Charged}/credited
classified as
discontinued
operation and
credited to
1 January exchange income 31 December
2018 differences to profit or loss ™ statement 2018
+000 £000 <000 +000 s000
Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment {2.841) - 306 - (9,635)
Other (3,000 - 167 2,564 (269)
Deferrod tax assets
Inventory 1,215 - (9 - 1.206
Provisien for disputed rental fees 5,277 - 1,761 - 7,038
Provision for site restoration 925 (75} 208 - 1,058
Tax losses 10.858 (L2z1) 1,084 - 10,721
Other 584 : (284) - 300
Net deferred tax 5,918 (1,296) 3,233 2,564 10,419

*QOut of charge of $1.3m, $2.4m (charge) relates to discontinued operation {refer to Note 14} and £3.8m {credit) to continuing operation,

The deferred tax assets include an amount of $11.6m (2018: $10.7m) which relates to carried forward tax losses of our Russian
subsidiary. The Group concluded that the deferred tax assets will be recoverable using the estimated future income based onthe

approved business plans and budgets for the subsidiary notwithstanding historic losses. The subsidiary is expected to generate
taxable income from 2020 onwards.

2019 2018

Unprovided deferred taxation 3000 000
Ta_xlgssz S - N o m_w(l 2,547) (35,429)
Property. plant and equipment - -
Other temporary differences - -
{12,547) (35.439)

There is no expiry date on the remaining losses as at 31 December 2018. The UK corporation tax main rate will be at 19% for the next
year and starting from 1 April 2020 will be reduced te 17%. The impact of the rate reduction is not expected to have a material impact.

27.Earnings per share

The calculation of the basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to the owners of the parent is based on the weighted average
number of shares in issue during the year of 168,090,217 (2018: 166,723,145), including shares held to satisfy the Group's employee

share schemes and shares purchased by the Company and held as treasury shares of 4,035,699 (2018: 5,402,771}, and the profit for the
relevant year.

Profit before exceptional items in 2019 of $13,246,738 {2018 profit: $18,550,956) is calculated from the 2018 profit of $22,212,692
{2018:$15,257,404) adjusted for exceptional itemns of $10,642,954(2018: $5,054,552) and the related deferred tax on the exceptional
items of $1,677,000 (2018:51,761,000}).

The diluted earnings per share for the year is based on 173,176,095 {2018: 176,455,391) ordinary shares calculated as fellows:

2019 2018
000 000
Profit
Profit for the purpose of basic and diluted earnings per share {profit for the year attributable to the
owners of the parent}:
After exceptional item 22,213 15,257

Before exceptional item 13,247 18,551
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Number of shares 2019 2018
Basic weighted average nurmber of shares 172,125,918 172125916
Treasury shares (402,771) (402,771)
Shares held in Employee Benefit Trust {Note 15) (5.000,000) {5,000,000)
Sale of shares held by Employee Benefit Trust (Note 15) 1,186,547 -
Exercise of share options (Note 24) 180,525 -
Weighted average number of shares 168,090,217 166,723,145
Dilutive potential ordinary shares:

Share options - 256,150
Convertible bonds 2020 - 9,476,096
Weighted average number of shares for diluted earnings per share 168,090,217 176455321

[n accordance with IAS 33 (Earnings per share) the effects of antidilutive potential have not been included when calculating dilutive
earnings per share for the year end 31 December 2019, 5,085,878 potentially dilutive crdinary shares associated with the convertible
bonds {Note 13) have been excluded as they are antidilutive in 2019.

The effects of dilutive potential have been included when calculating dilutive earnings per share for the years ended 31 December

2018.9,476,096 potentially dilutive ordinary shares associated with the convertible bonds have been included as they are dilutive at 31
December 2018.

There were no outstanding share options at 31 December 2019 (2018: 256,150, of which 256,150 had a potentially dilutive effect). All of
the Group's equity derivatives were anti-dilutive for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018 ali dilutive}.

2B. Dividends

No interim dividend was paid for 2019 (2018: nil}. [n respect of the full year 2019, the directors do not propese a final dividend (2018: no
final dividend paid).

29.Reconciliation of profit from operations to net cash inflow from operations

2019 2018
<000 $0C0
Profit frorn operations (continuing operations) 31,550 15,676
Profit from operations {discontinued operations) 2,004 930
Depreciation, depletion and amortisation 19,217 15,155
Gainon disposal of fixed assets (98) -
Exceptional item - (decrease}/increase in provision for production based taxes. including forex (8,410) 5,441
Reversal of provision for impairment of Hungary {2,232} -
Increase in provisions - onerous lease provision, including forex - 284
Abandonment provision write-off - (172)
Share-based payment charge 14 13
Cash generated from operations before changes in working capital 42,045 37,327
Decrease/(increase) in operating trade and other receivables 1,156 (1,288)
Increase in operating trade and cther payables 1,811 1,250
Increase in inventories {3,802) {166)
Net cash generated from continuing operations 41,386 37,281

Net cash used in discontinued operations (Note 14) {176) (158)
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Changes in liabilities from financing activities

The table below datails changes in the Group's liabilities arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes.
Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the Group's
consclidated cash flow statement as cash flows frem financing activities.

Borrowings Leases
$000 5000
At 1 January 2019 11,003 3,511
Cash flows
- Payment of principal (5.280) (1,776)
- Payment of interest (1,131) -
Non-cash flows
- Accruals - 134
-Foreign exchange - (34)
- Interest aceruing in the period 1,091 254
At 31 December 2019 5,683 2,089
Borrowings
S000
At 1 January 2018 16,633
Cash flows
- Payment of principal (5.280)
- Payment of interest (1,870)
- Accretion payment (480)
Non-cash flows
- Interest accruing in the period 2,000
At 31 December 2018 11,003

30. Capital commitments

Under the work programmes for the Group's expleoration and develcpment licenses the Group had no commitments to future capital
expenditure on drilling rigs and facilities at 31 December 2018 (2018: $4.4m}.

31.Related party transactions

v
Eaymanagamars gampensadion

Key management personnel are considered to comprise only the Directors. The remuneration of Directors during the year was as
follows:

20189 2018

3000 sG00

Short-term employee benefits 1141 670
Share-based payments charge 14 13
1,155 683

Further information about the rermuneration of individual Directors, together with the Directors’ interests in the share capital of JKX
0il & Gas plc, is provided in the audited part of the Remuneration Report on pages 59 to 63 and in the Directors Report on page 71.

Three Non Executive Directors joined the Board during 2018 following removal of two Non Executive Diirectors at 2018 Annual General
meeting (AGM) and resignations of the other two Non Executive Directors after 2012 AGM. Victor Gladun was appointed as an
Executive Director of the Company at the AGM and on 20 Septernber he was additionally appointed as the CEO of the JKX Group. Please
refer to the Remuneration Report on page 59 for the disclosure on the bonus awarded to the Group CEO for 2019 (2018 nil).
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There were five Non Executive Directors at 31 December 2018 following resignations of Vladimir Tatarchuk and Viadimir Rusinov on
16 August 2018, There were no Executive Directors appointed as Directors in 2018

Share-based payments represents the expenses arising from share-based payments included in the income statement, determined
based on the fair value of the related awards at the date of grant (Note 24).

Transaiunswith ratated pavties

The transactions between the Company and its subsidiaries, which are related parties, have been eliminated en consalidation.

PISC "Mining Company Ukrnaftoburinnya” ("UNB"), a Ukrainian cil and gas company in which Group holds a 10% of the ordinary share

capital was considered a related party at 31 December 2019. One of the Group's Non Executive Directors, Michael Bakunenke, a
member of Audit and Remuneration Committees, is also a Chairman of the Board of UNB.

The following transactions were carried out with UNB;

2019 2018
5000 2000
Gas sales 1,330 662
Sale of property. plant and equipment {pipes} 135 -
2018 2018
000 $000
Qil purchase - 240

Gas, oil and property. plant and equipment are sold and purchased on normal commercial terms and conditions.

Vladimir Tatarchuk and Vladimir Rusinov were appointed to the Board on 28 January 2016 and had a bereficial interest in Convertible
Bonds with principal amount of $3.4m (interest and accretion amount of $0.8m} at 31 December 2017, which are held by Proxima (see
Notes 1l and12).

In February 2018. the following redemptions were made in relation to Proxima’s bond holding and in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the restructured Bonds (see Note 11):
= $l.1lminrespect of first instalment of the principal;

= 50.Iminrespect of prior accretion amounts;
* $0.2m Bond interest payment.

On 16 August 2018 Viadimir Tatarchuk and Vladimir Rusinov tendered their resignations with immediate effect, and such resignations
were accepted by the board. They ceased to be related parties as of this date.

Subsidizyyuc-deitnkiogs aod jolnt gperanans

The Company's principal subsidiary undertakings including the name, country of incorporatien, registered address and proportion of
ownership interest for each are disciosed in Note B to the Company’s separate financial statements which follow these consolidated
financial statements.

Transactions between subsidiaries and between the Company and its subsidiaries are eliminated on consolidation.
32. Audit exemptions for subsidiary companies

The Group has elected to take advantage of the full extent of the exemptions available under Section 479A of the Companies Act 2006.
Exemption from mandatory audit in section 4794 of the act is available for qualifying subsidiaries that fulfil a set of conditions. Asa
result, statutory financial statements will not be sudited for the following UK entities: JKX Services Limited, JKX Bulgaria Limited, JKX
Geaorgia Ltd, JKX (Ukraine) Ltd, Baltic Energy Trading Ltd, EuraDril Limited, JP Kerny Exploration & Production Limited, Page Gas Ltd,
Trans-European Energy Services Limited, JKX Limited.

33. Events after the reporting date

On 19 February 2020 the Campany made a payment of the final instalment to Bondholders of $5.4m {34% of the principal armount of
the Bonds), together with $0.4m interest payment in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bond.

In early February 2018 the Group anncunced its intention to exit its oil and gas operations in Hungary and initiated an active
programme to dispose of its Hungarian business. The sale-purchase agreement for the disposal of the Hungarian business for expected
consideration of around $2.9m was executed in March 2020,

At the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements, Covid-19 continues to spread internationally, contributing to a
sharp decline in global financial markets and a significant decrease in global econamic activity. On 11 March 2020, the Covid-18
outbreak was declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization and has since then resulted in numerous governments and
comparies, including JKX, introducing a variety of measures tc contain the spread of the virus. The outbreak has also created
significant volatility in financial markets and is considered to have negatively impacted commaodity prices, including oil prices, which is
relevant to financial perfermance since year end and may impact future asset values should they remain depressed.
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For the year ended 31 December 20189

2019 2018
Company number 3050645 Note 2000 $000
Asgets
Non-current assets
Investments B 21,424 21,424
Right-of-use assets A 240 -
Other receivables C 47,881 104,700
69,545 126,124
Current assets
Trade and other receivables < 263 631
Cash and cash equivalents E 8,825 13,272
9,088 13,503
Total assets 78,633 7 140,0277””
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Trade and other payables F (15,391} (81,201)
Lease liabilities F (139} -
(15,530} (81.301)
Non-current liabilities
Derivatives F - {62)
Lease liabilities F {133} -
Total liabilities (15,663) (81,363)
Net Assets 52,970 58,664
Equity
Share capital G 26,666 26,666
Share premium 97476 97,476
Other reserves G (503} (503)
Accumulated deficit (60,669) (64,975)
Tatal equity 62,970 58,664

The Company has elected to take the exemption under section 408 of the Companies Act 2006, to not present the parent commpany
income staterment. The net profit for the parent company was $3.8m (2018: 512.1m loss).

These financial statements on pages 129 to 140 were approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2020 and signed on its behalf by:

p, | /-

R i

T ~

Victor Gladun Chief Executive Officer Ben Fraser Chief Financial Officer
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For the year ended 31 December 2019

Company statement of changes in equity

Share Share Accumulated Other Total
capital premivm deficit reserves equity
$000 <000 $000 $000 5000
At1January 2018 26,666 97,4786 (52.922) {503) 70,717
Loss for the financial year - - (12,066) - (12,0686)
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - {12,066} - (12.0686)
Transactions with equity shareholders
Share option charge - - 13 - 13
Total transactions with equity shareholders - - 13 - 12
At 31 Decernber 2018 26,666 897,476 (64.975) {503) 58,664
Share Share Accumulated Other Total
capital premium deficit reserves equity
$000 000 000 s000 000
At 1 January 2019 26,666 97,476 (64,975) {503) 58,664
Profit for the financial year - - 3,833 - 3,833
Total comprehensive loss for the year - - 3,833 - 3,833
Transactions with equity shareholders
Share option charge - - 14 - 14
Exercise of share options - - 17 - 17
Sale of shares held by Employee Benefit Trust ! - - 442 - 442
TIV';;ir;:rlr-ansau::tiomi with equity shareholder'sr 7 - - 473 - 473
At 31 December Z019 26,6686 97,476 (80.669) {503) 62,970

Please refer tu Croup Consalidated financial statements for the full disclosure an the sale of shareslield by Employee Benefit Trust in Mote 15,
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A Presentation of the financial statements

Basizelpoupzration

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified for financial assets and financial
liabilities {including derivative instruments) at fair value through income staterment, and in accordance with the Companies Act 2006
as applicable to companies using Financial Reporting Standard 101, ‘Reduced Disclosure Framework {(FRS 101).

Please refer to Directors' report on pages 73 to 76 for information on Company’s domicile, legal form, country of incerporation,
description of the nature of the entity's operations and business activities.

Please refer to Group Consolidated financial statements for the full disclosure on Going Concern on pages 91 - 92.

Adoptior of naw and pevised arangards

IFRS 16 is effective for the year ended 31 December 2019. Please refer to Group's accounting policies note for the full disclosure.

There were no retrospective adjustments as a result of adopting [FRS 16 ‘Leases’. The Company’s armended accounting policy applied
from 1 January 2019 is disclosed below.

IFRS 16 specifies how to recognise, measure, present and disclose leases. The standard provides a single lessee accounting medel,
requiring lessees to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for all material leases. It results in almost ail leases being
recegnised on the balance sheet by lessees, as the distinction between operating and finance leases was removed. Under the new
standard, an asset (the right to use the leased item) and a financial liability to pay rentals are recognised. The only exceptions are short-
term and low-value leases.

The Company adopted IFRS 16 from 1 January 2012 using the modified retrospective approach and accordingly the information
presented for 2018 is not restated. It remains as previously reported under 1AS 17 and related interpretations. On initial application,
the Company elected to record right-of-use assets based on the correspending lease liability. A right-of-use asset and lease obligations
of $0.4m were recorded as of 1 January 2019, with no net impact on retained earnings. When measuring lease liabilities, the Company
discounted lease payments using its incremental borrowing rate at 1 January 2018. The weighted-average rate applied is 14%.

The balance sheet shows the fcllowing amounts relating to leases:

Depreciation
1 January charge for the 31 December
2019 year 2019
$000 $000 <000
Properties 375 {135) 240
Total 375 (135 240
The income statement shows the following amounts relating to leases:
31 December
2019
s000
Interest on lease liabilities 44
Total 44

The following table reconciles the Company's operating lease obligations at 21 December 2018, as disclosed in the Company's financial
staterments, to the lease obligations recognised on initial application of [FRS 16 at 1 January 201%.

s
Operating lease commitments at 31 December 2018 0.9
Discounted using the incremental borrewing rate at 1 January 2018 0.4
Effect of discounting 0.1

Impairment provision to be recognised on one of the properties 0.4
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Notes to the Company financial statements

The Company has taken advantage of the following disclosure exemptions under FRS 101:

= Presentation of statement of cash flows:

» Therequirements of IFRS 7 ‘Financial instruments” Disclosure of quantitative and qualitative information regarding risks arising
from all financial instruments held by the Company. Equivalent disclosures are included in the Group's consolidated financial
statements;

= The requirement of IFRS 13 ‘Fair Value Measurement’ to disclose the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop fair value
measurements for assets and liabilities held at fair value. Equivalent disclosures are included in the Group consolidated financial
statements;

= Disclosure of related party transactions entered into between two or more members of a Group. Equivalent disclosures are included
in the Group conselidated financial statements;

» Disclosure of information relating to new standards not yet effective and not yet applied.

Fropooty, plasrandeguipnein®

Property, plant and equipment are stated at historic purchase cost less accumulated depreciation. Cost includes the original purchase
price of the asset and the costs attributable to bringing the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Depreciation is calculated
to write off the cost of property, plant and equipment, less their residual values, over their expected useful lives using the straight line
basis as follows:

Fixtures and fittings -five totenyears
Computer equipment and software -three years
Trwu o vesnt nsubaidigcing

Investments are initially measured at historic cost, including transaction costs, and stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses.
The Company assesses investments for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value of an
investment may not be recoverable. If any such indication of impairment exists, the Company makes an estimate of it recoverable
amount. Where the carrying amount of an investment exceeds its recoverable armount, the investment is considered impaired and is
written down toits recoverable amount.

Foreipaoeurra o riag

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are transiated at the rates of exchange ruling at the statement of financial position date,
with a correspanding charge or credit to the income statement. Non-monetary items are measured in terms of historical cost in foreign
currency and are translated using the exchange rates of the original transaction,

The presentation and functional currency of the Company is the US Dollar. The US$/E exchange rate used for the revaluation of the
closing statement of financial positionat 31 Decernber 2012 was $1/£0.76 (2018: 21/£0.78).

bongd Dasgad A
The Company operates a number of equity-settled, share-based compensation plans, under which the Company receives services from
Executive Directors and Senior Management as consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Company. The fair value of the
services received from Executive Directors and Senior Management in exchange for the grant of the options is recognised asan
expense. The total amount tc be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

= including any market performance conditions; {for example, the Company’s share price),

» excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time period}; and

= including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example, the requirement for employees 1o save).
Non-market performance and service conditions are included in assumptions about the number of optians that are expected tovest.

The total expense is recognised over the vesting period, which is the period aver which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be
satisfied.

In addition, in some circumstances employees may provide services in advance of the grant date and therefore the grant date fair value
is estimated for the purposes of recognising the expense during the period between service commencement period and grant date.

At the end of each reporting period, the Company revises its estimates of the nurber of options that are expected to vest based onthe
non-market vesting conditions. It recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the income statement, witha
corresponding adjustment to equity.

When the optiens are exercised, the Cornpany issues new shares or shares held by the JXX Employee Benefit Trust. The proceeds
received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are credited to share capital (neminal value) and share premium.

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the group is treated as
a capital contribution. The fair value of employee services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, is recognised
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over the vesting period as an increase to investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the parent
entity financial statements.

The social security contributions payable in connection with the grant of the share options is considered an integral part of the grant
itself, and the change will be treated as a cash-settled transaction.

The rules regarding the scheme are described in the Remuneration Report on pages 67 to 68 and in Note H on share based payments.

Stareoapital ardtressary shar
Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares are recognised asa

deduction from share premiurm, net of any tax effects.

When share capital recognised as equity is repurchased, the amount of the consideration paid, which includes directly attributable
costs, net of any tax effects, is recognised in retained earnings.

Repurchased IKX Qil & Gas plc shares are classified as treasury shares in shareholders’ equity and are presented in the retained
earnings. The consideration paid, including any directly attributable incremental costs is deducted from equity attributable to the
Company's equity holders until the shares are cancelled or reissued. .

When treasury shares are sold or reissued subsequently, the amount received is recognised as an increase in equity, and the resulting
surplus or deficit on the transaction is presented in share premium. No gain or loss is recognised in the financial statements on the
purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of treasury shares,

JRX Bruployes Berefit Trus

The JKX Employee Benefit Trust was established in 2013 to hold ordinary shares purchased to satisfy various new share scheme
awards rnade to the employees of the Company which will be transferred te the mermbers of the scheme on their respective vesting
dates subject to satisfying the performance conditions of each scheme,

Leagas
Atinception of a contract, the Company assesses whether a contract is, or contains, a lease based on whether the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration.

The Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initially
measured based on the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date,
plus any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives received.

The asset is depreciated to the earlier of the end of the usefullife of the right-of-use asset or the lease term using the straight-line
method as this most closely reflects the expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits. The lease term includes
pericds covered by an option to extend if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option. Lease terms range from two to
three years for offices. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periedically reduced by impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain
remeasurements of the lease Hability.

The lease liability is initially rmeasured at the present value of the lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date,
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily determined, the Company’s incremental
borrowing rate. Generally, the Company uses its incremental borrowing rate as the discount rate. The lease liability is measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a
change in an index crrate, if there is a change in the Company’s estimate of the amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or if the Company changes its assessment of whether 1t will exercise a purchase, extenston or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-of-use asset, or the
effect isrecorded in profit or loss if the carrying atnount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The Company elected to apply the practical expedient not te recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short-term leases
that have a lease term of 12 months or less and leases of low-value assets. The Company alse made use of the practical expedient te not
recognise a right-of-use asset or a lease liability for leases for which the lease term ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application.

The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company did not elect to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases on the date
of initial application, as previously assessed under IAS 17 and IFRIC 4. The Company applied the definiticn of a lease under IFRS 16 to
all existing contracts.

Firanoal instraments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised on the Company’s balance sheet when the Company becomes party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Derivative financial instruments
The Company accounts for derivative financial instruments in line with IFRS 9 — ‘Financial Instruments”.
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Any such derivative was initially recarded at fair value an the date at which the contract was entered into and subsequently re-
measured at fair value on subsequent reporting dates.

Fair value is the amount for which a financial asset, liability or instrument could be exchanged between knowledgeable and willing
parties in an arm’s length transaction. The value of the derivative is calculated at inception using the Monte Carlo simulation
methodology and subsequently using the Black-Scholes formula, and the Company's historic share price and volatility, treasury rates
and other estimations. As it is derived from inputs that are not from observable market data it is grouped into level 3 within the fair
value measurement hierarchy.

Other receivables

Other receivables include intercompany receivables which are initially recarded at their transaction price in accordarnce with IFRS 8
and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, reduced by any provision for impairment. [FRS 9 sets out a new forward looking
‘eXpected loss' impairment model which replaced the incurred loss model in IAS 39. Under the IFRS 9 'expected loss’ madel, a credit
event (or impairment ‘trigger’) no longer has to occur befere credit losses are recognised. Expected credit losses are assessed ona
forward looking basis. The loss allowance is measured at initial recognition and throughout its life at an amount equal to lifetime ECL.
Any impairment is recognised in the income staterment within ‘Administrative expenses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand and current balances with banks and similar institutions, which are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash. Cash is short-term with an original maturity of less than 3 months, highly liguid investments
that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective
interest rate method if the time value of money is significant.

Financial liabilities and equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified according to the substarce of the contractual arrangements entered into. An
equity instrument is any cantract that evidences aresidual interest in the assets of the Company after deducting all of its liabilities.
Equity instruments issued by the Caompany are recorded at the proceeds received net of direct issue costs.

Lo dnnde

Interim dividends are recognised when they are paid to the Company’s shareholders. Final dividends are recognised when theyare
approved by shareholders.

CERARTAD

Income tax expense represents the sum of the current tax payable and deferred tax.

The current tax payable is based on taxable prefit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reportedin the income
statement because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it further excludes items
that are never taxable or deductible. Company’s liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the reporting date.

Tax is charged or credited in the income statement, except when it relates toitems charged or credited directly to equity or in other
comprehensive income, in which case the tax is also dealt with in equity or other comprehensive income respectively.

Deferred tax is the tax expected to be payable or recoverable on differences between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the
financial staternents and the corresponding tax base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which deductible temporary differences can be recognised. Such assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temparary difference arises from goodwill or frorm the initial recognition {other than in a business combination) of
other assets and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax lizbilities are recognised {or taxable temporary differences arising on investments in subsidiaries. and interests tn joint
ventures, except where the Company is able to control the reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the fareseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Any such reduction shall be reversed to
the extent that it becomes probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset realised
based on tax rates and laws substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are of fset when there exists
alegal and enforceable right to of fset and they relate to income taxes levied by the sarme taxation authoerity and the Company intends
te settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.
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B.Investments

The net book value of unlisted fixed asset investments comprises:

2018 2018
$000 000
Cost
At 1January and 31 December 21,424 21,424
21,424 21,424
Equity investment in subsidiaries
At 31 December 21,424 21,424

During 2012, JKX Qil & Gas {Jersey) Limited was incorporated in Jersey as a wholly-owned subsidiary. Its sole activity is to hold the
bonds that were issued in February 2013 and which previded finance for the JKXX Group of companies (see Note 11 to the consolidated
financial statements). The amounts are considered recoverable based on post year end liquidation distributions.
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At 31 December 2019, subsidiary undertakings of JKX Oil & Gas plc were:

% held
{ordinary  Country of incorporation
Name Business shares) and area of operation
AdygeaGasB.V.! Holding 100.00 Netherlands
Baltic Catering Services ’ 0il & gas services 106.00 Ukraine
Baltic Energy Trading Ltd** Qil & gas exploration and praoduction 10000 UK
Catering-Yug LLC? Oil & gas services 10000 Russia
Eastern Ukrainian Pipelire Ltd? 0il & gas services 100.00 Ukraine
EuroDril Limited* Qil & gas exploration, production and services 100.00 UK
JKX Bulgaria Limited* ® Oil & gas exploration and production 100.00 UK
JKX Bulkan BG EAD® il & gas exploration and production 100.00 Bulgaria
JKX Georgia Ltd** Oil & gas exploration, production and services 100.00 UK
JKX Hungary BV'! Gil & gas exploration and production 100.00 Netherlands
JKX Ltd*® Dormant 100.00 UK
JKX {Navtobi) Limited 8 0il & gas exploration and production 100.00 Cyprus
JEX {Nederland) B.V.! Finance and Holding 100.00 Netherlands
JKX 0il & Gas {Jersey) Limited*® Finance 10000 Jersey B
JKX Services Lirnited* Services 10000 UK
JKX Ukraine BV'! Finance and Holding 100.00 Netherlands
JTKX (Ukraine) Ltd* # Qil & gas exploration, production and services 10000 UK
JP Kenny Exploration & Production Finance and Helding 100.00 UK
Lirnited**
Kharkiv Investment Company ? Helding 100.00 Ukraine
Page Gas Ltd** 0il & gas exploration and production 100.00 UK
Foltava Gas BV. ! " Holding 10000 Netherlands
Poltava Petroleum Company 2 0il & gas exploration and production 100.0¢ Ukraine
Folydpart Energia Kft 1? 0il & gas exploration, production and services 100.00 Hungary
Trans-European Energy Services Limited** Gil & gas exploration, praduction and services 10000 UK
Yuzhgazenergie LLC® 0il & gas exploration. production and services 100.00 Russia

* Hetd directly by JKX Oil & Gas plc. All other companies are keld through sussidiary undertakings.

Company registered addresses:

1. Schiphol Boulevard 783, Tower F, 7th floor, LL18 BH Schiphol, Netherlands.

2.30V, Les1 Ukrainky Boulevard, #2133, Kyiv, Ukralre.

2.177-a Pervomaiskaya Str., Maikop, Adygea Republic, 285032, Russia.

4.6 Cavendish Square, London, W1G 0PD, England.
5.47 Esplanade. 5t Helier, JEL OBD, Jersey.

8, 400m fron Shovgenovek-Koshakhabl maror road, a. Koshekhabl, Koshekhablsky thstrict, Repubhic of Adygea, 385401, Russia.

7. Production site of IV PPC, Sokolova Balka, Novosanjary district, Poltava region, 39252, Ukrawme,

9.45/A Bulgana Boulevard. Sofia, 1404, Bulgara.
10. VL Floor, Vacj ut 33, Budapest, 1134, Hungary.

8. 1st Floor, 22 Stasicratous Olga Court, Nicosia, Cyprus.

*  TheGroupales holds a 100% mvestment i Sthevehenks farm in Ukraine. The wivestment was not incladed in the “subsnidiary undertakings” list above and does not need tobe
consalidated as the Group does not have any control over the enricy. The Group 15 not exposed te any rights to variable returns from 1ts involvement with the farm and daes not
tiave any ability 1o affect the farm’s returns through its holding in tne Farm's Charter Capital. The interest was purchased to protect access required for oiland gas activities,

originally recorded at immaterial cost and s:bsequently impaired as part of the NNC cash generating unit in prior years.

In the opinion of the Directors the carrying value of the investrments is supported by their underlying net assets of the Group’s CGU's.
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C.Other receivables

2013 2018
£000 4000
Current
Prepayments 75 285
VAT receivable 188 346
263 631
2019 2018
s000 s000
Nen-current
Amounts owed by group undertakings 47,881 104,700

$47.9m(2018:$104.7m) owed by subsidiary undertakings bears no interest and is due on demand. They were classified as non-current to
reflect estimated timing of recovery.

In accordance with IFRS 9 5.5 ‘Recognition of expected credit losses’, the Company recorded an expected credit loss in relation to the
intercompany loans of $0.3m (2018: $35.7m) as at 31 December 2019. Movement, mainly due to the waiver of intercompany balances,
amounted to $56.8m,

The Company expects that the carrying value of the intercompany loan receivable may not be fully recoverable as the subsidiaries may
not generate sufficient future profits to settle the amounts owing and accordingly, these ameunts have been irmpaired. Amongst other
things, the Company's expected credit loss model vsed information generated by the expected credit losses model of its subsidiary
undertakings to give an indication of the expected trading cash flows to be generated during the locan recovery period. That model
includes relevant and reliable internal and external forward-looking information, incorporating economic forecasts about gas and oil
prices and inflation. Discounting aver the recovery pericd had no effect as an effective interest rate is 0% given the loans are due on
demand.

D.Taxation

2018 2018

Unprovided deferred tax $000 2000
Tax losses 8,545 5.820
Property. plant and equipment differences - -
Other temporary differences - -
8,545 5,820

Neither the deductible temporary differences nor the tax losses expire under current tax legislation. Deferred tax assets have not been
recognised in respect of the unprovided deferred taxation items because it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available to
utilise these deductible temporary differences.

The standard rate of corporation tax in the UK changed from 20% to 19% with effect from 1 April 2017, The Company’s profits for this
accounting year are taxed at an effective rate of 19.00%.The impact of the rate reduction is not expected to have amaterial impact on
UK current or provided deferred taxation but is expected to reduce unprovided UK deferred tax balances in future periods.

E.Cash and cash equivalents

2019 2018
<000 s000
Cash and cash equivalents a15 13,272
Short term deposits 7,910 -

Total 8,825 13,272
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F.Trade and other payables

2019 2018
s000 S000
?urrent
Amounts owed to group undertakings 14,168 80.598
Trade payables 308 527
Accruals 915 176
15,391 81,301
Current
Lease liabilities 138 -
—;l;n-current
Ease liabilities 133 -
Derivatives - 62
s izbiden
Inlyearor
lass, oron In 2-3years
demand s000
31 December 2019 5000
Eturity of financial liabilities
Amounts owed to group undertakings 14,168 -
Trade payables 308 -
Accruals 915 -
Lease liabilities 166 133
o Inlyearorless,
or on demand 2-5years
31 December 2018 s000 5000
Eturity of financial liabilities
Amounts owed to group undertakings 80,598 -
Trade payables 527 -
Accruals 178 -
Derivatives - 62
eamemnrrencdaeivar s fipancishieoeae e

Please refer to Group Consolidated f1nanc1al statements for the full disciosure on Non-current financial instruments in Note 1T and 12.

G. Called up share capital and other reserves

Share capital, denominated in Sterling, was as follows:

2019 2019 2019 2018 2018 2018
Number £000 <000 Number £000 $000
Authorised
Ordmary shares of 10p each B 300,000,000 30,000 - 300,000,000 30,000 -
Allotted, called up and fully pa1d - 7 - B
Opening balance at 1 January 172,125.916 17,212 26,666 172125918 17,212 26,668
Exercise of share options - - - - - -
asing balance at 31 December 172,125,916 17,212 26,666 172,125,916 17.212 26.666
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Of which the following are shares held in treasury:

Treasury shares held at 1 January and 402,771 40 77 402,771 40 77
31 December

The Company purchased no treasury shares during 2019 (2018: none). There were no treasury shares used in 2018 (2017: none) to settle
share options. There are no shares reserved for issue under options or contracts. As at 31 December 2019 the market value of the
treasury shares held was $0.1m (2018: 30.2m}.

Cthar raserves

Capital Redemption Fareign Currency
Reserve Translation reserve Total
000 000 £000
At 1January 201% and 31 December 2019 587 {1,090) (503}

Capital redemption reserve relates to the buyback of shares in 2002, there have been no additional share buy-backs since this time.

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises differences arising from the retranslation of the Company balance sheet from
£ Sterling into US Dollars in 2006.

H.Share-based payments

Please refer to Group Consclidated financial statements for the full disclosure on share-based payments in Note 24.

Bonus schemes
The full details of the bonus perforrmance criteria for senior employees and the bonus earned is explained in the Remuneration Report
on pages 59 and 67.

I. Auditors' remuneration

2018 2018
s000 5000
Audit services
Fees payable to the Company’s auditors for the audit of the parent company 30 30

J. Directors’ remuneration

The remuneration of the Directors is disclosed in the audited section of the Remuneration Report on pages 60 to 63, which form part of
these financial statements.

K. Dividends

No interim dividend was paid for 2019 (2018: nil). In respect of the full year 2019, the directors do net propese a final dividend {2018: no
final dividend paid).

L. Employees

From 1 January 2019 all employee cost that were previously met by the group company JKX Services Ltd were transferred to JKXX Qil &
Gas plc. There were no employees of the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018.

2019
$000
Wages and salaries 1,247
UK social security costs 130
Other pension costs 134
Share based payments {equity-settled) (Note H) 14

1,525
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During the year, the average monthly number of employees was:

2019

Number

Management/operational 7
Administration support 1
8§

M. Events after the reporting date

See Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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General information

Glossary Directors and advisers
2Preserves Provedplusprobable Directors
3Preserves  Proved, probable and possible Charles Valceschini
. Victor Gladun
P50 Regerves and/or resources estimates that Tony Alves
have a 50 per cent probability of being met or Dr. Rashid Javanshir
exceeded Michael Bakunenko
AFE Authorisation For Expenditure c 5 ¢
ompany Secreta
AIFR All Injury Frequency Rate Tilapany > y
Bef Billicn cubic feet 6 Cavendish Square
Bem Billion cubic metres London
boe Barrel of oil equivalent WIGOPD
boepd Barrel of oil equivalent per day Registered office
b ; & Cavendish Square. London W1G OPD
apd Barrel of oil per day . ;
Registered in England
GPF Gas Processing Facility Number: 3050645
Hryvnia The lawful currency of Ukraine Registrars
HSECQ Health, Safety, Environment, Community and Equiniti
Quality Aspect House, Spencer Road
KPI Key Performance Indicator Lancing, West Sussex BN93 6DA
LIBOR London InterBank Offered Rate Independent auditors
LPG Liquefied Petroleum Gas BDOLLP
LTI Lost Time Injuries 55 Baker Street i
Chartered Accountants and Statutory Auditers
Mbbl Thousand barrels London, W1U 7EU
Mboe Thousand barrels of oil equivalent . . .
) Financial advisors
Mcf Thousand cubic feet SPARK Advisory Partners Limited
Mcm Thousand cubic metras 55t. John's Lane
MMcid Million cubic feet per day London, EC1M 4BH
MMbb! Million barrels Public relations
MMboe Million barrels of oil equivalent EM Communicationg ]
MMecm Million cubic metres igfgﬁgh&rgggo?;imldmgs
PPC Poltava Petroleum Company '
Roubles The lawful currency of Russia
RR Russian Roubles
sq. km Square kilometre
D Totaidepth
8 United States Dollars
UAH Ukrainian Hryvnia
uUs United States
VAT Value Added Tax
YGE Yuzhgazenergie LLC

Conversion factors 6,000 standard cubic feet

of gas=1boa
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